by
UL gl
L

E CHINR-HONGHONG PHOTO PRODUCTS HOLDINGS LIMITED

kp PTERBHEBEMEBRBER DA

(Stock Code BR31R5E : 1123)

sl

C

2019/20

Annual Report £ E £ & K &



.

||H||.. Al
”“p ||||””|l
Bun

CHINA-HONGHONG PHOTO PRODUCTS HOLDINGS LIMITED
chkp BB BAEEMNEB AR A T

(Stock Code B 13155 : 1123)

The Group has established over half a century, and has been confronted
with the rapid development of technology, the fierce market competition
and the uncertainty of the business environment. We are aware of the
importance of corporate culture in the sustainable development and
management of the Group as well as its indispensable guiding role. The
management hopes to reshape the spirit of the entire corporate culture
by establishing the corporate vision, mission and core values that can
correspond to each other with the development of the Group, in order
to support its long-term development.
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Customer-centric
LIEEZE A O

Other than being customer-centric and serving
customers with excellent service standards,
employees should also handle inter-departmental
tasks in an efficient and positive manner.

BRTUERA  EBENRBEERBEAN - BEMN
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Curious to Learn

BREBHFH

With the rapid development of the society
today, we expect employees to keep up with the
pace of change. The Group not only encourages
employees to propose innovative working
solutions to enhance competitiveness and create
new values for themselves as well as the Group,
but also focuses on professional knowledge
training for employees and their personal
potential development.
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Open-minded
l@\l*gFaﬁ EE

The Group encourages employees to have
innovative thinking, take in more information
and equip themselves, think outside the box and
not get restricted by previous successes, in order
to create more possibilities for the Group.

SERBREREANIE  SEIFEARERER
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Collaborative
BB S ERE

The success of an enterprise requires all employees
to work together and make use of their strengths.
Cooperation between departments and close
interactions between employees are particularly
important. The Group also actively promotes a
harmonious and cooperative team spirit, guiding
each employee to maximise their capacities in
their teams.
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Accountable
=EL

Employees should be responsible and have self-
discipline for their job positions, perform their
duties in a positive and earnest manner, work
their best to endeavour for good results, in order
to boost the continuous growth of the business
of the Group and strive for excellence.

BEHMBIABUFTEAERAE  UEERENE
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Honest with Open Communications
BHHBEE

The Group is committed to building a corporate
culture with barrier-free communication and
mutual respect. The Group not only encourages
employees to communicate, but also listens to
their useful suggestions or opinions, hoping
employees can understand and listen to each
other with an open mind.

EEFLEE—EEBESRE YEEHEEMLEX
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Sustainable
AEEERM

We will continue to create value together with
the Group’s shareholders, employees, customers
and the social environment, and strive to create
high-quality products and services to implement
the corporate social responsibility spirit.
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Corporate Profile

nEEER

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) spares no
effort in delivering exceptional, premium products and services
in its specialised fields of photography and imaging solutions,
skincare products, and consumer and professional electronic
products and installation services - satisfying and exceeding
the expectations of customers across the region.

The Group has a long-established business partnership with
FUJIFILM Japan, operating as the sole authorised distributor
of FUJIFILM photography products in Hong Kong and Macau
since 1968 and ASTALIFT skincare products in Hong Kong
since 2010. The Group also operates retail businesses in Hong
Kong, providing photofinishing and imaging solutions and
products through its Fotomax retail chain and selling consumer
electronics products and household electrical appliances under
its AV Life, Life Digital and Wai Ming Electrical brand names.
The Group further leverages its expertise in audio and visual (AV)
products by delivering professional products to wholesalers
and providing professional AV advisory and custom design and
installation services to customers. In August 2015, the Group
acquired a 49% stake in the Hong Kong operations of kikki.K,
an international retail chain that sells premium Scandinavian-
designed stationery, gifts and homeware products. Since July
2019, the Group has taken a new role providing imaging
operations at Hong Kong Disneyland Resort with a view to
bringing in new business in a field where it has great expertise.
All these moves further enable us to provide customers with
high-quality products and services suited to modern urban
lifestyles.

Shares of China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(HKSE: 1123).
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Five Years Financial Summary

AP HRE

Consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
M3A31 BEREHBMRR R
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT BETT BETT BETT

Non-current assets FRBEE

Property, plant and equipment ME -~ BERRE 38,582 77,192 81,712 68,325 74,717

Investment properties REYE 225,436 235,580 227,235 194,240 190,785

Right-of-use assets HREEE 101,507 = - - -

Other non-current assets HitERBEE 12,528 13,815 12,867 13,745 12,870
378,053 326,587 321,814 276,310 278,372

Current assets RBEE

Inventories FE 169,508 198,549 192,301 154,343 158,002

Contract assets, trade receivables,
prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

Amount due from an associate

Cash and bank balances

Other current assets

BNEE  BESRWERE - E
HE - RERHEMERE

B 78,255 109,283 79,641 80,510 98,639
PR —BHE A BB - - 29,105 21,825 10,169
BERWITES 197,314 198,178 219,486 241,180 260,701
HitnRe&EE 232 - 10 618 765

445,309 506,010 520,543 498,476 528,276

Current liabilities REBEE 147,449 155,454 121,756 99,625 107,314
Net current assets REBEEFE 297,860 350,556 398,787 398,851 420,962
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERREEE 675,913 677,143 720,601 675,161 699,334
Non-current liabilities kRBEE 67,382 34,985 29,156 26,408 29,961
Equity attributable to owners ERREE ARLESR

of the Company
Non-controlling interests

607,073 640,423 690,309 646,900 668,309
IR 1,458 1,735 1,136 1,853 1,064

Net assets/Total equity

BEFE REEE 608,531 642,158 691,445 648,753 669,373

Consolidated Income Statement for the years ended 31 March
HEIAIALFENGERER
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

Revenue [ 880,298 959,045 929,839 852,510 886,668
(Loss)/profit before income tax BRETSBLAT (B518) /778 (36,054) (44,122) 44,546 (19,095) (65,846)
Income tax credit/(expense) FrigfiE s, (F%) 4,335 (2,239) (5,399 448 (3,018)
Non-controlling interests FEEFIMER 2,626 (330) (941) (789) (1,616)
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners "2 B #H A B
of the Company (F8]),/AE (29,093) (46,691) 38,206 (19,436) (70,480)
Dividends BE - - - - -
Basic (loss)/earnings per share BREX(BE) B
(HK cents) (7840) (2.45) (3.94) 3.22 (1.64) (5.95)
% % % % %
Debt to equity ratio EREE AR E - - - - -
Return on equity - EAEEES (4.79) (7.29) 5.53 (3.00) (10.55)
Dividend pay-out ratio REZ N/A RER NAFER NAFRER NATER NATBAR
Current ratio FENE R 302.01 325.50 427.53 500.35 492.27

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited s8R iESEM EBER QT



Information for Investors

BEEER

LISTING AND STOCK CODE
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited: 1123

SHARE INFORMATION
Board lot: 2,000 shares

Issued shares as at 31 March 2020: 1,185,318,349 shares

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th Floor North

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

FINANCIAL CALENDAR
Financial Year end
31 March 2020

Announcement of final results
24 June 2020

Closure of Register of Members -
Annual General Meeting

11 — 14 August 2020

(both days inclusive)

Annual General Meeting
14 August 2020

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT AND WEBSITE
8th Floor, Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre

220-248 Texaco Road

Tsuen Wan

Hong Kong

Fax: (852) 2409 0294

Email: enquiry@chinahkphoto.com.hk

Website: www.chinahkphoto.com.hk

£ R B AR FX5R
ERBAXSERAT : 1123

B3 R H

BEEE{  2,0008%

202053831 BWEBITRG © 1,185,318,349/%

EFERGBEFEILE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th Floor North

Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda

FERiHBFELERE

SERERERAT
BRET
ERRER1835
BFAP5442

MBEARE

HMREERRE
202038318
REEELE
202068 24H

EEMERGBRERT -
BREBFEXE

20205F8A11AE14H

(BEEEMAH)

BRBAFEXE
2020588 14H

REEMEBREHRAL

Ei

3|

EEHE220-2485%
EEIXHPLE

fEE : (852) 2409 0294

B E : enquiry@chinahkphoto.com.hk
#uf © www.chinahkphoto.com.hk
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Events

EE)

Fuji Photo Products Co., Ltd. (“FPP"), one of the subsidiaries of 1968 £ M E TR EMER AT
the Group, incorporated in 1968,. is the sole agent to distribute ( [FPP] ) » EEH—MBAT @ %
FUJIFILM photography products in Hong Kong and Macaufor &3 — 8 2 FUJIFILM BEEREESE
many years. It has dominated the film photography market BEMNERKAE - BEMEBADR
since the time of film, has been fransforming and innovating L 2z st i=m e o=4m | w40y 3 -
for half a century, now achieving its leading position in giﬁ;ﬁfﬁﬁﬂ;ﬁE;ﬁAi%;%ﬁI%
the photography market. FPP has worked seamlessly with 7>=—"= ;F_ ’ 5“37 AL /\
FUIJIFILM Japan for half a century. It continued to release ﬁgﬂg\iﬂl{% ° FPP;_\\ H ZE EUJl_E”E‘.M =
various products this year, taking the lead in the market. ERE¥HEL  STFEHBENRMSEM
TEEm » FEDS o

Launch Conference for FP-Z5000, the Latest
Ground-breaking Projector Developed by FUIJIFILM
FUJIFILM 2 375/ 3% 21 IR S0 FP-Z5000 e

4

/

In January 2020, FUJIFILM officially launched FUJIFILM FP-Z5000, the world’s first folded
two-axial rotatable lens projector in Central, demonstrating multiple new functions of
the projector. The event was joined by the press, making it a lively scene
FUJIFILM#A20205F 1 A 3 1E IR IEX B MFFUJIFILM FP-Z50002 3R & Al #7 th 7 & s iz 5 45 51 |
REE  RSRESERTMINTIIETE  RSEEDNF - HSEHAR -

FUJFILD

Mr. Stanley Sun, CEO of the Group, giving a
speech during the event.

EETRARBEL L EEED P EE -

FP-Z5000 is equipped with the world’s first folded two-axial
rotatable lens, which is developed using the most advanced
FUJINON lens optical technology. Just by switching the lens
up and down, or left and right without rotating the unit, the
projection can be achieved in all directions, either on the wall
and screen or-on ceiling and floor.

FP-z5000 FEifgtth 5 b 58 — 1B 65 A & 3N FUIINONERSE IR B TR
Frireh A shiEsaiRtE | BBASEE L TEAYER  RAETED
FEPBERTERRFERE » FMETUEEERFELREER -
mE A UEXRER R iR EREER

FLFILM FUJINON

6 China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited s8R iESEMEBER QT



The latest camera models and lenses
from the GFX and X-Pro series were also
displayed at the venue.

215 I8 R 7R GFX K X-Pro % 31| & 5 2 95 48 4
kiEwE o

FUJIFILM being the Official Photography and
Imaging Products for Disneyland 10K Weekend 2019
FUJIFILM %% Disneyland 10K Weekend 2019 A 25 EBF K G E R

FUJIFILM was the official photography and imaging products for
Disneyland 10K Weekend 2019 held on 2-3 November 2019 to
provide photography and photofinishing services for the athletes
and capture the precious moments during the exercise, which was
very welcomed.

FUJIFILM 20194 11 A2-3H #IDisneyland 10K Weekend 2019K&IEE
BEEREBER  URESAZTEDRARMBERPRYE B TES
BRENZE—Z - RZEW !

Annual Report  2019/20 EEHERE 7



Events SEE)

FUJF)

FUJIFILM X ZBISESHEHE X100V, X-T200 2

FUJIFILM officially launched two new digital cameras from the “X" series, X100V
and X-T200, in February 2020. Photos taken by various X-Photographers using
the new cameras were exhibited. The vibrant event was visited by the press

FUJIFILM H2020%2 B3 EE XN B MHX A FI2E0 2 #EEFHEHE X100V & X-T200 * &
545 B R B Z{7X-Photographer AR B 2 RNVIBAER - RSEEEF » 5
[

FULFILM

Photos taken by X-Photographers using X100V and X-T200 were exhibited at the venue.
215588 Z{UX-Photographer AX 100V X -T200i0EMERRE -

The newly launched X-T200 comes
in 3 colors.

X-T200 A=A EHES o

X100V is the fifth generation of
the X100 series

X100V2X100Z 5 #5554 ©

8 China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited  FiBRRiESEM EEER AT



Launch Conference of mini LiPlay,
the First FUJIFILM instax Hybrid Instant Camera
FUJIFILM instax B 28R & 3 ENZ B A EH# mini LiPlay 3 fg E

The model was showing the first FUJIFILM
instax hybrid instant camera.

B4R RFUIFILM instaxESEE XA
ENEAEH -

instax launched the first hybrid
digital and the lightest model of
instant camera, mini LiPlay, in
June 2019. The venue was divided
into 5 themes, namely Travel,
Food, Art, Fashion and Beauty,
which diversifies the instax Era!

instaxiR20195 6 AR HELERES
N - HFROWREENFAEE
# mini LiPlay c 35U E@EEE (bR
I, R, B, BE, £8) FFER
B SHENEHRESES T !

J

Launch Conference of mini Link, oA
%" a New FUJIFILM instax Instant Printer

FUJIFILM instax & #7EN 22804 T EN# mini Link ¥

The press showed anticipation and appreciation for the new “Social Interaction”
and “Video Print” functions at the conference.

RN EMEIH G R EE IR RIEFIE R RPGREH o

The model was showing the FUJIFILM instax mini Link, a new
instax printer with interactive functions that comes in Ash
White, Dusky Pink and Dark Denim.

H4E RRERFUIFILM 23 BB IhAEEN AN B T EN#E instax mini
Link » EBERH « #PREE -

Annual Report 2019/20 FEHERE 9
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Brand New Products Review
on T m e

FUJFILM

Large Format
Digital Camera
GFX 100

K5 8 AR 5= 98
HHHEEH GFX 100

Jul 2019

The GFX100 is the latest Large Format interchangeable-lens
digital camera in the GFX series. Equipped with a large format
sensor with 102 million pixels and high-speed image processor
X-Processor 4, it is the world’s first large format digital camera
with phase detection and intelligent high-speed AF. In terms of
movie recording, GFX 100 is also the first camera of the same
class to support image stabilization and 4K/30p video recording.

GFXZR S & B SELarge FormatA 2R SEAAMEFUIIFILM GFX 100 -
BE1E200BEBERABERERRSELBEERX-Processor 4+ B
EEREMAVRIEESEEBHHENRAREEAR - mAHHE
GFX 10078 2 R4 B B X B AR B R R AK/30pS NI EE -

Digital Camera
X-Pro3

R4 55 58 SUE AR
X-Pro3

Oct 2019

X-Pro3 is the latest interchangeable lens digital camera. X-Pro3
comes in three different colors: Black, DURA Black and DURA
Silver. Its camera body is made of titanium alloy, making it lighter
and more durable.

BHAEX-Pro3 AHRFEEHIEEB o X-Pro3 RE=ZETRNKIE
¥ 28152 E - [DURA] 2&F [DURA] RE - EYIRIA L#KE
SERMEL - EEEMA

Digital Camera
X-A7

E XS ERiCE B ks )
HEEIEH X-A7

Oct 2019

X-A7 camera features a 3.5-inch 16:9 high brightness LCD
touchscreen. It weighs only 320g. The camera further improves
the portrait mode, combined with the autofocus function
detecting faces and eyes, enabling easy and accurate focus as
well as smoothing and softening of the skin tone. At the same
time, it supports 4K video recording.

X-ATHEERA3.5016:9 BB AELCDBIERNBERE - E8E453209 °
HARERCAGER - FERIBREDEDHERE - ERERYEN
FENEEH - BTN AEIKEBRIRRE

Digital Compact
Camera X100V

= AR B B SIS AR
X100V

Feb 2020

X100V is the fifth generation of the X100 series, equipped with a
newly designed 23mmF2 lens and adopting the latest generation
of X-Trans™ CMOS 4 sensor and processing engine X-Processor 4.
It features the uniqueness of FUJIFILM in color reproduction
technology, which allows image visualization with ultra-high
quality.

XT100VRXT100RFI MK » B2 HRETM23mmP2 S E IR A & 5
—REIX-Trans™ CMOS 4RFERE LR X-Processor 453288 - £EELTH
BHNBEERRN 2ERSRENEBIHER -

Digital Camera
X-T200
BB A Al HA SR 5A
HASAAM X-T200

Feb 2020

The compact digital camera X-T200 is also newly launched! It
features a newly designed EVF, fast face detection for autofocus,
and is capable of shooting 24.2 megapixels images at 8 FPS and
recording 4K UHD videos, making your creation look great and
professional.

RIMAIBAMX-T200 R 2 &5 | S AE 2 MREHEVF - RE
ISRl B EEE - BEALI8 FPSHEE HI24208 B EMNHBUR &
BAK UHDE Fr » B RMBERINEEWHNAMEE NHB A -

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited s RRiESEM EEAR A T
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instax mini LiPlay

Jun 2019

mini LiPlay is the first hybrid digital and the lightest model
of instant camera in the instax series. Two new functions are
added to the model. Firstly, it can convert sound recordings into
QR codes and print on photos. Secondly, it supports remote
shooting, which can be achieved by simply connecting your
smartphone with Bluetooth, allowing you to capture a moment
anytime and anywhere!

mini LiPlay RinstaxZ5IEEEHESNEE - REGHAKFNE
B o MEIIAE - LUSE S FIEIRRQR codeEN M LH » B —
HINEELVEIE NG 0 RENETEEBEEEMTUEENE - BRE
B B b B2 20 ERAR |

instax mini Toy Story
Instant film
instax mini Toy Story B1SZE1E JEM

Aug 2019

beauty is a science

ASTALIFT

D-UV Clear
White Solution
SPF50+ PA++++

Apr 2019

Product with the highest UV protection in the
ASTALIFT series

The new exclusive “D-UV Guard+"” formula

effectively blocked UVA1 with the longest wavelength. The
extendable sunscreen coats the cracks caused by facial expressions
and movements during speeches and avoids UV penetration through
the skin via the cracks.

ASTALIFTR S & = AR BIB5 B = & |

HBHEAMD-UV Guard+ B A BEREEZRKRRIKUVAL - BIE
fER 1A Y B R A 2 R R 1 T R S T R D T R OB RS AR - IR

IMRUERBEANE °

FUJFILM

instax

instax mini LINK

Oct 2019

In addition to the options of 27 photo frames, instant printer
mini Link can also be used for video printing and can connect to
up to five mobiles simultaneously for Party Print!

mini Link BN BN A 4T EDMERR B 27 AEAE R IB A - IR AT (RS
RFE 1 2 E B A0 F #4EParty Print |

FBIENK A6

instax square
Star-illumination Instant film

BNSZBENATEM

Eﬁa

instax square =

Jun 2019

JELLY AQUARYSTA

Oct 2019

The ceramide in the new JELLY AQUARYSTA is of higher
concentration and more penetrating. With the new botanical
ingredient “uncaria gambir extract” and in the dual approach of
“Supplementing from the outside” and “Re-building from the
inside”, the “foundation of skin” is restructured by the double
ceramide, which gives beautiful strong skin with softness and
firmness radiating from the inside and rebuilds youthful glowing
skin with elasticity.

RHAVELLY AQUARYSTARERZBEENMBEEEREES - 28
& MAEMF R ABEEZR ] (OMET) « (RER) - NEEHEE
EEERMS2H | HARBRRES - SBMRANIE - E2F
BEIREM - KB - FEI ©
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Brand Advertisements Review
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Awards and Corporate Social Responsibility
RIERGFEHEEE

Awards
4218

@ ICFeve —

B MR BHIA

L)

DCFever The Best Photographic Product
Awards 2019 “Best Professional Digital
Camera Awards — FUJIFILM GFX 100"

DCFeverfR ERE S/ M R 882019 [ BREEER
BIRSARME R SE — FUJIFILM GFX 100

“10th Your Choice @ Focus 2019 Hong
Kong White Collar’'s Favourite Brand” by
YourChoice Award 2019

[Z5+f&@Your Choice @ Focus 2019 FEEFH
BYEREE MM K8 [YourChoice Award 2019

Corporate Social
Responsibility
hEHEER

4

The Group established the “Social Responsibility Team”
in 2019, and visited Kwun Tong Methodist Social
Service in December to express care for the families
in need in Kwun Tong district, bringing Christmas joy
and warmth to the society

EEMR2019F 5K Ul tt & E £ @B ] - Social
Responsibility Team - W12 B EF EEFEHELS
REE  SBNATHLCBEEMEERE » AR
BB  SEHARRE |

-

CHINA-HONGKONG PHOTO GROVT

Social Responsibiity

Greening For The Chest 2019/2020
RERBDmETE 2019/2020

Annual Report 2019/20 FEHERE



Chairman'’s Statement
EFERE

“We are confident that the
qualities encapsulated in
our Vision, Mission and Core
Values will all be fundamental
in helping us surge ahead once
the current headwinds have
eased.”

[ IS - RE B ATRY A
BIRZ=ZEHER MR
= EwRZOEEESH
BEERAPREMBEL @A
MR - |

L}

Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis
Chairman
BRmiEL
*E

CHKP

The Group has just completed one of the most challenging financial
years in its history, with economic, political, social and public
health problems all combining to deliver an unprecedented blow to
businesses in Hong Kong and around the world. The severity of these
challenges intensified as the year went on, but even by the outset,
the on-going Sino-US trade dispute, equity market fluctuations and
renminbi volatility had already created an inauspicious economic
environment that dampened consumer sentiment and pulled down
the Group’s sales. Social unrest in Hong Kong acutely disrupted
business from July 2019 onwards; this was followed by the arrival of
coronavirus pandemic (“COVID-19") in January 2020, which led to
travel restrictions, social distancing measures and job losses. All these
events depressed spending and disrupted shopping habits further
and further, leading to a major drop in the Group's sales in the last
quarter.

This is the background against which many companies, both large
and small, have struggled to survive. The Group is not immune to
these challenges, but fortunately it has a number of qualities that
have enabled it to adapt and ride out the storm. We benefit from
having many globally renowned brand names in our product stable
and a wide reputation for high-quality goods and services. We are in
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a solid financial position and have a large and loyal customer base.
Our relationships with our landlords and suppliers are positive, and
our loyal, hardworking staff have never flagged in their commitment.
All these factors have provided us with a solid platform upon which
to combat the economic downturn.

On a practical level, we have been continually reviewing and analysing
our business performances and responding very quickly to market
changes where appropriate. For example, we streamlined our retail
store network by closing underperforming stores, moved fast to roll
out trending, high-margin products, and directed more resources to
our wholesale and online retail platforms and delivery services at a
time when more and more customers have gone digital to shop.

In terms of cost control, we have taken a very stringent approach
to keeping expenses down. The moment we recognised the
deteriorating situation, we moved to embrace more cost-effective
marketing strategies, and we sat down with landlords to discuss
rental concessions or reductions for lease renewals. We also turned
to our service providers to negotiate discounts. All of these moves
have proven effective. In addition, we stepped up our stock and
credit management efforts, working hard to clear aged stock and
keep inventory levels reasonable. Special attention was placed on our
receivables to ensure we could maintain a healthy cashflow.

To further manage costs, | and other senior personnel voluntarily
agreed to take 20 per cent salary cuts from March 2020, while staff
have been asked to take unpaid leave for between two and four days
each month until the situation is under control. We are all in this
together, and it is this sense of working together to find solutions
that has always given the Group its strength.

Despite the downturn, we remain convinced of the value of new
business opportunities. Our new imaging operations at Hong Kong
Disneyland Resort, which began in July 2019, have been affected by
the events of the year, especially after Hong Kong Disneyland closed
for several months from 26 January 2020. Nevertheless, the business
started strongly, and we believe that once the pandemic is under
control, this business line will be able to contribute valuable revenue
to the Group gradually.

Last year, the Group celebrated 50 years of achievement. This year, as
we stepped into our second half-century, we felt the time was right
to reshape our Group's Vision, Mission and Core Values, which we
recently unveiled. The timing could not have been better, as these
newly shaped aspirations have been crucial in helping us respond
effectively to the difficult times we face. We are confident that the
qualities encapsulated in our Vision, Mission and Core Values — such
as focusing on our customers, embracing new ideas, improving
people’s lifestyles and enhancing our home here in Hong Kong -
will all be fundamental in helping us surge ahead once the current
headwinds have eased.

I would like to thank the many individuals and other stakeholders who
have aided and supported us on our journey during the past year.
Special thanks are also due to the Group's dedicated staff, who have
made brave personal sacrifices to help us achieve our essential cost-
cutting goals. With this support behind us, | am confident the Group
can look forward to bright times ahead.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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OVERALL REVENUE AND RESULTS

The events of the year under review — including the on-going Sino-US
trade dispute, social unrest in Hong Kong and the global coronavirus
pandemic (“COVID-19") — have all had dramatic effects on Hong
Kong and caused massive disruptions to its retail sector. This can
be seen vividly from statistics issued by Hong Kong’s Census and
Statistics Department on 5 May 2020, which showed that the value of
total retail sales in March 2020 decreased by 42.0% compared with
the same month in 2019. One reason for this has been the drying up
of shoppers from the Mainland and elsewhere. Since January 2020,
Hong Kong's tourism numbers have gone into freefall as borders have
closed and travel restrictions have been imposed. Statistics from the
Hong Kong Tourism Board show that daily visitor arrivals in February
2020 fell to just 3,000 against 130,000 in the lead-up to the Lunar
New Year holidays in January, while tourist numbers for March were
down a remarkable 98.6% year on year.

These unprecedented events, combined with turbulence in equity
markets and the volatility of the renminbi, cast a long shadow over
consumer sentiment and actual spending and inevitably impacted the
Group's performance for the year. Overall, the Group’s consolidated
turnover amounted to HK$880 million for 2019/20, a drop of 8.2%
from HK$959 million last year. This fall in turnover can be tracked
to weaker sales from July 2019 as the social movement in Hong
Kong began to disrupt the mobility of local residents and affect retail
sales across the board. Nevertheless, the Group was initially able to
manage the situation well. It recorded only a 0.6% drop in sales for
the first half of the year due to strong growth from its photofinishing
and imaging segment, which mainly serves local residents, and
additional revenue generated by its new imaging operations at Hong
Kong Disneyland Resort. In addition, the Group's efforts of recent
years to develop its wholesale business and online retail platforms
bore valuable fruit in the first half as these operations made strong
contributions to help counterbalance the fall in retail store sales.
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However, October and November were marked by an acute escalation
of social tensions as frequent confrontations and blocked transport
routes severely compromised local residents’ ability to shop. Like
most other retailers, some of the Group’s stores had to reduce their
opening hours or even close temporarily. Although tensions eased
somewhat towards the end of November, and the Christmas season
boosted sales across all segments, the Group’s revenue for the third
quarter still fell by 4.9% year on year.

Many people were expecting an economic rebound in the first months
of 2020. Instead, the COVID-19 outbreak in January hit China and
then Hong Kong before going on to devastate the global economy.
Locally, its first impact was the large-scale loss of mainland Chinese
visitors and other tourists. Following that, Hong Kong tightened its
own public health protection measures — suspending schools, social
facilities and business activities, imposing global travel restrictions, and
introducing tough social distancing measures. The result was a major
dampening of consumer demand and loss of consumer confidence.
Unsurprisingly, this directly affected the Group’s various businesses,
causing a year-on-year fall of 26.4% in sales for the last quarter,
which in turn contributed to a decline of 8.2% in overall sales for the
whole year. The Group’s gross profit dropped by 10.2% to HK$195
million as compared to HK$217 million last year while the Group's
gross profit margin remained steady at 22.2% (2019: 22.7%).

The drastic decline in sales and gross profit led to losses at some
of the Group’s retail stores. Therefore, in accordance with Hong
Kong Accounting Standard 36, impairment losses of HK$8.2 million
was recorded for this year which apply to the Group's retail store
assets (including property, plant and equipment and the right-of-use
assets). The provision for impairment losses is a non-cash accounting
treatment, and therefore has no impact on the Group’s cash position
for the year.

Setting aside the impairment losses and the decline in sales and
gross profit, the Group's loss for the year was also exaggerated by
the valuation loss recorded for the Group’s investment properties
following a weaker property market. The valuation loss recorded this
year was HK$3.6 million as against a valuation gain of HK$8.9 million
last year.
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Net loss attributable to shareholders was HK$29.1 million this year
(2019: HK$46.7 million, including an impairment loss on amount due
from an associate of HK$32.7 million). If the non-cash accounting
treatment items including the impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assets of HK$8.2 million this year and the
impairment loss on amount due from an associate of HK$32.7 million
last year, as well as the valuation differences of investment properties
of both current and last year as mentioned above were excluded, the
net loss attributable to shareholders would have been HK$17.3 million
for the year and HK$22.9 million for last year.

In response to the downtrend of sales and gross profit, the Group
had taken a very stringent approach to keeping expenses down.
Total expenses for the year was down by 4.6% or HK$11.7 million
as compared to last year. These cost-control measures included
a reduction in marketing and advertising expenses, which was
achieved by reducing TV advertising and instead adopting lower-
cost promotional and marketing initiatives such as customer-focused
seminars and direct product promotions via social media. In addition,
the Group closed six underperforming stores under the Wai Ming
Electrical and Fotomax brands and focused instead on maximising
returns through its wholesale and online platforms. Other cost-
saving initiatives included reviewing product performances and
placing greater emphasis on more profitable, high-margin items, and
negotiating with landlords, service providers and business partners for
rental and fee concessions and discounts.

The Board of Directors does not recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year.

MERCHANDISING

Photographic Products

The Group’s digital camera and lenses segment was the hardest-hit of
all its business units this year as demand for non-essential and luxury
items became one of the first victims of the economic downturn. With
a 16.5% drop in sales of digital cameras and lenses in the first half of
the year, sales were already weak. However, the decline grew steeper
in the second half of the year as the social movement escalated and
tourist numbers fell, which further dampened consumer sentiment. In
addition, the restrictions on outbound travel from Hong Kong since
the outbreak of COVID-19 had an impact on demand for cameras,
since travellers commonly purchase high-quality cameras to record
their overseas holiday experiences. Sales dropped 40.4% in the second
half of the year, contributing to a full-year decrease of 28.5%.

The timing of this year’'s product launches exacerbated the decline
in sales. In the first half of the year, there were fewer new product
launches compared with the previous year. By contrast, two premium
models were introduced in the second half of the year: the FUJIFILM
X-Pro3 in October 2019, aimed at the premium mirrorless digital
camera market; and the FUJIFILM X100V in February 2020, targeted
at the premium compact digital camera market. Unfortunately, these
exceptional cameras only became available at the height of the social
unrest and the response to COVID-19, respectively. In addition, our
reduced spending on marketing activities meant that these new
models had to be promoted in a much more low-key manner than
usual. Consequently, digital camera models such as these, which
normally would have attracted strong interest, were not as prominent
in the public eye.
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In May 2019, the Group launched its star product, the FUJIFILM
GFX100. This advanced, large-format sensor camera for professionals
retails for approximately US$10,000 and has won high praise from
reviewers and overseas users. Despite the already dampened economic
environment and increasing social tensions in Hong Kong, market
demand for this product was strong and its sales was satisfactory
given the adverse circumstances. In addition, two entry-level cameras
were launched during the year, the FUJIFILM X-A7 and FUJIFILM X-T200.
These models further enriched the entire FUJIFILM digital camera
product line, creating a spectrum of products from entry level to
professional to suit every photography enthusiast.

Sales of instant cameras and film fell 17.3% year on year. The
decrease was relatively evenly distributed across both halves of the
year, with sales dropping 16.2% in the first half of the year and
18.5% in the second half of the year. Parallel-imported products have
remained a drag on the market, although the appreciation of the yen,
particularly in the first half of the year, helped bridge the gap with
the competition.

New instax cameras launched this year included the instax mini
LiPlay, a mini film printer and camera, and the mini LINK, a mini
film printer that produces real instax prints plus the ability to print
multiple images together in “fun mode”, a print-from-video feature
and motion control function. The difficult social environment meant
that promotional activities for these products assumed a relatively
low profile this year. However, the worldwide trend for instant
photos products remains strong, and the Group believes that carefully
targeted promotions focusing on the uniqueness of its new products
should further boost sales down the track.

Skincare Products

The Group’s skincare business started slowly with first-half of the
year sales dropping 8.2% year on year, which was partly due to a
weak retail environment caused by the beginning of the social unrest
in Hong Kong. However, the Group put together a series of strong
promotional packages for the Christmas season and followed this up
with free deliveries of online orders from February 2020 in response
to the pandemic. These initiatives, along with new product launches,
helped improve sales in the second half of the year for a full-year
drop of just 5.5%.

The Group's skincare business is largely online, which was beneficial
in countering both the social unrest and the social distancing of the
pandemic as consumers increasingly moved to online shopping. During
the year, the percentage of online sales to total sales of this segment
rose a further 5.7% over last year to a record high of 53.9%.
Meanwhile, sales at consignment counters fell 5.7% to 28.3% of total
sales, which was largely due to department stores having to close
early or even shut completely at the height of the social tensions.
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Product success stories included the Group’s Collagen Drinks series,
which continued to perform well and was the segment’s number one
bestseller during the year. Another strong-selling product series was
the D-UV Clear White Solution SPF50+ PA++++ sunblock launched in
April 2019. This product as well as White Essence Infilt both received
boosts after being named the “No.1 2019 Grand Prix Whitening
Technology” by MAQUIA, the influential Japanese beauty and fashion
magazine. Another big seller was Jelly Aquarysta, which was upgraded
with the world’s smallest” “w human-type nano ceramide”, which has
reinforced penetrating and moisturising functions.

A number of marketing and promotional activities carried out during
the year helped maintain steady sales and capture public interest
in the Group’s beauty and skincare range. These included special
promotions for star items, a drive to recruit new members to the
ASTALIFT membership programme and the offer of free delivery
on orders placed during the pandemic period. We also focused on
social media engagement to win new customers, for example by
offering samples to those who registered and subscribed via Facebook
Messenger — a move that enabled us to increase our Facebook
interactions.

Consumer Electronic Products and Household Appliances

This business is divided into a retail arm, which contributed 63.7%
of segment sales this year, and a wholesale arm, which contributed
36.3%. One underperforming retail store under the Wai Ming
Electrical brand was closed during the year. As at the end of March
2020, the Group was operating 13 retail stores under the AV Life,
Life Digital and Wai Ming Electrical names. Overall, retail sales for
the segment fell 8.1% year on year. Like-for-like store sales remained
steady with only a slight drop of 0.1% even there were challenges
from social unrest and pandemic this year as the products sold in the
stores are mostly essential household appliances.

Demand for essential household appliances such as household TVs and
audio systems, refrigerators, washing machines and air conditioners
was not significantly affected by the social unrest and the pandemic,
even though store opening hours had to be shortened. Customers
were generally willing either to visit a store in a safer location or move
their shopping activity online. The steady sales can also be attributed
to the Group's long-term efforts to build strong reputations for its
brands. Group brands are now widely known as trusted specialists
in high-end consumer electronic products and household appliances,
with stores that feature knowledgeable and well-trained staff, highly
professional visual and audio testing environments, and helpful and
effective merchandise displays. However, sales at the Group’s Life
Digital store at IFC were more significantly affected because most of
the items sold there are non-essential, high-end products, and the
customer base tends to be mostly expats and tourists, visits by whom
fell dramatically over the year.

FUJIFILM Japan Research Result as of 2 July 2019
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The Group's long-planned online shopping platform, avlife.com.hk,
had its soft launch in July 2019 and its full launch in November 2019.
The timing was good as it came just when consumers started moving
toward online shopping, a trend that grew even stronger when
the pandemic struck in early 2020. This trend also benefitted the
Group’s wholesale business, which increased its sales to its wholesales
customers which sell their products via various online platforms such
as Price.com. Because of these developments, wholesale sales for
this segment were up by 28.2% year on year. To keep momentum
going, the Group took on new staff to manage the wholesale and
online sales platforms to ensure that price adjustments are made on
time and that customer enquiries and after-sales services are delivered
effectively.

The Group continued to roll out new models in response to market
changes and developments, and to increase the variety of its product
ranges in order to tap into the needs of an ever-more-diverse
customer base. New highlight items introduced during the year
included Samsung and LG 8K OLED TVs, which were supported by
successful large-scale marketing events.

B-to-B Commercial and Professional Audio and Visual (“AV")
Products

The Group has worked hard to build its B-to-B branding of
commercial and professional AV products in recent years, and this
year it revamped its website. As a result of these efforts, the Group
has now emerged as one of the leading providers of B-to-B services
for commercial and professional AV products in Hong Kong. The
segment achieved a sales increase of 5.4% for the first half of the
year, but like many others, it was soon impacted by the social unrest
in Hong Kong and the outbreak of COVID-19, both of which caused
many AV solutions projects to be put on hold as businesses dealt with
the aftereffects. Overall, the segment ended the year with a year-on-
year drop of 4.2% in sales.

Key products sold within the segment were projectors, monitors
and LED TVs. Hospitality TV sales rose 52.1%, mainly due to a rush
of sales in the first half as hotels quickly embraced this innovation.
Sales of frame TVs fell 49.8%, reflecting gradually declining demand
following the strong buzz generated by their launch two years ago.
Commercial TV sales fell 15.5% while monitor sales rose 3.5%.

Projectors remained the number one seller in the segment at 27.1%
of total sales, although sales fell 9.6% as compared to last year as
other advanced LED display technologies continued to take over the
functions once offered by traditional projectors. The Group has been
addressing this technology shift by carefully managing stock to avoid
accumulating older items, and it has been quick to roll out new
models as they come onto the market. In January 2020, the Group
was granted the distributorship rights for the FUJIFILM PROJECTOR
FP-Z5000, an innovative new model that can be set up in areas with
space constraints that a conventional projector cannot. It can also
throw images in directions where other projectors are unable. It offers
powerful benefits for a market like Hong Kong, where operators
typically have to work with small spaces. Launched late in the year,
the Group expects to see encouraging results from this important new
model in the coming year.
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A website revamp during the year gave the segment a more
prominent public face. The Group also carried out a targeted eDM
campaign to expand its potential client database. In addition, the
Group collaborated with respected dealers to promote high-potential
products. One such event was a seminar organised in conjunction
with Tom Lee Music in May 2019 to promote Roland video switcher
and mixer products to resellers. In January 2020, a major product
launch event for the breakthrough FUJIFILM PROJECTOR FP-Z5000
attracted many potential customers.

SERVICING

Photographic and Technical Services

Fotomax sales dropped 8.6% year on year, but as with other areas
of the Group’s business, this was once again a tale of two halves. In
fact, Fotomax enjoyed a satisfactory performance, achieving 3.4%
growth in the first half of the year despite the social disruptions
since July, which forced some stores to close periodically. However,
the social unrest became more intense in the third quarter — severely
disrupting transport and shopping, and the outbreak of COVID-19 in
January 2020 had a severe impact on Fotomax sales, dragging them
to a record low. The suspension of schools and businesses significantly
reduced demand for document solution and ID photo-taking services,
while travel restrictions and social distancing measures brought
photofinishing and ID photo sales to a standstill. Unsurprisingly, total
sales for the third quarter and fourth quarter fell 7.9% and 34.8%
respectively year on year.

Despite this, the Group's Fotomax ID photo-taking services (which
contributed 36.2% of the total sales of this segment) performed
relatively well over the course of the year. Overall ID photo-taking
sales were comparable with those of last year, falling just 0.4%. This
was driven in particular by Fotomax's strong reputation for high-
quality offerings, including its popular professional photo-taking
rooms. In the important period leading up to Christmas, ID photo-
taking sales were up 14.6% year on year before dropping 47.0% in
the final quarter.

Demand for photofinishing services dropped as outdoor activities
and travel declined in the second half of the year, with year-on-
year sales falling 15.3% by value and 24.9% by volume. The fall in
print volume was primarily due to the social unrest and pandemic,
which caused decreases of 27.0% in the third quarter and 38.1% in
the fourth. However, the Group’s document solution, DocuXpress,
continued to perform strongly and expand its market share due to
its high quality and easy accessibility through the Fotomax store
network. Overall DocuXpress sales for the year registered an increase
of 3.7%; excluding the fourth quarter, overall DocuXpress sales saw
around 10.5% growth compared to last year. However, the effects
of COVID-19 on schools and students, who are key DocuXpress
customers, caused sales to fall by 15.6% in the fourth quarter and
dragged down overall results for the year.

FANBURESHIBHIABRFERERR -
EETRERFAMGEMENERTH  UBRER
WEEHEE - L SEEIELETE
B HESBINER HF-—BIFBHER
2019FSAEABRAETERNER BOHED
HERolandE FYI B AREGEEM ° 12020
F180 BEIFERFUIFILMIZ 8 #FP-Z5000 5
HHAREEREMIBRI TRSIEEEE -

AR5

R R B TR

REENVHEERF T 8.6% @ BEEBHMER
EE K ERETRHFESY - BEATARH
RUEEeE  BENIB/EEHENR B8
REEXEREHRE > EL¥FHE34%ER -8
EZZELSHRHRYN BEXERERE
¥ > ™M20205 1 A HICOVID-19%% 3 ¥ 1R [B] 32 1Y 85
EREARNE  EREAZNELEML - BRER
REBEBRSXMEBRBZRBHBFABERES
RANE TR T bR 38 PR 1) B2 4k 32 s B 2 0P ED R 58
FHEFEEERTA - FHAR  F=FTEMNE
NEENBHEREFOR TR 9% K34.8% °

EAMY > EENWREEZHFEAFBERSE
(DA EE2%) E2FRREYR
o BEBHAMFNBHEEREAFHALRT
B04% - ERHNBEIAREBERMHELEER
WOE BREASBINEEHREEZE - &
ZEASNEEZHE  BHMEFABHEESER
FIRFA146% > BEEWNEES T HK47.0% °

THEEWNFEINFBRERBERD  EHENREE
RTH REHEBETHKIS3%  HEAT
(%249% - THIHETREIEHALEHEFNER
B SE=ZRENZENHEDBITKR27.0% K
38.1% o BE WL - RE W DocuXpress 3 H R
FRESREXESAREBEXEHAEHEFERAN
B FAERBERFRY  UEATBEEE
DocuXpress® FEESIHETRIRS3. 7% MG M ; FREE
TUZE 5 » DocuXpressZE S SHERERE KX FHLL 215
10.5% R o AM  COVID- 19U BRKEEBLE(EH
DocuXpressEZREE)NWHESENEENHE T K
15.6% » HBREFERPEE o

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited s8R iESEM EBER QT



Demand for imaging gift items — which are non-essential purchases
for most — was generally weak throughout the year, especially when
consumers began tightening their belts as the year went on. Overall
sales dropped 13.5% year on year. Sales were particularly affected by
a significant 30.8% drop in the fourth quarter, which is traditionally a
peak season for the sale of New Year’s and Valentines’ Day imaging
items. Paper gift items such as personalised calendars and notebooks
decreased 20.2% and other gift items declined 4.1% year on year.
Sales of the always-popular photobooks fell 10.9%.

During the year, Fotomax closed eight underperforming stores and
opened three new ones in promising locations for a total of 58 stores
as at the end of March 2020. Full-year like-for-like store sales showed
a drop of 1.9%.

Some of the Group’s normal promotional and marketing activities
were postponed during the year in light of the social tensions.
However, the Group proceeded with its regular seasonal promotions
with licensed characters and continued to collaborate with renowned
online platforms like HKTVmall and HOKO Buy on promotional sales.

In July 2019, the Group took on a 65% majority shareholding stake in
a new venture providing imaging operations at Hong Kong Disneyland
Resort, including Hong Kong Disneyland and its related hotels and
facilities. Full details were given in the Interim Report 2019. Under
normal circumstances, we would expect this venture to perform well,
harnessing synergies with the Group’s high-end photo-taking and
photofinishing experiences and providing a new outlet to promote its
FUJIFILM and Fotomax brands. Unfortunately, after a good start, the
business was severely affected by the social unrest in Hong Kong and
the coronavirus pandemic. Visitors to the resort began to fall from
July onwards as social tensions increased, Mainland tourists dwindled
and group tours from the Mainland were curtailed. The outbreak of
COVID-19 was even more damaging, causing Hong Kong Disneyland
to close temporarily from 26 January 2020. Operations resumed on
18 June 2020, but in light of expectations that it may take some time
before the park attendance returns to normal, the Group anticipates
that its imaging operations there will require patience before they
begin to deliver results as hoped.

Professional AV Advisory and Custom Design and Installation
Services

Although the performance of this segment slowed in this year
compared to the rapid expansion of previous years, it nevertheless
achieved solid sales growth of 8.5% during the first half of the year.
The outbreak of COVID-19 since January 2020, however, delayed
many projects at a time that is traditionally peak season for project
completions, typically lasting up to the end of March. This was due
to factors such as tightened budgets by customers — especially in
the hotel and commercial sectors — the suspension of deliveries
of products and parts from mainland China due to the lockdown
there, and the temporary closure of offices that made on-site work
impossible. As a result, usually strong fourth-quarter sales dropped
51.3% compared to the same period last year and caused full-year
sales to decline 18.2%. The Group expects that some of the delayed
projects will be resumed once the pandemic is under control.
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OUTLOOK

In the near term, the economic outlook for Hong Kong is full of
uncertainties. Until the pandemic is fully under control, both locally
and worldwide, it is impossible to be sure how the economy will
respond. But as announced by the Financial Secretary of the HKSAR
on 29 April 2020, the real GDP growth forecast for Hong Kong in
2020 had been revised down to a range of -4% to -7% in view of
the severe global economic impact of the coronavirus. Although there
are signs of COVID-19 easing in Hong Kong, the future effects of
this cannot be predicted with confidence until an effective vaccine
has been developed and approved. In addition, although the social
unrest of 2019 has taken a backseat due to the pandemic, it has not
disappeared. These factors mean that it is likely business in Hong
Kong will remain difficult in the short term, with prospects of a deep
economic recession and a significant deterioration of the labour
market on the horizon.

The Group’s advantages are its reputation for high quality as well as
its diversified products and services. The Group expects sales to rise
again once the pandemic is under control. Its new imaging operations
at Hong Kong Disneyland Resort promise to generate additional
revenue. At the same time, demand for its AV solutions should
resume — first in the non-commercial sector, as the Government seeks
to stimulate the economy by injecting resources into infrastructure.

With its solid experience and stable financial background, the Group
remains optimistic in this difficult time. It believes it can and will
overcome the current headwinds, and it has a clear direction in mind
to do so. It will lean on its core values, seek to enhance its focus on
improving profitability, become more customer-centric and achieve
operational excellence at every level.

One major strategy for enhancing its core values of customer-centric
focus and service excellence is to embrace the online shopping
model while at the same time providing more tailor-made services
to customers. The Group plans to devote more resources to the
development of an effective online shopping platform in response to
the change of shopping patterns. To enhance online user-friendliness
and the customer experience, it will revamp its Fotomax website in
2020/21 to provide users with a more attractive layout and better
ordering flow, along similar lines to the successful AV Life website
revamp that took place in November 2019. The Group will prioritise
the security and encryption of personal data so that consumers can
be fully confident about shopping on its websites. It will explore ways
to improve its pre-sales and after-sales services — such as by enabling
customers to communicate directly with salespersons about their
product needs via online chat or WhatsApp messaging — to create
an even more personalised and hassle-free shopping experience.
The database of existing customers will also be studied for ways to
develop more customer-centric products and services that can further
enhance consumers’ lifestyles.
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The Group is committed to maintaining its forward momentum, and
it will continue to explore new, high-potential product and business
opportunities that offer good long-term growth prospects. In this
aim, it is supported by its long-established relationship with FUJIFILM
Japan — one of the world’s great product innovators, especially in
the areas of digital products and imaging. In January 2020, the
Group was awarded the distributorship rights for the innovative
FUJIFILM PROJECTOR FP-Z5000 in Hong Kong. Projectors are used
widely by theatres, offices and educational institutions. They also
offer applications for digital signage at commercial facilities, product
promotion in business showrooms, and design projection at art
galleries and museums, which has recently led to increased demand.
In Hong Kong, there is a need for projectors that can be used for
effective advertising within limited spaces, utilising walls and ceilings
alike. The features of the FP-Z5000 are very well suited to Hong
Kong's small spaces, which is why the Group believes the projector
will receive a warm reception and help the Group expand even more
into this huge market. Meanwhile, with capital expenditure in the
commercial sector expected to fall as businesses tighten their belts,
the Group’s AV custom design and installation segment plans to focus
on more non-commercial tenders and maintenance contracts.

The Group has a number of exciting new products under different
segments that are due to be rolled out in the coming year, which it
believes have strong potential even in a weaker market. A number
of new cameras are in the pipeline, including the FUJIFILM X-T4, due
to be launched in the first quarter, which offers in-body stabilisation,
faster shooting, improved autofocus and a larger battery compared
to the already very capable FUJIFILM XT-3. New skincare products to
be launched include new D-UV Clear Aqua Day Serum and White
Emulsion, a skin protection product that also provides valuable
skincare effects. The Group will also explore the possibility of
collaborating with various external online sales platforms to expand its
sales channels, especially for promotional items and special packages.

The Group believes it has arrived at its optimal number of stores,
both for maintaining a good balance between cost and return and
maximising brand presence. It expects to keep its total number of
stores at 58 for Fotomax, and 13 for the AV Life, Life Digital and Wai
Ming Electrical brands combined. However, management will continue
to analyse individual store performances carefully and adjust store
strategies appropriately. In the coming year, the Group plans to close
its AV Life store at IFC and replace it with a store at the prestigious
Prince’s Building nearby. Occupying a larger space at a much lower
cost, the new Prince’s Building store will tap into the property’s
affluent clientele with a first-class operation featuring a professional
showroom displaying high-end AV products such as the Bowers &
Wilkins audio systems. Elsewhere, upon lease renewal at every one of
its stores, the Group will continue to negotiate with landlords for the
best possible deals to ensure the best returns for its stores.
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Some short-term sacrifices have been necessary to ensure the Group
remains in a position to ride out the storm. Believing in the need to
lead by example, top management have voluntarily offered to take
a 20% cut in their salaries until the situation becomes more stable.
Staff have also been asked to contribute to the Group’s future
wellbeing by taking between two and four days of unpaid leave each
month. In addition to these internal cuts, the Group is negotiating
hard with landlords, suppliers and various service providers to
achieve rental and fee discounts. Meanwhile, the Group is reviewing
workflows and identifying and removing unnecessary expenses. These
stringent, proactive cost control efforts are collectively contributing to
a stronger, leaner, more efficient business.

CORPORATE CULTURE

This year, the Group reviewed its stated corporate vision, mission
and core values as a way of sharpening its identity and giving it even
greater focus on what it aims to achieve in the years ahead.

Vision To make where we operate a better place.

Mission To enhance the quality of life of our customers by

providing quality products and services

Core Values Customer-centric; curious to learn; open-minded;
collaborative; accountable; honest with open
communications; sustainable

Backing these ideals is an existing corporate culture that emphasises
strong, transparent and accountable governance, including regular,
independent reviews. In line with our core values of being ‘customer-
centric’ and ‘collaborative’, we remain committed to developing
and maintaining positive, human-centred relationships with all our
stakeholders, including business partners, suppliers, customers and
staff.

STAFF DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

In this fast-changing world, the Group believes in the importance of
training and skills-updating at every level, from management to retail
staff and administrative support. This year, the Group commissioned
an external business consultant to carry out an alignment exercise for
management and other senior personnel to ensure that the Group’s
revamped vision, mission and core values were fully understood and
implemented. Internally, essential training was provided at various
levels, including technical training on new accounting standards,
product training, and soft skills training. Business evaluation and
analysis training was also provided for managers. Some staff were
encouraged to sign up for relevant classes run by external providers
through fee sponsorships. More details of staff development and
training can be found in the Environmental, Social and Governance
("ESG") Report on pages 45 and 46.
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SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

In last year, the Group set up an Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG") Committee, headed by the Chief Operating
Officer. The remit of the ESG Committee is to support the Board
of Directors in executing ESG plans that will benefit the Group’s
stakeholders. Areas that the ESG Committee will specifically consider
include use of resources, environmental protection and conservation,
employment, health and safety, development and training, labour
standards, supply chain management, product responsibility, anti-
corruption measures and community investment.

During the year, the Group set up a Social Responsibility (SR) Team.
The SR Team is designed to better coordinate the activities of the
Group’s volunteer team, which commits resources to community
charity and social care events. During the year, the SR Team
collaborated with Kwun Tong Methodist Social Service Center to host
a Christmas party for approximately 80 children from low-income
groups and their families, bringing warmth and happiness to this
vulnerable part of the community during the festive season. More
details of the Group’s community investment initiatives can be found
in the ESG Report on pages 49 and 50.
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Executive Directors’ Information

HITESER

DR. SUN TAI LUN DENNIS
CHAIRMAN

Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis, BBS, JP, aged 69, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company on 6 July 1994 and was then
appointed as the Chairman of the Company on 31 March 1996. He
is responsible for the overall management and strategic business
development of the Group. He joined the management team of
the Group in 1976 and has over 40 years of experience in the
photographic products industry. Dr. Sun is currently a member of the
nomination committee and a member of the remuneration committee
of the Company.

Dr. Sun is the Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Photo Marketing
Association, Life Honorary Advisor of the Photographic Society of
Hong Kong, and Vice Patron of The Community Chest of Hong Kong.

Dr. Sun is the Honorary President of The Hong Kong Management
Association. He is also an independent non-executive director of
Hanison Construction Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 896), a company
listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). Dr. Sun was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star in 1999
and appointed Justice of the Peace in 2002.

Dr. Sun holds a Doctor of Pharmacy in the University of Oklahoma,
USA and a Doctorate degree in Philosophy in Business Administration
from Southern California University for Professional Studies, USA.
He is the Honorary Fellow of the City University of Hong Kong and
Chapter Honoree of the City University of Hong Kong Chapter of Beta
Gamma Sigma. He is the son of Mr. Sun Chieh Yeh, former Honorary
Chairman and founder of the Company. Dr. Sun is the father of
Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley, an Executive Director and the Deputy
Chairman of the Company and Chief Executive Officer of the Group,
and Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan, an Executive Director of the Company and
Chief Operating Officer of the Group.

MR. SUN TAO HUNG STANLEY
DEPUTY CHAIRMAN & CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley, aged 42, was appointed as an
Executive Director and the Deputy Chairman of the Company and
Chief Executive Officer of the Group on 1 April 2006. He joined the
Group in 2005 and is currently responsible for the supervision of the
overall marketing and sales areas as well as the Group’s business
development. He is also the Managing Director of Fuji Photo Products
Co., Ltd., one of the subsidiary companies of the Group. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Sun has worked in Fuji Photo Film Co., Ltd.,
both in Japan and the United States of America, where he conducted
marketing work for their imaging business. Mr. Sun holds a Bachelor
of Science degree and a Master of Business Administration degree
from Cornell University, Ithaca, New York, USA. He is the elder son
of Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis, Chairman and an Executive Director of
the Company, and the elder brother of Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan, an
Executive Director of the Company and the Chief Operating Officer of
the Group.
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MR. SUN TAO HSI RYAN
CHIEF OPERATING OFFICER

Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan, aged 38, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 1 April 2018. He was also appointed as
Chief Operating Officer of the Group on 1 April 2019, responsible
for the Group’s operation management, particularly in IT and logistics
sectors. Mr. Sun graduated from Widener University, Pennsylvania,
USA with double degrees in Accounting Business Administration
and Hospitality Management. Besides, he had spent 3 years in a
military academy in his high school years. Mr. Sun is a member of
The Y. Elites Association (“YEA") and a vice president of the Business
Development Research Association in YEA. He is also the chairman of
Raimondi Alumni Association. Mr. Sun is currently a managing director
of Fotomax (F.E.) Limited, a subsidiary of the Group.

Mr. Sun is the second son of Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis, the Chairman
and an Executive Director of the Company, and the younger brother
of Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley, an Executive Director and the Deputy
Chairman of the Company and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Group.

MS. CHAN WAI KWAN RITA
CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER & COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Wai Kwan, Rita, aged 42, was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company and Chief Financial Officer of
the Group with effect from 1 April 2019. Ms. Chan is the Company
Secretary of the Group. Ms. Chan joined the Group in 2005 and
is currently responsible for financial reporting, tax and investment
advisory, company secretarial matters as well as corporate resources
management. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Chan had worked in
one of the “Big 4" accounting firms in Hong Kong for 6 years. She
has over 15 years of professional experiences in auditing, accounting
and financial management. Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor of Business
Administration (Honours) degree in Professional Accountancy from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong. She is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a graduate
of its 2018 Financial Controllership Programme.
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Non-executive Director’s Information

FATESEH

MR. FUNG YUE CHUN STEPHEN

Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen, aged 44, was appointed as the Non-
executive Director of the Company on 8 April 2015. He is currently a
member of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Fung joined the
Fung Group in 2001. He is the founder and CEO of Fung Kids Fashion
(Holding) Limited, overseeing the children’s apparel, footwear and
accessories retailing business. He has extensive experience in the retail
industry and holds positions as a director of Fung Retailing Limited, a
director of Toys”“R”Us Asia and a director of Suhyang Networks Co.,
Ltd. Starting from 2019, Mr. Fung has been appointed as the Fung
Group's China President, representing the interests of the Fung Group
in China and driving growth in this critical market.

Prior to joining the Fung Group, Mr. Fung gained his experiences by
working in an internet incubator and a private equity company in
New York. He was also the Vice President of Portfolio Management
at Aetos Japan, an asset management firm that focuses on real estate
assets. Mr. Fung graduated from Boston College with a Bachelor
of Arts degree in Economics and holds an MBA degree of the
International University of Japan.
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Independent Non-executive Directors’ Information

BMIFFHTESER

MR. LI KA FAI DAVID

Mr. Li Ka Fai David, aged 65, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company on 15 September 2004. He
is currently the chairman of the audit committee, a member of the
nomination committee and a member of the remuneration committee
of the Company. Mr. Li is currently the senior advisor of SHINEWING (HK)
CPA Limited. He is a fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, UK.

Mr. Li is an independent non-executive director, the chairman of
the audit committee, a member of the nomination committee
and a member of the remuneration committee of Cosmopolitan
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 120), an independent
non-executive director, a member of the audit committee, a member
of the nomination committee and the chairman of the remuneration
committee of China Merchants Port Holdings Company Limited (Stock
Code: 144), an independent non-executive director, a member of
the audit committee and a member of the remuneration committee
of AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited (Stock Code: 232), an
independent non-executive director, the chairman of the audit
committee, a member of the nomination committee and a member
of the remuneration committee of Goldlion Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 533), an independent non-executive director and the chairman
of the audit committee of Shanghai Industrial Urban Development
Group Limited (Stock Code: 563), an independent non-executive
director and the chairman of audit committee of Wai Yuen Tong
Medicine Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 897) and an independent
non-executive director, the chairman of the audit committee, a
member of the nomination committee and the chairman of the
remuneration committee of CR Construction Group Holdings Limited
(Stock Code: 1582), which are all listed on the Stock Exchange.

MR. LIU HUI ALLAN

Mr. Liu Hui Allan, aged 63, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company on 28 June 2007. He is currently a
member of the audit committee of the Company. Mr. Liu graduated
from the Beijing University of International Business and Economics
and the Westminster University of United Kingdom. Mr. Liu has
over 30 years of experience in foreign direct investments in China,
especially in the consumer and retail sectors. He was formerly the
president of The China Retail Fund LDC, a direct investment fund he
founded in 1996, co-sponsored by American International Group. Mr.
Liu has also been a partner of the private equity business of PAG, a
Pan Asian asset management group managing US$20 billion. Mr. Liu
is currently serving as a partner of an US asset management company,
Versant Group and its Asia chairman.

FREEE

FEREEE  RF655 0 N2004F9R1REEE
BARBBUFHTES - RRAAQRAERESR
EIF REZEERERFHNEESENE - FTX
ERBEXPHN(EB)SEHAMNBERERIT S
AR - RAREFFARSHALTERSE -

FREDNBEBEEERL R (RORR 1 12008
VHHTES  BEREEEIR  REZEENE
RHFMNEESERE  BEREAERERAT (RH
R 140 BIFHITES - EREEERE R
BEEEHRERFMEES TR PEMETIXEH
BER(ER)BRAIBDURMASE  232) B FH
TES  ERZEEHERFHNEEERE &5
REBERD A (RMNRR  533)BUFHTES -
BREEEIR REZEENERFMESEN
B EBEXHTHBREEERAT(RMMAR
SE3)BUFHTEZRERZESEF  ULEHE
EERBERDA(RONRR  897)BUFHTESR
BREEEIR  URELEEEEERERLA
(RIDRSE - 1582)BUFHTES - EREEEE
7 REZEEHRERFMHNEESSIR - ZELH
R £ e

BIREEE

BIRBSESE - HF635 0 W2007F6H28BEER
BEADTABUFPTES - RRAXQATABERES
ERE -  BELFENLETUISBEES REREK
BEASTFALE - AEEANEEERFERESE
(BRIREBERTER)BREEI0FLR - 2kEE
f£The China Retail Fund®94%; - ZEE£MR19965F
BRIV AHFEREEBEGERARRBNEREER
BES - AEENEEEPAGRERELERNEE
A ZEEAEHEEREENZIRIEEERE
£EH - BAEBVersantEB(—EERNEEEE D
AHNEBARETNEERE -

Annual Report 2019/20 FEXERE

31



Independent Non-executive Directors’ Information By EHTESER

32

DR. WONG CHI YUN ALLAN

Dr. Wong Chi Yun Allan, GBS, MBE, JP, aged 69, was appointed as
an Independent Non-executive Director of the Company on 28 October
1997. He is currently the chairman of the nomination committee, the
chairman of the remuneration committee and a member of the audit
committee of the Company. Dr. Wong is the chairman, an executive
director and the group chief executive officer of VTech Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 303), a company listed on the Stock Exchange,
and he cofounded in 1976. Dr. Wong holds a Bachelor of Science
degree in Electrical Engineering from The University of Hong Kong, a
Master of Science degree in Electrical and Computer Engineering from
the University of Wisconsin and an Honorary Doctorate of Technology
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is the deputy chairman
and an independent non-executive director of The Bank of East Asia,
Limited (Stock Code: 23), a company listed on the Stock Exchange. He
retired as an independent non-executive director of MTR Corporation
Limited (Stock Code: 66), a company listed on the Stock Exchange, on
20 May 2020. He resigned as an independent non-executive director
of Li & Fung Limited (the shares of which were withdrawn from the
listing on the Stock Exchange on 27 May 2020) with effect from 28
May 2020.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

RIR > HERERRSE

MESSAGE FROM THE CHAIRMAN

For over half a century, the mission of China-Hongkong Photo
Products Holdings Limited (the “Group”) has always been to serve
our customers with excellent service standards and inspiring them to
own a better lifestyle through our products and services. Our vision of
making the place where we operate a better place is deeply rooted in
our company ethos, and evident across our efforts.

We are aware of the importance of corporate culture in the
sustainable development and management of the Group, and also
play an indispensable guiding role. This year, we have rebuilt our
vision, mission and core values that can echo each other to reshape
the spirit of the entire corporate culture to match the long-term
development of the Group.

At the same time, we believe environmental, social and governance
policy is a key element in the development of the Group’s sustainable
development. While the Group creates value for the society and
the environment, it also benefits the Group and allows long-term
sustainability. We continue to strengthen our communication with
our employees, partners, shareholders, suppliers and the community
to develop business strategies with greater effectiveness and meeting
the anticipations of our stakeholders on social and environmental
performance.

ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Group is pleased to present its sixth Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG"”) Report (the “Report”). The Report details the
Group’s ESG policies, measures, and performance. Through reporting
to stakeholders on sustainable development performance, the Group
aims at attaining transparency and responsibility of information
disclosure and increased public confidence; at the same time helping
stakeholders better understand the Group’s sustainability progress and
development direction.

SCOPE OF REPORTING

This Report details the ESG performances of the Group for the
financial year 2019/20 (1 April 2019 to 31 March 2020) (the “Reporting
Period”), which runs consistent with the Annual Report of the Group.
The Group provides exceptional, premium products and services in
its specialised fields of photography and imaging solutions, skincare
products, as well as consumer and professional electronic products
and installation services across multiple sectors and industries.
The Group adopted the materiality principle in the planning and
preparation of the Report. Unless otherwise stated, the Report focuses
on the retail and distribution businesses which represent the majority
of the Group’s environmental and social impacts.

There was no significant change in the scope of this Report from that
of 2018/19.

ESG APPROACH AND STRATEGY

The Group’s ESG philosophy is to ensure environmental and social
interests are promoted while the Group seeks to create long-term
value for stakeholders that grows in tandem with the Group's business
and sustainable development. Therefore, the Report is released
annually by the Group for public review. Besides, since last year, the
Group established the ESG Committee, comprising members of senior
management and chaired by the Group's Chief Operating Officer, is
able to instil a culture of ESG awareness and promote ESG practices
across the Group.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report BiE - &R ER/HE

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

This Report fulfils all the “comply or explain” provisions with the
disclosure of mandatory Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) as well as
some recommended KPIs stipulated in the ESG Reporting Guide - as
set out in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. According to the
guideline, the following principles are underpinned:

1. Materiality:
ESG issues that have major impacts on investors and other
stakeholders must be set out in this Report.

2. Quantitative:
If the KPIs have been established, they must be measurable and
applicable to valid comparisons under appropriate conditions.
They must also be able to describe the purpose and impacts of
guantitative information.

3. Balance:
This Report must provide an unbiased picture of the ESG
performance of the Group. It should avoid selecting, omitting or
presenting formats that may inappropriately influence a decision
or judgment by the reader.

4. Consistency:
This Report should use consistent and disclose statistical
methodologies to allow meaningful comparisons of related data
over time. Any changes to the methods used must be specified in
the Report.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group believes that effective feedback from stakeholders not
only contributes to the comprehensive and impartial evaluation
of the ESG performance but also improves its performance based
on the feedback. On this ground, the Group engages in regular
communication with stakeholders in an open, honest, and positive
manner through a variety of channels, including survey and regular
engagement sessions. Besides, the Group shares the latest information
with stakeholders through the Group’s website.

The Group will continue to maintain communication with
stakeholders, collect opinions from stakeholders through different
forms and improve ESG performance. This year the Group identified
stakeholders’ expectation on the social aspects, encompassing
employment, health & safety, labour standards, supply chain
management, product responsibility and anti-corruption. These key
considerations aligned with the Group’s guiding principles and values
have been further addressed in the Report.

A. Environment
The nature of the Group's business is local retail and distribution
businesses which do not emit significant discharges, such as
nitrogen oxides, sulphur oxides, and respirable suspended
particulates or any significant volume of hazardous or non-
hazardous waste. Hence, the impact on the environment is
limited. However, the Group considers it equally important
to shoulder the responsibility in the context of caring for the
environment. In addition to complying to all applicable local
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ronmental laws and regulations, the Group strives for

enhanced energy efficiency and reduced carbon emissions within
its work premises. The following are some of the initiatives on
environmental conservation.

T4
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SITBD B - LT HBEBREREN

1. Greenhouse Gas Emissions BERBEHEN
The Group has established internal guidelines to promote its AEBSEEZRRABE  SECHEARD
environmental policy. By developing specific environmental Bol - BBREVERTERRAZTERN
guidelines for retail and office operations, the Group HBERRIES > SEERGHKERER
systematically integrates the use of resources and RUBMEERMABEEE o
management of emissions into day-to-day operations.
The Group’s greenhouse gas emissions (“GHG Emission”) SENREREBHMRRASERERE
come from fuel consumed by the Group’s vehicles for ZEHREFNEREENRE - RIR
distribution to shops and customers. During the Reporting HEE %I%ﬁSﬁﬁﬁAB REEE
Period, the Group owns 5 trucks which are certified with WHRBRDBRERENER » URHTE
EURO VI standard and emit less GHG, as well as practising 1’E$£VLAﬁE1%ﬁxﬂﬁFﬁ$$ﬁ
operational protocols to ensure the effective use of vehicles.
Type of Air Emissions Emission Source Emission (in tognes)
BERBEREE HEARR BerE (LAMAST)
2019/20 2018/19
SOx Vehicles fuel consumption 0.30 0.37
mELD BEHERR
NOx -ditto- 195.48 262.37
RAELCD EL
PM -ditto- 4.25 25.39
BER T il
Table 1 — Air Emissions during the Reporting Period
- REHBNERERE
Scope of GHG Emission Intensity Total Emission
Emissions Emission Source (in tonnes of CO,e) (Emission/Employee) (in percentage)
L 5 & BE BEHmE
RERBHNER AR (=g tEE5t) (BmE/EB) (B2
2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19
Scope 1
EEN
Direct Emission Vehicles Fuel Consumption 4837 59.89 0.09 0.13 3.8% 4.5%
EEHR HEHERE
Scope 2
EiE2
Indirect\Emission Electricity 1,219.00 1,233.60 2.31 2.60 94.8% 94.0%
RN EY)l
Scope 3
Ei[E3
Other Indirect Emission Paper Waste 18.23 19.49 0.03 0.04 1.4% 1.5%
HibREEN BEEE
Total 1,285.6 1,312.98 2.43 2.77 100% 100%
@t
Table 2 — Green House Gas Emissions during the Reporting Period
F2 -~ REDBEHEREREBHMRE
The total GHG generated by the Group during the Reporting  RIFEHR @  EEEERNEEREMAEHNE1,290M
Period was approximately 1,290 tonnes (2018/19: 1,310)  (2018/194 : 1,310M) “E{tHER  BEXSLE
of carbon dioxide equivalent (tCO,e), with an intensity of  Z{EB2HE(2018/19% : 3WE) —GE LR ZE > BIF

app

roximately 2 tonnes per employee of carbon dioxide

equivalent (2018/19: 3 tonnes), comprising of fuel consumption
by the Group’s vehicles, electricity, as well as paper waste.

SENEFRERRE

BENURERERR

Annual Report 2019/20 FEXERE

35



Environmental, Social and Governance Report 3B « 2K &8k E

Energy Consumpfion and Conservafion

The Group continues to replace physical servers into general
virtual servers, which has reduced considerable energy
consumption. In addition, the Group encourages employees
to turn off idle electrical appliances and equipment and
turn off lighting and air conditioning when leaving the
workplace. The Group prefers using low-power electrical
appliances or products and avoids using unnecessary high-
power equipment. In addition, the Group performs various
sustainable procurement measures to advocate green product
awareness. For instance, choosing computers which are easy
to upgrade, recycle and contain low levels of contaminating
metals (cadmium, lead and mercury).

The Group is also concerned about carbon emissions caused
by business travel and has introduced a number of measures
in this regard, including giving preference to local suppliers,
centralised management of vehicle use, and making good
use of modern communication tools to interact with business
partners.

During the Reporting Period, total electricity consumption
from the Group’s operation was approximately 2,101,400
kWh (2018/19: 2,233,570 kWh), approximately 3,990 kWh
per employee (2018/19: 4,710 kWh), in addition to the total
fuel consumption by the Group’s vehicles was approximately
18,330 litres (2018/19: 22,690 litres), with an intensity of
approximately 30 litres per employee (2018/19: 50 litres per
employee).
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ZIEER - BEELEATBHEY £
hEESHEA  URERARALCERT
HERBBHETEE -

RB|BEHE SEREERENEARE
2% 52,101,400 F E B (2018/19F :
2233570 FRK)  BENAREEEE
3,990 F R B (2018/19F : 4,710 F R
B) B SEEHNARBEREY
£18,3302 7 (2018/195 : 22,6902 F) »
RENBTHEEI0AT(2018/19%F : 50
AFH) o

O O

o/ 0/ *
Electricity Consumption in 2019/20 Fuel Consumption in 2019/20

20191205 ¥ EE 2019/20F MRELEF R

*compared to 2018/19 figure
*E32018/19FEUEHLL
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Resources Unit Consumption Intensity (Consumption/Employee)

Bl Bfy HFEE ZE(EKE E8)
2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19

Electricity kWh 2,101,404.00 2,233,571.77 3,987.48 4,712.18

EP) FRE

Water m? 566.03 1,166.26 1.07 2.46

X I AR

Fuel L 18,325.29 22,689.70 34.77 47.87

Table 3 — Resources Consumption during the Reporting Period

®3 -REPENEFEEE

3. Mifigation of Waste HLEREY
The Group adheres to the principles of waste management SEBREEEYERRL > UHNEEER
and strives to properly handle and dispose of waste BREERBEBTEBMEENEREY -
generated from business activities. For instance, the Group flan - SN ERER D EEY (AR A
applies the principle of “Waste Reduction at Source” to WOEEREREY - (L BERYHEEE
mitigate waste generation. Chemical waste is collected BEEYREBKWERERE  mMEK - &
and processed by licensed chemical waste collectors, while R2BER CKE  FHEEERES
other wastes such as photographic paper, paper, metal foil, ZHMEEYABEZEYERERERE
fluorescent tubes, photocopier cartridges and batteries, are I o
collected and processed by waste recyclers.
In 2019/20, the Group continued to pursue new ways of R201920FE @ SEEESRHDESE
mitigating waste. The Group launched “Instant film box MG - RERFEBEBELFE—R
recycling program” with The Boys' Brigade to raise awareness EHIAENEFEMEZEEETE ] LRSS
among customers and encourage action. Customers are BEFRLEEYNEBLSEBEREBITE
entitled to HK$1 discount to a new film box when they BREMENEFBRENFENKTZES
return every instant film box. The recyclables are stored at ERBE I TWESR - BRBBEFERR
The Boys’ Brigade before being transferred to recyclers. BEEEBLFE HEAHEADKR -
During the Reporting Period, there were approximately RIBERE  SEREEBEIEHRI0ME
90 tonnes of hazardous waste (2018/19: 120 tonnes) and BEBEZEY(2018/19% - 120M) &AM &
4 tonnes (2018/19: 4 tonnes) of non-hazardous waste EEERY(2018/195F : 4W) - BERESE
discharged from the Group's operation. The annual emission BEUNFEHREES I ABEES0.2
intensity of hazardous and non-hazardous waste was 0.2 ME(2018/194F : 0.3MF) &% 0.01MA(2018/19
tonne (2018/19: 0.3 tonne) and 0.01 tonne (2018/19: 0.01 F 10.01M)
tonne) per employee respectively.
Intensity
Type of Waste Emission Source Amount of Waste (in tonnes) (Emission/Employee)
BEEyEY BHORR EEYE () ZE(HnE/E8)
2019/20 2018/19 2019/20 2018/19
Hazardous waste Photofinishing Solution 89.79 123.66 0.17 0.25
BEEEY HENRRT
Non-hazardous waste General Operation 3.80 4.06 0.01 0.01
BEEEY —-fheE
Total 93.59 121.72 0.18 0.26
st
Table 4 — Hazardous and Non-hazardous Waste Produced during the Reporting Period
x4 -BEPENEEREEERYEELS
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4. Reduction of Water Usage 4. BWLHEK

Sustainable and responsible use of water resources is a AEFENESEHERKERZERN
major global issue. The Group is aware that water shortage, ZIRMMEE - KEEBEKFRER - BE
excessive demand and overuse of water can cause serious ERRAKBESENBRERE - BRE
problems. Due to its business nature, the Group does not use EBMHE  SEUEEARFERAEK -
or discharge significant amount of water.

Compared to last reporting period, water consumption HEAFREBMEL > FKETHKS0%ZE
has decreased by around 50% to approximately 570 cubic #5703 75K (2018/195F 11,1703 77 3K) »
metres (2018/19: 1,170 cubic metres) with an intensity of REABREE 1M AK(2018/19%F : 232
1 cubic metre (2018/19: 2 cubic metres) per employee. The FK) c BERDTARESH T2 KE
significant reduction was caused by updated methodology W% Bt > ATAERE R 2EREE
in measuring water consumption, thus the figures relating & - SEBEBNERAKER  WEER
thereto could be measured more precisely. The Group AETIURSH KER °

will closely monitor water usage and continue to educate

employees to promote water-saving awareness.
o C
5 o / *

Water Consumption in 2019/20

2019/20F FEk 2

*Compared to 2018/19 figure
*E822018/19F S5 ELE
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Use of Packaging Matferials

The need to better manage and reduce waste has become
a significant global concern, heightened by the widespread
awareness of how plastic waste is damaging the natural
environment and affecting the health and survival of living
species. For many years, the Group has sought to minimize,
reuse and reduce packaging materials.

The Group promotes the minimum use of packaging
materials in all business activities. During the Reporting
Period, approximately 850 tonnes (2018/19: 920 tonnes)
of packaging materials were used, including carton box
(approximately 610 tonnes; 2018/19: 550 tonnes), bubble
bag (approximately 210 tonnes; 2018/19: 340 tonnes) and
plastic wrap (approximately 30 tonnes; 2018/19: 30 tonnes).

In 2019/20, the Group reviewed the procedure and adjusted
the design of packaging materials. At shop level, staff will
advise customers to minimise use of plastic bags while at
logistic level, strings are used for delivery and pick-up instead
of using plastic bags. The Group has also adopted degradable
materials in purchasing plastic bags.

Use of Packaging Materials
BEYHNAE

24.5% (37.0%)
Bubble Bag
A

3.4% (2.8
Plastic Wrap
72.1% (60.2%)
Carton Box
Fiz] N /4

BENHGEE
ABBREERENNABRBRRER
SFEEMPNENRENER  AEEFH
EEREDRENTECRARIREEN
EARERE - Z2HK - KE-EHIRRET
&Y EARBELBENH -

EEEMBERIBHHERELREEY
B RIREHE > AANEBEYHOE
850ME (2018/19%F : 920MF) » BIEMIE (W
610ME ; 2018/19% : 550Mf) + TBKR (KW
210 ; 2018/194F : 340Mf) K B AR (#4130
WA ; 2018/19%4 : 30Wf) o

R201920FE @ SECEERFICH
BEEMBNRE c REEE®R » TEA
EEEREF[REFNPVFEABRE MR
YIRER  BEXRREEAFEAETRER
BE  c EERBEBHRIBISRETR
BEMTRY o

-8%

(2018/19 figures #i%)

Chart 1 - Packaging Materials Used during the Reporting Period
B -BmEHENERIHAE

Packaging Materials Usage in 2019/20
201920 BEYRAE

*compared to 2018/19 figure
*Ed2018/19F EIEAELL
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6. The Environment and Nafural Resources é.
As a socially responsible enterprise, protecting nature and
the environment has become an integral part of the Group’s
corporate culture. The Group constantly looks for ways to
maximise benefits with minimal resource consumption and
environmental impact and continue to strive for sustainable
development.

In addition, the Group continuously identifies, assesses, and
manages potential adverse impacts on the environment, and
strives to maintain a balance between industry development
and ecological environment for long-term sustainable
development. When reviewing its business strategies and
planning for future business development, the Group will
take environmental protection and conservation of natural
resources into consideration. Since its business involves no
manufacturing or production activities, the Group does not
have a significant impact on the environment and natural
resources.

7. Climafe Change 7.
The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and has identified
typhoon as the major threat from the increasing climate
change. Given this, the Group has developed mitigation
measures to reduce the adverse impact caused by
typhoons on employees and properties. For instance, the
Group conducts regular inspection on windows under the
Government’s mandatory window inspection scheme. The
Group has also purchased insurance to transfer possible
losses caused by natural disasters and reduce the risk of
casualties and property losses. At shop level, notices are
sent before typhoon for lifting up inventories and adopting
sufficient glasses protection.

BEEEREE

EREHEEERNEE  RERXEBAR
RECRBEBEEE LR A HERN —E
7o EEBAESREE  AEERDE
BRHREENRDZENERT FE&R
REWE - WHRESHERTSERE -

o SEB O GEEXBRELRRER
BV EBERRAKERE  UFE
MAl o FFEMEEHRREEN TR
& o ARTTE ISR RIRBIRREH B
B SESZERERERBARERRF
# o MRHEHEB TP REVEREETE -
AHEEHRERARERLBEEK
@ o

mEEL

EEIENEEBEE  YCOEBARES
RIRBLEMBNEERE - BENL &
BOHEERERUBRSBEREETRY
EERNTREE - flm - EERER
FHatREstAEMBEER - £EF
BERE  LEBAAKLETRERNE
K WEHPAEETRBERRZER
REERE  BEAMSBEBAASTFEUR
KRR AN IRBRERR ©

B. Social B. W&
The Group reckons that employees are the most valuable assets EERA/HEIREBENEE  HEEEMK
and have a critical impact on the quality of the Group's products BRENEEAEZHREENFE  ERQAT
and services. They are also the cornerstone for sustainable BEHRNER -
corporate development.
The Group strives to build a safe, healthy, fair, and non- SEFNEIYIRE  RBE  ATFREERNT
discriminative work environment and maintain a harmonious FRE > UEHESBRENBERURZ2EE

relationship with employees, so as to bring together all employees 8
to promote the long-term sustainable development of the Group.

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited s8R iESEM EBER QT

REEENRETVFERR -



The Group’s social policy adheres to the following principles:

Ue

Respect the Employee

All employees’ fundamental equality of dignity and rights is
to be respected so that they are treated justly and equitably.
Employees who demonstrate outstanding work initiatives are
identified and cultivated to reach their greatest potential.

Aspire to Perfection

Together with the delivery of the highest product quality to
customers, all employees are encouraged to provide their
best service in achieving excellence.

Serve the Community

Employees shall delight and satisfy every customer by
providing attentive service. The Group maintains a peaceful
and harmonious working atmosphere and advocates a
modest and humble lifestyle.

Contribute to the Society

All employees are encouraged to fulfil the obligations to
promote social prosperity through participating in social
welfare activities and comply with the law.

Employment and Labour Standards

The Group is convinced that equal employment relations can
improve employee satisfaction, which in turn helps retain and
motivate outstanding talents and thus promotes the Group's
business development. As such, the Group is committed
to providing a fair and safe work environment with equal
opportunities to staff and embracing diversity regardless
of nationality, race, religion, gender, age, physical abilities,
pregnancy, or family status. Fairness, honesty, and integrity
are emphasised in the process of recruitment, dismissal, and
promotion as part of the principle of equal opportunity.

The Group revises policies and procedures regarding anti-
discrimination, recruitment and promotion, dismissal, and
rest period regularly. During the Reporting Period, the Group
strictly observes the employment regulations, relevant policies
and guidelines of the relevant jurisdictions where it operates,
including the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) and the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance
(Chapter 282 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

EENHERRBETUTRE

1.

BEEAR
Fﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’]ﬁ%%ﬂ%%ﬂqzdgﬂ'}%ﬂiﬁ,ﬂﬁg
BIEE EEZIDFLENHE -
ERALENEEESSENRE L/L%%
EERBEBRRED -

ERFER
AEFRUEGSEZNERZE - SRR
EREEBRMEERY - BREM -

BRIt E

BEREFAINRE  BEUEFREE
MR - SEERFNF - MEHTER
A BERERENEERR -

SHEEM
SRMEETIRBSRLERIEDET
REHTEERNEY - WEFEE -

ERRSIER
EEREFENERBRITRSEIRE
ERmMREMNBBESAS  MRE
EMEBRRE  -BElt  SFEFHIEET
RUEATMZEMNIERR > UEFZ
it BRAEEE - ik ~ R¥E -~ %5 -
Fit - BeE - ERRRBIREEENET
REFERE - ENTEHENRA - &
EERE BERBANBES - 59+5
BAELF  BEREESEHE -
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Labour Rights and Welfares

The Group strives to establish harmonious labour relationships
and a happy working environment. Therefore, the Group
attaches great importance to the physical and psychological
health of the employees. Acknowledging a good work-
life balance can improve employees’ work performance,
the Group does not force employees to work overtime. The
Group provides employees with various welfare and benefits.
Employees are entitled to a discretionary performance bonus,
mandatory provident fund, medical welfare and hospital
allowance, various types of paid leaves (marriage, study and
examination, compensation, paternity, maternity, birthday
leave and funeral leaves) in addition to annual leave and sick
leave. Details are set out in the Staff Handbook to ensure
transparency of information on the employees’ responsibilities
and rights. The Group’s essential policies and procedures
are also included in the Staff Handbook which is in line with
the internal management policy. This policy is developed in
accordance with the applicable laws and regulations related
to labour standards.

On the other hand, the Group continually reforms and
improves its employee compensation policies and systems and
fully considers increasing employee compensation in tandem
with the Group’s performance, in an effort to ensure that
employees are rewarded fairly based on their contribution.
The Group endorses a comprehensive performance appraisal
system under which promotion opportunities and salary
adjustments are based on individual work performance. Based
on this equitable principle, the system successfully motivates
employees and promotes the realisation of self-value.

As at the end of the Reporting Period, there were 527
employees (2018/19: 474) in the Group’s workforce. The
majority of the Group’s employees locate in Hong Kong with
around 80% are full-time employees.

There were no non-compliance cases noted in relation to
labour standards laws and regulations during the Reporting
Period.

SIEFaEF

EEEHRINFENE THRERMRNT
ERE - At - KEEEZEESTHH L
BE - WERHFNIFEEEFEIRE
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o KEAETRMARZEREANGTE - EE
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FEEEEAREFNZHREHNETIF
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EHEK - BERDREBEYE TRERBNE
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The employee compositions are illustrated as follows:

EEAMMT -

Location of Workforce

BEFTHEH

99.8% (99%) 0.2% (1%)

Hong Kong China
] i

(2018/19 figures &%)

Chart 2 - Location of Workforce at the end of the Reporting

Employee Distribution by Gender
=Redzbakiin

47% (47%)
Female

g3

53% (53%)
Male
Bt

(2018/19 figures &%)

Chart 3 — Employee Gender Distribution at the end of the

(2018/19 figures &%)

Chart 4 — Employee Category at the end of the Reporting
Period

B4 - REHRNES R

(&

Period Reporting Period
B2 —REHARNESFIEH B3 —REHARNES MDD M
N\ J G J
4 N\ 4 N\
Employee Category Employee Distribution by Age Group
EE %5 EEFERAR DM
2% (2%)
Senior ® Age 18-24
Management 18ZE245%
EREEE ® Age 2534
25% 345%
3% (4%) 14% ® Age 35-44
72% (71%) AL (14%) 352445
General Staff Management
anmeE PREEE ® Age 45-54
Rma ) 1o, 45E54E
23% (23%) (2%(; ® Age 55-64
Supervisor 552645k
Level

(2018/19 figures &%)

Chart 5 — Age Distribution of Employees at the end of the
Reporting Period

B5 - REHARNWEEFRD M

S J
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Employee Turnover Rate by Gender

Employee Turnover Rate by Age Group

Chart 6 — Employee Turnover Rate by Gender during the

Ele —MEHBARMRI B D M RER AL R

ZEMRE D HESRAL R

' | 64%
| Female
pog 3

36% | ‘
Male
B «

Reporting Period

ZERARS TN EERALR

N ® Age 18-24
4% 18E245%
® Age 25-34

25% 345

® Age 3544

w 35F 445
| Age 45-54
/ 45F 545
Age 55-64

55%645%

@® Age 65 or above
655 M |

Chart 7 — Employee Turnover Rate by Age Group during the
Reporting Period

E7 - MEHBNRFRAR D NESR AL R

Employee Health and Safety

The Group values the health and well-being of every
employee. The Group has established safety measures and
procedures recommended by the Labour Department and
Occupational Safety and Health Council.

On 11™ March 2020, the World Health Organization (WHO)
declared the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19") outbreak as
pandemic. The safety and security of customers, employees,
and other stakeholders are at top priority. On the ground,
the Group has implemented measures based on guidance
received from government authorities in order to help
prevent the spread and infection of COVID-19. For instance,
the Group provided hand sanitizers in offices, warehouses
and shops, enhanced environmental disinfection by installing
auto air refreshers at toilets, provided masks to staff in need
etc.

The Group requires employees to strictly comply with
the safety policy and guidelines which specify workflows,
various safety measures and guidance as well as employees’
responsibilities for their health and safety at the workplace.
In the daily operations of the Group, the risk of work injury
mainly arises from manual handling operations. In order to
protect the safety and health of employees and to minimise
the risk involved, the Group advocates safe manual handling
operations through the provision of satisfactory working
conditions, good working practices, proper use of mechanical
aids and protective devices, adequate safety and health
information, and sufficient safety training.

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited s8R iESEM EBER QT

EEREHMZS
EEERS-REINRERERGIL - £8
CRETIBNBEZZRERNES - §
EREHERERF °

2020838118 - thERE4E AR (HE)
EMFBMRFES([COVID-19]) BB AR IR

KRIT - BF - BEREMEBEHENEZ S
RREHEEZASEE - it - £EC
RIBBUTHEBRMBNIESIEERER - UiH
BIFERE COVID-19R) B L M EHE - il -
EEERLE - BERIEHREHES R
Fh o EATFEZEESHTREHB[UM
BIREES  RABEEMNEIRMEO
% °

EEEREERKRETRERERIES]

EPTHIERE  SEZ2ERKE
5 MREERTHESHEEERZZH
B - EEENEELEED  ITEERE
ERERIRERF - BTREEENZ
2NEE  |SERLHERR  EEES
RAUBAN TGRS - RFNIHFEE -
ERNOEREBBRBENRERER:
ERENZ2MERERURZANZ 2E
3l BEZEWEHERERE -



During the Reporting Period, the Group found no case of
violation of laws and regulations related to occupational
safety and health, nor did it receive any complaints about
work conditions. Also, there were no work-related deaths
(2018/19: none) and there were 90.5 days lost day due to
work injuries during the Reporting Period. The Group strictly
follows the relevant legislations in Hong Kong including the
Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) and the Factories and Industrial
Undertakings (Safety Officers and Safety Supervisors)
Regulations (Chapter 59Z of the Laws of Hong Kong).

Development and Training

The Group recognises the importance of skilled and
professionally trained employees to its business growth
and future success. Therefore, the Group encourages them
to participate in personal development and training and
has developed a staff training policy with a complete set
of training measures, which specifies the management
responsibilities of the person in charge of training in each
department, and provides corresponding training courses for
employees to continuously increase their working knowledge
and skills.

Collaborating with a professional institute, the Group
launched the new internal program for management levels in
2019/20. The program aims at empowering managerial staff
on communication and leadership skills, as well as focusing
on the Group’s vision, mission and core values.

During the Reporting Period, the Group provided 2,410 hours
for employee training (2018/19: 1,558 hours). The following
is an overview of the wide ranges of training schemes.

e On-Board Training Scheme — This scheme enables new
hires to understand the history, mission, structure,
welfares policies, and corporate social responsibilities of
the Group.

e Training Scholarship Scheme — This scheme encourages
the employee to pursue continuing education and take
part in work-related training courses.

e Mandatory Training Scheme — This scheme aims at
enriching employees’ experience and broadening their
knowledge of industry intelligence. The Group will assign
the employees to participate in external seminars and
product launch activities if necessary.

e  QOperation and Job Skill Training Scheme — This scheme
is designed to provide employees with the skills and job
knowledge to meet the standard of the Group.

REBEHE > SEVABREMERBE
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Percentage of Employees
Trained by Employee Category
RESERNEINZEIEET DL
3% (0%)
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Management
PREEE

67% (96%)
General Staff
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15% (1%)
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Management
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15% (3%)
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Level
FERA

(2018/19 figures £1%)

Chart 8 — Percentage of Employees Trained by Employee
Category during the Reporting Period
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Chart 9 — Average Training Hours Completed by Gender
during the Reporting Period
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During the Reporting Period, the Group has rebuilt its vision,
mission and core values and launched the internal training
program to align this concept among colleagues. As such,
compared with last year, the Group’s total training hours had

resulted in a significant increase.

+55%

Total Training Hours in 2019/20

2019/20F 4B 1Z 3 E

*compared to 2018/19 figure
*EE2018/19F BB FHLL
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Supply Chain Management

The Group emphasises promoting good communication
and cooperation to jointly maintain the quality and safety
of products and services. The Group implements supplier
management system in accordance with internal guidance
which governs the management of suppliers. Based on
multiple aspects such as quality and price, environmental
protection, labour practices, suppliers are chosen to subject
to screening and evaluation procedures among the suppliers.

Moreover, to ensure suppliers’ capability in quality assurance,
safety and environmental responsibility, the Group carries out
regular quality assessments on suppliers’ overall capabilities.
The Group will sign agreements with key suppliers to regulate
their product quality, environmental and safety performance.
To protect the rights and interests of customers and comply
with social standards and norms, suppliers selected by the
Group must be legitimate companies in compliance with
business registration regulations.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has 702 active
suppliers'.

Green Procurement

The Group has ethical and environmental expectations
for delivering goods and services. In 2019/20, the Group
continued to work with customers, partners and suppliers
to further sustainability by focusing on managing risk
and improving performance in the supply chain, adopting
standards and best practices, and providing sustainable
design, manufacturing, product and packaging options. The
Group formulated policies and measures, including a policy
that gives priority to the procurement of green products,
such as furniture made with chipboard, photocopiers and
printer with energy efficiency labels, recyclable laser printer
cartridges and recycled paper folders.
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An active supplier is identified as its goods, materials, or services have a significant impact on the Group.
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Some of the ways the Group help customers source items
with sustainability attributes include:

Customers

The Group promotes environmental protection to the
customers. Refills are available for some products in the
skincare segment. In order to avoid hazardous damage to the
environment, electronic waste from electronic products and
household appliances segment is delivered to recyclers for
further processing before disposal.

Partners

The Group works with FUJIFILM Japan, the Group’s supplier
for photofinishing and processing equipment, cameras and
films, upholds environmental protection and focuses on the
chemical composition of the products.

Supply Chain

The Fotomax business only purchases paper from Forest
Stewardship Council (FSC) certified suppliers. The Group
regards FSC as the gold standard in responsible forestry. FSC
is one of the most universally recognised certification systems
that prohibit the use of genetically modified trees, prevents
the conversion of natural forest to plantations and requires
a precautionary approach to the management of areas with
high conservation value.

Green Building

In an effort to the Group's pursuit of green design and
installation services, the Group is certified as green buildings
under independent third-party rating system — Leadership
in Energy and Environment Design (LEED) award granted by
the U.S. Green Building Council. The Group strongly believes
in the importance of preserving the environment and has
therefore committed to developing practices that conform to
environmental protection.

Product Responsibility

Delivering Quality Products and Services

With the mission of “to enhance the quality of life for our
customers by providing quality products and services”, the
Group is committed to providing high-quality products and
services and guarantees that they are in line with industry
standards and sustainability requirements. The Group also
pursues to meet higher criteria all the time. As such, the
Group has established internal policies and procedures for
the production and sales of products to ensure compliance
with all applicable laws and regulations. During the Reporting
Period, the Group received a total of 61 complaints about
products, all of which have been followed up and handled;
there was no product subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons.

7.
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Customer Data Protection

New laws are taking effect across the globe to regulate the
collection, use, retention, disclosure and disposal of personal
information. At the same time, the rate of cyber-attacks, data
breaches and unauthorised use of personal data is growing
exponentially. In view of this, the Group applied the new data
encryption on websites to enhance protection on customer’s
data in 2019/20. The new technology applied Secure Sockets
Layer (SSL) certificate on the Group’s websites. As such,
Transport Layer Security (TLS) encryption have been enabled
to better protect data during the transmission. Besides, TLS
encryption is also implemented to ensure all network traffic
running over a secured channel.

During the Reporting Period, there was no reported case
of non-compliance with relevant laws and regulations
concerning product responsibility.

Anfti-Corruption

The Group is committed to maintaining the integrity of
its corporate culture. On this ground, the Group sets out
the relevant policies and guides the employees to abide by
the code of conduct. The code of conduct provides a clear
definition of the provision and acceptance of interests,
such as gifts and souvenirs, and ways to deal with conflicts
of interest. Also, the Group established and implements
an internal integrity system to strengthen the integrity of
employees in governance practices.

The Group also established a whistle-blowing policy that
ensures any internal or external stakeholder can raise any
issue. Employees are encouraged to contact the internal
audit team directly at any time to seek guidance in sensitive
situations or to report the suspicious case. The internal audit
team will investigate possible violations in any suspicious
case.

During the Reporting Period, the Group complied with the
relevant laws and regulations regarding anti-corruption and
money laundering and had no concluded legal case regarding
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or its employees.

Community Investment

The Group understands well of the importance of making
a positive contribution to the community where it operates
and considers community benefits as one of its social
responsibilities. The Group considers that enterprises and
communities are inseparable as a whole.

8.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report BiE - &R ER/HE

With the new vision of “to make where we operate a
better place”, the Group is dedicated to protecting the
environment and serving the needy. In 2019/20, the Group
established its first “Social Responsibility Team” which
encourages social services among colleagues and promotes
the culture. The Group continues to play an active role in
community engagement, including charitable organizations
and local organizations. For instance, Kwun Tong Methodist
Social Service Center, the Community Chest of Hong Kong,
Maggie's Cancer Caring Centre, HK Photographic Culture
Association and HK Squash.

The top management of the Group also takes up the leading
role in many reputable charities. Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis,
Chairman of the Group who is also the Vice Patron of the
Community Chest of Hong Kong; Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley,
Chief Executive Officer of the Group, is the Board of Director
and Executive Committee Member of the Community Chest
of Hong Kong.

During the Reporting Period, the Group contributed to the
following donations, sponsorship and participated in various
charity events.

Society
e Maggie's Cancer Caring Centre — “Golf Competition”

e Kwun Tong Methodist Social Service Center — “Christmas
Party with the Community 2019”

e The Community Chest — "BEA Charity Golf Day 2019”

e The Community Chest — “Greening for the Chest 2019
& 2020"

e The Community Chest — “Wear-to-Go Programme 2019"

e The Hong Kong Management Association — “HKMA/TVB
Awards for Marketing Excellence 2020"

Child and youth
e KidsforKids — “Team Sponsorship of Kids4Kids Golf
Tournament 2019”

Sports Development
e Hong Kong Squash — “Everbright Sun Hung Kai Hong
Kong Squash Open 2019”

Art Culture
e HK International Photo Festival — “Event and Future
Development of HKIPF 2019”
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The amount of sponsorship and in-kind donations made during the SREHBNEBREYIREBENABE180ET -

Reporting Period was approximately HK$1.8 million.

OUTLOOK B

The Group believes that the implementation of current measures on  £EHEE  ERBENRERERTSETHER
environmental protection and social responsibility is sufficient for — LUB<PAEBEERER - A - EEEHERER
compliance with relevant laws and regulations. Yet the Group will $EIEEERERBETR - SUINBERERER
continue to review from time to time in response to the latest relevant  #& & -

requirements to strengthen its measures on environmental protection
and social responsibility.
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Risk Management and Internal Control
B ETE R A EBE

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group has complied
with Principle C.2 of the Corporate Governance Code by establishing
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems. Management is responsible for the design, implementation
and monitoring of such systems, while the Board of Directors (the
“Board”) oversees management in performing its duties on an
ongoing basis. Main features of the risk management and internal
control systems are described in the sections below:

RISK. MANAGEMENT SYSTEM

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages risks
associated with its business and operations. The system comprises the
following phases:

o Identification: Identify business objectives, risks that could
affect the achievement of objectives and ownership of such
risks.

. Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact(s) risks and

evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

o Management: Consider risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitor of the
residual risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted in 2019/20, no significant
risk was identified.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

The Group has in place an internal control system which is compatible
with the COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission) 2013 framework. The framework enables the
Group to achieve objectives regarding effectiveness and efficiency
of operations, reliability of financial reporting and compliance with
applicable laws and regulations. The components of the framework
are shown as follow:

o Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

o Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying, analyzing risks and forming a basis for determining
how risks should be managed in order to achieve the Group’s
objectives.

o Control Activities: Action established by policies and
procedures to ensure that management directives to mitigate
risks to the achievement of objectives are carried out.

° Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

o Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each components of internal control is present and
functioning.

BZE2020F3A31BLFE EECETLEER
FRIEC2HERE BEUBERERIZEABREERA
HELZZ - BEEASEZSRFAZET - BER
ERx mEFS(ESE)ESEBEEEBEEN
THES -EREERABERRFAZTEHERN
TXEEIRE ¢

BREERRHR
SERMEEEBEREENRARCEBERR
B o REBBEUTER :

. A BAEBERRURESEERER 2
REBRUAREREE

. Ry AMERZ TR RFE - WIBLLET
hERAS °

. EE  ZRARCERR  BREAESSH
REBAFEEERERRAR -

RI5E201920F B AL - WARBBIERER ©

ABMERRRE

EEREAIEZRFAL - EECOSO (Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission) 20135 HEZRERF  ZIERFEEEEEH
ERZENRORYE - BBEBRENTERERER
EREFRERNER 2 B - ZERNERNT AR

. EERE  ARENETRIEZREMAER
Z—EER - EBFREE -

. RBREFE BB R D AT R R AR AR E T
EEERREMER  THESEMREZR
B UEREEER -

. ERED RENERERFEIZEH 4L
RRET B IR R E AR AE L B B
IR o

. ARREE: AREREESARERRE
B2 RBRINBEE -

. B SERBNEUBREAREEZE
ARBOREFERBELER -

Annual Report 2019/20 FEXERE



52

Risk Management and Internal Confrol  [E k&R K R Es %

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside information,
and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy, completeness and timeliness
of its public disclosures, the Group also adopts and implements inside
information policy and procedures. Certain reasonable measures have
been taken from time to time to ensure proper safeguards exist to
prevent a breach of a disclosure requirement in relation to the Group,
which include:

o Access of information is restricted to a limited number of
employees on need-to-know basis. Employees who are in
possession of inside information are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality.

o Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group enters
into significant negotiations.

o Executive Directors are the only designated persons to speak
on behalf of the Group when communicating with external
parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted in 2019/20, no
significant control deficiency was identified.

INTERNAL AUDITORS

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA") function, which is consisted
of professional staff with relevant expertise (such as Chartered
Accountant). The IA function is independent of the Group’s daily
operations and carries out appraisal of the risk management and
internal control systems by conducting interviews, walkthroughs and
tests of operating effectiveness.

According to the established plan, reviews of risk management and
internal control systems are conducted annually and the results are
reported to the Board via Audit Committee.

EFFECTIVENESS OF THE RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL SYSTEMS

The Board is responsible for risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and ensuring review of the effectiveness of
these systems has been conducted annually. Several areas have been
considered during the Board’s review which include but not limited to
(i) the changes in the nature and extent of significant risks since the
last annual review, the Group’s ability to respond to changes in its
business and the external environment, and (ii) the scope and quality
of management’s ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal
control systems. During the year, the Board had specifically reviewed
the Group's risk management and internal control systems related to
social unrest and COVID-19.

The Board, through its review and the review made by IA function
and Audit Committee, concluded that the risk management and
internal control systems were effective and adequate in 2019/20. Such
systems, however, are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss. It is also considered that the resources, staff qualifications and
experience of relevant staff were adequate and the training programs
and budget provided were sufficient.
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Corporate Governance Report

EEARHE

The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company is pleased to
present this Corporate Governance Report in the Group’s Annual
Report for the year ended 31 March 2020.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
The Board of the Company is committed to achieving high corporate
governance standards.

During the year, the Company has applied the principles set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing
Rules”).

The Board is of the view that the Company has complied with the
code provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended
31 March 2020.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own code of conduct regarding
Directors’ dealings in the Company’s securities (the “Code of
Conduct”) on terms no less exacting than the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Code of Conduct
throughout the year ended 31 March 2020.

The Company has also established written guidelines (the “Employees
Written Guidelines”) no less exacting than the Model Code for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines
by the employees was noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and
performance and should take decisions objectively in the best interests
of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from
a Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company, and
whether the Director is spending sufficient time performing them.

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises eight Directors, consisting of four
Executive Directors, one Non-executive Director and three Independent
Non-executive Directors.
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Corporate Governance Report EEaHE

Executive Directors

Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis
(Chairman and Member of Nomination Committee and
Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley
(Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan
Ms. Chan Wai Kwan Rita (appointed on 1 April 2019)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen
(Member of Audit Committee)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Ka Fai David
(Chairman of Audit Committee and Member of
Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Liu Hui Allan
(Member of Audit Committee)

Dr. Wong Chi Yun Allan
(Chairman of Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee
and Member of Audit Committee)

Mr. Au Man Chung Malcolm retired as an Independent Non-
executive Director and ceased to be the chairman and a member of
Remuneration Committee and a member of each of Audit Committee
and Nomination Committee of the Company with effect from the
conclusion of the Company’s annual general meeting held on 16
August 2019.

The biographical information of the Directors and the relationships
between the Directors are set out and disclosed in the section
headed "Executive Directors’ Information”, “Non-executive Director’s
Information” and “Independent Non-executive Directors’ Information”
on pages 28 to 32 of the Annual Report for the year ended 31 March
2020.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are held by
Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis and Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley respectively.
The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning and leadership of the Board. The Chief Executive Officer
focuses on the Group’s business development and daily management
and operations generally.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three Independent Non-executive Directors representing one-third
of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the Independent Non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The Non-executive Directors including Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company are appointed for a specific term of three
years, subject to renewal after the expiry of the then current term.

The Company’s Bye-laws provides that all Directors appointed to fill a
casual vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment.

Under the Bye-laws of the Company, at each annual general meeting,
one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their number is
not three of a multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less
than one-third shall retire from office by rotation provided that every
Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years. The retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election.

At the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Mr. Li
Ka Fai David, Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan and Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen
shall retire by rotation at the annual general meeting pursuant to the
Company’s Bye-laws. Mr. Li Ka Fai David, Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan and
Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election at the annual general meeting.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of
the Group; and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising
the Group's affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational
and financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control
and risk management systems are in place.
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All Directors have carried out duties in good faith, in compliance with
applicable laws and regulations and in the interests of the Company
and its shareholders at all times.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of Directors and other
significant operational matters of the Group. Responsibilities relating
to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and co-ordinating
the daily operation and management of the Group are delegated to
the management.

LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR THE DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS
The Company purchases annually the Directors and officers’ liability
insurance for members of the Board and officers to provide protection
against claims arising from the lawful discharge of duties by the
Directors and officers.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes
in order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received formal, comprehensive
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment
to ensure appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Group and full awareness of director’'s responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.

The record of continuous professional development relating to
Director’s duties and regulatory and business development that have
been received by the Directors for the year ended 31 March 2020 are
summarized as follows:
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Type of Training ">

Directors 2= IE TSR

Executive Directors HITES

Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis BAmEL A B

Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley BEsLEE A B

Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan BREEREE A, B

Ms. Chan Wai Kwan Rita PREEZ T A, B

Non-executive Director FHITES

Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen BHEEE A, B

Independent Non-executive Directors BUFHTES

Mr. Au Man Chung Malcolm BXHEE A, B
(resigned with effect from 16 August 2019) (B2019%8 A 16 B EBHT)

Mr. Li Ka Fai David FRELE A B

Mr. Liu Hui Allan 2l % A, B

Dr. Wong Chi Yun Allan BEFREL A, B
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Note:
Types of Training

A Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings,
seminars, conferences and workshops

B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and
relevant publications

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are established with specific written
terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority and duties.

The list of the chairman and members of each Board committee is set
out under “Board of Directors” on page 54.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises one Non-executive Director, namely
Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen, and all Independent Non-executive
Directors namely Mr. Li Ka Fai David (Chairman of the Committee),
Mr. Liu Hui Allan and Dr. Wong Chi Yun Allan (including one
Independent Non-executive Director who possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise).

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code and are posted on
the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are
available to shareholders upon request. The primary functions of the
Audit Committee include the following:

e To monitor integrity of the Company’s financial statements and
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports, and to review significant financial
reporting judgments contained in them.

e To act as key representative body for overseeing the Company’s
relation with the external auditors, and to be primarily responsible
for making recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the external auditors, and
to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditors, and to consider any questions of their
resignation or dismissal.

e To review the Company’s financial controls, internal controls and
risk management systems.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Audit Committee held
two meetings to review the interim and annual financial results and
reports and significant issues on the financial reporting, operational
and compliance controls, the effectiveness of the risk management
and internal control systems and internal audit function, appointment
of external auditors and relevant scope of works and arrangements
for employees to raise concerns about possible improprieties.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors twice without the
presence of the Executive Directors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, namely,
Dr. Wong Chi Yun Allan (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Li Ka
Fai David and Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis, the majority of them are
Independent Non-executive Directors.
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The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code and are posted on
the Company’s website and the Stock Exchanges’ website and are
available to shareholders upon request. The primary functions of the
Remuneration Committee include the following:

e To make recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all Directors’ and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy.

e To make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual Executive Directors and the senior
management.

e To review and approve compensation payable to Executive
Directors and senior management for any loss or termination
of office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with
contractual terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Remuneration Committee
met once to review the remuneration policy and structure of the
Company and determine the annual remuneration packages of the
Executive Directors and the senior management and other related
matters. The Human Resources Department is responsible for
collection and administration of the human resources data and making
recommendations to the Remuneration Committee for consideration.
The Remuneration Committee will consult the Chairman and/or the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company about these recommendations
on remuneration policy and structure and remuneration packages.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three members, namely
Dr. Wong Chi Yun Allan (Chairman of the Committee), Mr. Li Ka
Fai David and Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis, the majority of them are
Independent Non-executive Directors.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code and are posted on
the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are
available to shareholders upon request. The primary function of the
Nomination Committee include the following:

e To review the structure, size and composition of the Board and
make recommendations regarding any proposed changes.

e To identify suitable candidates for appointment as Directors.

e To assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors.

e To make recommendations to the Board on appointment or re-
appointment of and succession planning for Directors.
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In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would
take into account various aspects set out in the Board Diversity Policy,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and industry
and regional experience. The Nomination Committee would discuss
and agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the
Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the Board for
adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s character,
qualifications, experience, independence and other relevant criteria
necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board
diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation to the
Board.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Nomination Committee
held one meeting to review the structure, size and composition of
the Board and the independence of the Independent Non-executive
Directors, and to consider the qualifications of the retiring directors
standing for election at the annual general meeting. The Nomination
Committee considered an appropriate balance of diversity perspective
of the Board is maintained.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy on 23 November
2018 which sets out the approach to achieve diversity of the Board
and is available on the website of the Company. The Company
recognizes and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board and
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Nomination Committee will
review annually the structure, size and composition of the Board and
where appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the Board
to complement the Company’s corporate strategy and to ensure
that the Board maintains a balanced diverse profile. In relation to
reviewing and assessing the Board composition and the nomination of
Directors, the Nomination Committee is committed to diversity at all
levels and will consider a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and regional and industry experience.

The Company aims to maintain an appropriate balance of diversity
perspectives that are relevant to the Company’s business growth and
is also committed to ensuring that recruitment and selection practices
at all levels (from the Board downwards) are appropriately structured
so that a diverse range of candidates are considered.

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement
the Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to
time to ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made
towards achieving those objectives.

At present, the Nomination Committee considered that the Board
is sufficiently diverse and the Board has not set any measurable
objectives.
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The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

Director Nomination Policy

The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection
and appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee of the
Company.

The Company has adopted a Director Nomination Policy on 23
November 2018 which sets out the selection criteria and process and
the Board succession planning considerations in relation to nomination
and appointment of Directors of the Company and aims to ensure
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the Company and the continuity of the
Board and appropriate leadership at Board level.

The Director Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the
suitability and the potential contribution to the Board of a proposed
candidate, including but not limited to the following:

o Character and integrity;

o Qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience that are relevant to the Company’s
business and corporate strategy;

o Diversity in all aspects, including but not limited to gender,
age (18 years or above), cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service;

o Requirements of Independent Non-executive Directors on the
Board and independence of the proposed Independent Non-
executive Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules; and

o Commitment in respect of available time and relevant interest
to discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company.

The Director Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for
the selection and appointment of new Directors and re-election of
Directors at general meetings. Saved as the disclosure in the section
headed “Changes in Directors’ Information” on pages 73 and 74 of
this Annual Report, there was no change in the composition of the
Board.

The Nomination Committee will review the Director Nomination Policy,
as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board had reviewed the
Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and Written Employee Guidelines, and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEE
MEMBERS

The attendance records of each Director at the Board and Board
Committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held
during the year ended 31 March 2020 are set out in the table below:

EERZATRRHFIS

BEEHFEE2020F3A31ALFERTHNES
EREEZEEERURARARRASHHER
BEIMT

Attendance/Number of Meetings

HER/GEETRE

Other
Annual General
Nomination Remuneration Audit General Meetings
Board Committee = Committee = Committee Meeting (if any)
B=R HiplRR
Name of Director EEng Exg REZET FHEEE EHEEE BFRE K2WH)
Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis BAfmEL 414 1 171 NATER 171 NA TEH
Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley B E 44  NATER  NATER NATER 171 NA TEH
Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan BEREE 44  NATER  NATER NATER 171 NA TEH
Ms. Chan Wai Kwan Rita REELZL 44  NATER  NATER NATER 171 NA TEH
Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen  JB#ZE4E 44 NATER  NATER 212 o1 NATER
Mr. Au Man Chung Malcolm* B3 F &4+ 01 NATER  NATER 01 o1 NATER
Mr. Li Ka Fai David FRELLE 414 1”1 11 212 171 NA TEH
Mr. Liu Hui Allan 2B %% 34 NATER  NATEAR 12 o1 NATER
Dr. Wong Chi Yun Allan BEFMEL 3/4 1”1 11 12 171 NATBEH

S resigned on 16 August 2019 3 M2019F8 A 16 HEHE

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held meetings
with the Independent Non-executive Directors without the presence of
other Directors during the year.

Directors’ Responsibility in Respect of the Financial Statements
The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2020.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Group about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is
set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 75 to 82.

The Audit Committee has the same view with the Board regarding the
selection and re-appointment of external auditors.

The Group’s annual results for the year ended 31 March 2020 have
been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

Auditors’ Remuneration

The remunerations paid to the Group’s external auditors in respect
of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 31 March
2020 is HK$1,200,000 and HK$672,000 respectively.

FR - BRERESESHN  IETEHGESE
FRBERTEEIFHUTESARBAEE -

EFANMERRAEZRE
EEAERHBEEEREANEEEHE2020F3A31H
LHEFEEZHEMBRE -

ESVTAZEMNEATRERNZS R TREHARE
B ESERNERERRERZSHRER -

AEBBIZBNEREARGEMBRREREZ
HRSE2BRRNEISEERE 2 BIXEE
e 1R o
ERZECHEESHHRNEARMNERYGER
_ﬁ °

AEEHZE2020F383 1B LEFE2FEEXACH
EREZEGERM -

BB Z

AEERBE2020F3A31 HIEFERFFIEZ
HEV AR BRI MR BIRTE 2 H B o B R B
1,200,000t & & #672,0007T °

Annual Report 2019/20 FEHERE

61



62

Corporate Governance Report EEaHE

Company Secretary

The Company Secretary reports to the Chairman and is responsible for
providing advice to the Board for ensuring the Board procedures are
followed. For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company Secretary
has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training duly
complied with the training requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing
Rules.

RISK. MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group's strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control
systems.

The Audit Committee, assists the Board in leading the management
and overseeing its design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.

More details of the risk management and internal controls are
disclosed in the section “Risk Management and Internal Control” on
pages 51 and 52.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate resolution
should be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general
meetings, including the election of individual Directors. All resolutions
put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to
the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

Convening a Special General Meeting by Shareholders

Special general meetings may be convened by the Directors on
requisition of shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Directors
fail to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionists, or any
of them representing more than one half of the total voting rights of
all of them, may themselves convene a meeting in accordance with
Section 74(3) of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981.

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Pursuant to Section 79 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981,
shareholders representing not less than one-twentieth of the total
voting rights of all shareholders; or not less than 100 shareholders
may make requisition in writing to the Company:

(a) to give to shareholders of the Company entitled to receive notice
of the next annual general meeting notice of any resolution
which may properly be moved and is intended to be moved at
that meeting; and

LAFIHE

AFWERNEERS  WEEOEZTSRMHRSR -
URRETESSREF - BF2020F38310LLF
E > AAnECHEABET EHRAEINEE/EE
SR EES SO SN AR E T -

RIFEERAEBECE
ESERANTHEEAREERABEZRSL
B ERMERE - ZERKETEREMIEBRAR
BEEREBEENERE  MERERFTEEERN
KERAFBRFHEEMIFEHHNRE -

ESS2HEETMRETAEBIENER B R
FTESEZEANRBEERREE @ YRIMERSSE
MARNERERRAIEEREL o

B EEEMNESERREEIFIEEESRS
FREt  BRREERBREERAMEZERLS -

BEEERABEENE L HEBRENESIRS2E
[RREERANIBEE 6K -

BRERiER

RRERREZEER  AQOFEHEEKEH
EH(BREEHENES)RBRRASREBILRE
R FIBERRRASREZREBRSRELTRE
DBREFARR  REERBNRERRASERE
ERABRBRAEBATIE -

BEZMARREINAE
EEMENEZFREABETORAATERER
AATBRRAGLBREZHMERANT D2 —HRRK
HERBHERREIARE - MABBEEZ#%21H8
W BEEREEMAZAE  BIEEFRALRER
SHRERBECEA—BEZERAL - ARE
BARE1QIFEQNTEE7IQRBETARAE -

RERAXEFLRE®RE
REBREZIBIFERRERE7ME - H2BBRRER
ERRIR-T D2 —HRERFITDRI100E KRR
AEAXEREEEEHR

(a) MAXTERUNT-ERRBFASESZ
BRRENRZRE LEMTREEXDERED

AZAAE R

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited s8R iESEM EBAR QT



(b) to circulate to shareholders entitled to have notice of any general
meeting sent to them any statement of not more than 1,000
words with respect to the matter referred to in any proposed
resolution or the business to be dealt with at that meeting.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company. The
Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.

CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year ended 31 March 2020. An up-to-date version of the
Company’s Bye-laws is available on the Company’s website and the
Stock Exchange.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with
shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings and
other general meetings. At the annual general meetings, Directors (or
their delegates as appropriate) are available to meet shareholders and
answer their enquiries.

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests at any time to the
following:

Address:  8th Floor, Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre, 220-248 Texaco
Road, Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Board of Directors/Company
Secretary)

Fax: (852) 2409 0294

Email: enquiry@chinahkphoto.com.hk

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their
full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.

The Company has in place a Shareholders’” Communication Policy
to ensure that shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on 23 November 2018
on payment of dividends. The Company intends to distribute 30-
70% of its annual net profit as dividends to its shareholders, subject
to the financial conditions of the Company and the Group and the
conditions and factors as set out in the Dividend Policy, dividends
may be proposed and/or declared by the Board during a financial
year and any final dividend for a financial year will be subject to the
shareholders’ approval.

(b) EEEERXEMARRAGBEEZRRE[DT
BiB1,000F 2RME » LWERMRZAS LR
EAEEMEEIEER S -

MEEEFHER
RRAZBHEEMEABRZAERARFTNEXARD
AEFEFEEASH - AQXADEFTEREOR
FEENER o

HmEEXteEn
REZE2020F3831HILFE @ "ATRZHEHBAER
NHEEE o ANA T ZHEHARAD TME A HAK
NEPIE R FTER o

BEEREERRRERE

FRRRA ERRENEBBEHREREERER
MRREEHUAEE 2 EBRARKRBEREHEE
B -ARFABIRFERR2BENHEE - LHE
BERRBERERAMBRRAE - RREFKS
b EEEES2ARMER))SHEERRR
EIEERE 2R -

RERAMEARREERUAT AR BXEHRER :

ik . BEEEELEE220-248KTE T E D
8tg
(FHBHEAEESSE DARE)

#HE : (852) 2409 0294
EH © enquiry@chinahkphoto.com.hk

ARER  RREFEABEZEEMER - BAH
BRANEH(RBERME) 2 ERETL#HXE LIl
ik - WRHEEEEE  BEFERIOER - F
BEN - RREMTERBEZREM TLUKE -

AABRERERRBABEUBRRR ZZERE
EBHEERR - AN A EPREHZBEUARRE
B -

BB BR

AATER2018F 11 823 BFIRAT IR ERMR B I

o RAQTFEAE30-70% FEFFBERBRES R

FHEHRR  HRFRQBRAERZFHEART AR

REBEMBZBEREZEME » EBSFARIK

EW_ ZR/HERE B AR EAMBREEZRAR
HERRRALE ©

Annual Report 2019/20 FEHERE

63



64

Report of the Directors

EEERE

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their Annual Report and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Company’s subsidiaries are principally engaged in (i) the marketing
and distribution of photographic developing, processing and printing
products and sale of photographic merchandises, skincare products,
consumer electronic products and household appliances; and (ii)
the provision of technical services for photographic developing and
processing products, imaging solution, professional audio-visual
advisory and custom design and installation service. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities
during the year ended 31 March 2020.

ANNUAL RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The Group's annual results for the year ended 31 March 2020 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 83 to 162.

The Board does not recommend any payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business activities as required by Schedule 5
to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) of Hong Kong, including a
fair review of the Group’s business as well as future development in
the Group's business can be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s
Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 14
to 27 of this Annual Report.

Certain financial key performance indicators which complement and
supplement our financial disclosures are set out on page 4.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets, liabilities and
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years
is set out on page 4.

FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The financial position of the Group remained sound and healthy
during the year ended 31 March 2020. As at 31 March 2020, the
Group's cash and bank balances were approximately HK$197 million
with a zero gearing ratio. Trade receivables of approximately HK$44
million were recorded as at 31 March 2020, while inventories were
approximately HK$170 million.
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HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group had 527 employees (2019: 474), remunerated largely
based on industry practice, including provident funds, insurance
and medical benefits. The Group also adopted a discretionary bonus
programme determined annually based upon the performance of the
Group and the employees.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment, and
investment properties of the Group during the year ended 31 March
2020 are set out in Notes 13 and 14 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively. Further details of the Group’s investment
properties are set out on page 163.

SHARE CAPITAL

There were no movements in either the Company’s authorised or
issued share capital during the year ended 31 March 2020. Details of
the Company’s share capital is set out in Note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2020 are set out in Note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on page 87 and 88, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2020, the Company did not have any reserves
available for distribution, as computed in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended). The
Company’s share premium account and capital redemption reserve
account of HK$490,378,000 and HK$1,619,000, respectively, may be
distributed in the form of fully paid bonus shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to
offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES
OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 March 2020.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
No equity-linked agreements were entered into during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.
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CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS
During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group made charitable
contributions totalling HK$233,000.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group’s five largest customers
and the largest customer accounted for 15.1% and 4.7% of the
Group’s total sales for the year, respectively. Purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers and the largest supplier accounted for
approximately 77.0% and 26.6% of the Group's total purchases for
the year, respectively.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or
any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 March 2020
and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis (Chairman)

Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan

Ms. Chan Wai Kwan Rita (appointed on 1 April 2019)

Non-executive Director:
Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Au Man Chung Malcolm (resigned on 16 August 2019)
Mr. Li Ka Fai David

Mr. Liu Hui Allan

Dr. Wong Chi Yun Allan

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws 110, Mr. Li Ka Fai David,
Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan and Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen shall retire
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

Mr. Au Man Chung Malcolm retired as an Independent Non-executive
Director and ceased to be the chairman and a member of Remuneration
Committee and a member of each of Audit Committee and Nomination
Committee of the Company with effect from the conclusion of the
Company’s annual general meeting held on 16 August 2019. Mr.
Au Man Chung Malcolm has confirmed that he has no disagreement
with the Board and nothing relating to the affairs of the Company
needed to be brought to the attention of the shareholders or the Stock
Exchange.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from all Independent Non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 28 to 32 of
the Annual Report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Company entered into a service contract with each of the
following Directors for their provision of management services to the
Group:

Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis
Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley
Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan

Ms. Chan Wai Kwan Rita

Each service contract for each of the Executive Directors has a
remaining unexpired term of 3 years as at 31 March 2020 and is
subject to the termination by either party upon giving three months’
notice to the other party.

Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not terminable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Company’s Bye-laws request that all Directors and officers of
the Company shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they shall or may incur
or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in
or about the execution of their duty.

Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance is arranged to cover all the
Directors and officers of the Group against any potential costs and
liabilities arising from claims brought against them.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors on a named basis
during the year ended 31 March 2020 are set out in Note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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REMUNERATION POLICY

Remuneration Policy of the Group is reviewed regularly, making
reference to market condition and performance of the Group and
individual staff (including the Director). The Remuneration Policy and
remuneration packages of the Directors and management team are
reviewed by the Remuneration Committee and the Board which are
detailed in the paragraph headed “Remuneration Committee” under
the Corporate Governance Report on pages 57 and 58.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its holding companies or subsidiaries was a party
during the year ended 31 March 2020.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”), were as follows:
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Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:

FAFEBERFE -

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

FERNHE - SORERMEE

Directly Percentage of the

beneficially Founder  Beneficiary Interest Company’s issued

Name of Director Note owned of a trust of a trust of spouse Total share capital

(RN

HiE 57 EBRITRAZ

EENE i = BRERE EEAIBRA ZEHA [iREREd st Bt

Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis (i) - (iii) 1,000,000 700,034,214 11,242,000 220,000 712,496,214 60.11%
BARfmEL

Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley (iv) & (v) - - 711,276,214 - 711,276,214 60.01%
Bt et

Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan (iv) & (v) - - 711,276,214 - 711,276,214 60.01%
BREBERAE

Mr. Fung Yue Chun (vi) - - 70,000,000 - 70,000,000 5.90%
Stephen
BWERE

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of associated corporations:

HBEERR 3 R ZIFE :
Percentage of
the associated
Name of Relationship Capacity and corporation’s
associated with the Number of  nature of issued share
Name of Director corporation Company Shares shares held interest capital
1K IEEECEEE
BENE HEEEERE HEHALTER  RG BERHOHE HEEME BITRAZEDL
Dr. Sun Tai Lun Searich Group ~ Company’s Ordinary shares 25  Beneficiary 25%
Dennis Limited immediate (note (i) of a trust
BAfmiEL holding
company
ARRzEHE  EBERMEED) ERE2ZHEA
RN E
—ditto— —ditto— Ordinary shares 75  Founder 75%
(note (ii)) of a trust
EL Eili R (ML i) ERERIBEA
100 100%
Dr. Sun Tai Lun Fine Products Company’s Ordinary shares 103,000,000  Founder 100%
Dennis Limited ultimate (note (i) of a trust
PN holding
company
RAFZEE HBERMEG)) EFERIMEA
EIRAF
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Notes:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

EEEWmE

Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis is deemed to be interested in a total of 11,242,000
shares in the Company directly held by Dago Corporation, which is a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is owned by Tricor
Equity Trustee Limited in its capacity as the trustee of The Dennis Family
Trust, a discretionary trust established for the benefit of Dr. Sun Tai Lun
Dennis and his family members. Tricor Equity Trustee Limited was appointed
as the new trustee in place of Trident Trust Company (B.V.l.) Limited with
effect from 1 January 2020. Dago Corporation also holds 25% of the issued
share capital of Searich Group Limited.

Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis is deemed to be interested in 700,034,214 shares
in the Company held by Fine Products Limited by virtue of him being the
founder of The Sun Family Trust which holds the entire issued share capital
of Fine Products Limited. 75% of the issued share capital of Searich Group
Limited is held by Fine Products Limited. Details of the interest of Fine
Products Limited and Searich Group Limited in the Company can be found
in the section “Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” below.

Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis is deemed to be interested in 220,000 shares of the
Company through the interests of his spouse, Ms. Tang Sau Ying Betty who
inherited the said shares from her mother’s legacy in 2014.

Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley and Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan are deemed to be
interested in a total of 11,242,000 shares in the Company directly held
by Dago Corporation, which is a company incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands and is owned by Tricor Equity Trustee Limited in its
capacity as the trustee of The Dennis Family Trust, a discretionary trust
established for the benefit of Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis and his family
members including Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley and Mr. Sun Tao Hsi
Ryan. Tricor Equity Trustee Limited was appointed as the new trustee
in place of Trident Trust Company (B.V.l.) Limited with effect from 1
January 2020. Dago Corporation also holds 25% of the issued share
capital of Searich Group Limited.

Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley and Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan are deemed to
be interested in a total of 700,034,214 shares in the Company held by
Fine Products Limited by virtue of them being beneficiaries of The Sun
Family Trust which holds the entire issued share capital of Fine Products
Limited. 75% of the issued share capital of Searich Group Limited is
held by Fine Products Limited. Details of the interests of Fine Products
Limited and Searich Group Limited in the Company can be found in
the section “Substantial shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” below.

Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen is deemed to be interested in 70,000,000
shares of the Company held by HSBC Trustees (C.I.) Limited by virtue
of him being a beneficiary of a trust of which HSBC Trustees (C.I.)
Limited act as trustee. Details of the interest of HSBC Trustees (C.l.)
Limited in the Company can be found in the Section “Substantial
Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares
and Underlying Shares” below.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the Directors
of the Company and any of its associates had registered an interest or
short position in the shares and underlying shares of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of part XV of
SFO) that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares and Underlying Shares” above, at no time during
the financial year were rights to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any Directors or their respective spouse or minor children, or were
any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of
its holding companies or subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors or their associates to acquire benefits by means
of acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2020, other than the interest of the Directors as
disclosed in the section “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares and Underlying Shares” above. The following interests
and short positions in the shares and the underlying shares of the
Company were recorded in the register of interests required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

EFMKmRREEZER
BREXTESRRORBERG 2 EERKXR |-
FiBEEN AU BREFEAYEESREAZH 28
BRRARFRLZERUVEBARNRBD 2RO R ERE
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ZHAEESHHEBEABBRESNQAIHEMH
iR N BB HO R 10 S fEFERR LAERAS R o

FERRREMBAREGREMKRMGZER
R%E

M202063A318 - BREXTEERER M REERD
ZREBRAR |- EEEEREN - BREALQ
AIRBEESRBERGEBRREBFZRRER
MAE - THALHEARARDREERG 2

EERER

Long positions of substantial shareholders who were entitled to exercise or control the exercise of 5% or more

of the voting power at any general meeting of the Company:

FRTEREHTEAATEARRAE L %A L RERZFTERRZFR !

Percentage of the

Capacity and

Number of ordinary

Company’s issued

Name of shareholder nature of interest shares held Note share gg\it%l
NG
BRRERE B RERME BEZBERER FiaE EBTREAZESL
Dr. Sun Tai Lun Dennis Beneficial owner 1,000,000 0.08%
BRfmEL EnlE
Beneficiary of a trust 11,242,000 (i) & (ii) 0.95%
ErEZ s
Founder of a trust 700,034,214 (i) & (i) 59.06%
EFERIM A
Interest of spouse 220,000 0.02%
[T
712,496,214 60.11%
Fine Products Limited Beneficial owner & interest 700,034,214 (i) & (ii) 59.06%
ﬁg)i a controlled cor o[_aation
BEnEEARZEEEESR
Searich Group Limited Beneficial owner 600,034,214 (i) & (ii) 50.62%
Bm
Tricor Equity Trustee Limited Trustee 711,276,214 (i) & (ii) 60.01%
Ms. Tang Sau Ying Betty Beneficial owner 220,000 0.02%
WERLL =5
Interest of spouse 712,276,214 (i) & (iii) 60.09%
[ty
712,496,214 60.11%
Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley Beneficiary of a trust 711,276,214 (iv) 60.01%
HBiBELEE ERgn
Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan Beneficj@r of a trust 711,276,214 (iv) 60.01%
BRIBEREE EREn
Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen Beneficiary of a trust 70,000,000  (v), (vii) 5.90%
BEREE FERZHEA & (viii)
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EEEWmE

Long positions of other substantial shareholders:

HtX2RR2HA :

Capacity and

Number of ordinary

Percentage of the
Company’s issued

Name of shareholder nature of interest shares held Note share capital
{HARAF]

BRREE SR RERME BELBEREE MIEE BETRAZES L

Mr. Fung Kwok Lun William Interest of a controlled corporation 70,000,000 (vi), (vii) & (viii) 5.90%

BElm L FELEER

Fung Retailing Limited Beneficial owner 70,000,000 (vi), (vii) & (viii) 5.90%

BREEEEBRLT BREBA

Fung Holdings (1937) Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 70,000,000 (vi), (vii) & (viii) 5.90%

BERER(1937)BRAE] FELEER

King Lun Holdings Limited Interest of a controlled corporation 70,000,000 (vi), (vii) & (viii) 5.90%

iR ERAE FELEER

HSBC Trustee (C.I.) Limited Trustee 70,000,000  (vii) & (viii) 5.90%

IEL N

Notes: =t

(i) 100,000,000 shares representing 8.44% of the Company’s shares (i) 5%100,000,000 R R (EAR AT ERITRH 2
in issue are directly owned by Fine Products Limited. The remaining 8.44%) M Fine Products Limited EL}E#EA © 4T
600,034,214 shares are owned by Searich Group Limited, in which Fine 2600,034,214%B& {2 i Searich Group Limited#
Products Limited holds 75% of its issued share capital. Fine Products & » MFine Products Limited BB Z A 7 C %
Limited is a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is {TBEANT75% ° Fine Products Limited & — B %
owned by Tricor Equity Trustee Limited in its capacity as the trustee of BEZESHEMEILZAT » I HTricor Equity
The Sun Family Trust. Tricor Equity Trustee Limited was appointed as Trustee LimitedAThe Sun Family TrustfS5EA &4
the new trustee in place of Trident Trust Company (B.V.l.) Limited with P& ° Tricor Equity Trustee LimitedEXf&Trident
effect from 1 January 2020. Trust Company (B.V.l) LimitedEEEBHZFTA

H2020F 1B 1HBER ©

(ii) Such interests have been included as the interests of Dr. Sun Tai Lun (i) ZEREGCEETRARBLI cERZZR -
Dennis.

(iii) Ms. Tang Sau Ying Betty is deemed to be interested in 712,276,214 (i) BERLITERAEBERBRAGE L ZEEM
shares of the Company through the interests of her spouse, Dr. Sun #E712,276, 214 A ARG 2 ©
Tai Lun Dennis.

(iv) Mr. Sun Tao Hung Stanley and Mr. Sun Tao Hsi Ryan are deemed to be (i) BREBLAEERBRERBAEEBREL G BThe Sun
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interested in a total of 711,276,214 shares in the Company by virtue
of being beneficiaries of The Sun Family Trust and The Dennis Family
Trust.

Family Trust® The Dennis Family TrustZz 3% A%
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(v) Mr. Fung Yue Chun Stephen is deemed to be interested in a total of
70,000,000 shares of the Company by virtue of him being a beneficiary
of a trust of which HSBC Trustee (C.l.) Limited act as trustee.

(vi) The interests of Mr. Fung Kwok Lun William are held via a chain of
controlled corporations, namely Fung Retailing Limited, Fung Holdings
(1937) Limited and King Lun Holdings Limited (which is 50% owned by
Mr. Fung Kwok Lun William).

(vii) The interests of HSBC Trustee (C.l.) Limited are held via a chain of
controlled corporations, namely Fung Retailing Limited, Fung Holdings
(1937) Limited and King Lun Holdings Limited (which is 50% owned by
HSBC Trustee (C.I.) Limited).

(viii) The interests of Mr. Fung Kwok Lun William and HSBC Trustee (C.I.)
Limited as mentioned in the above notes (vi) and (vii) refer to the same
block of shares in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, no person, other
than the Directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the section “Directors’ Interests and Short Positions in Shares and
Underlying Shares” above, had registered an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required
to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
report.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
Changes in information of Directors which are required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are set out below:

1. Ms. Chan Wai Kwan Rita was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company with effect from 1 April 2019.

2. Mr. Au Man Chung Malcolm retired as an Independent
Non-executive Director and ceased to be the chairman and
a member of Remuneration Committee and a member of
each of Audit Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company with effect from the conclusion of the Company’s
annual general meeting held on 16 August 2019.

3. Dr. Wong Chi Yun Allan was appointed as the chairman of
Remuneration Committee in place of Mr. Au Man Chung
Malcolm with effect from the conclusion of the Company’s
annual general meeting held on the 16 August 2019. Dr.
Wong retired as an independent non-executive director of
MTR Corporation Limited (a Company listed on the Stock
Exchange, Stock Code: 66) and resigned as an independent
non-executive director of Li & Fung Limited (the shares of
which were withdrawn from the listing on the Stock Exchange
on 27 May 2020) with effect from 20 May 2020 and 28 May
2020 respectively.
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4. Mr. Li Ka Fai David was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of CR Construction Group Holdings Limited
(a company listed on the Stock Exchange, Stock Code: 1582),
the chairman of each of its audit committee and remuneration
committee and a member of its nomination committee with
effect from 16 October 2019.

Save as disclosed above, during the period under review and up to
the date of this report, there is no other change in information of
Directors required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules.

AUDITOR
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2020 have been audited by Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers.

PricewaterhouseCoopers will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Sun Tai Lun Dennis
Chairman

Hong Kong
24 June 2020
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
B 2B S

e
pwec

To the Shareholders of China-Hongkong Photo Products
Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China-Hongkong Photo
Products Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
"Group”) set out on pages 83 to 162 which comprise:

e the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
March 2020;

e the consolidated income statement for the year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

e the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

e the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

: PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888,
F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

BRHER
EMEREFTBEHAOSEF(EREEL)
ETES RMEZSETRENEISELR
S REMR B G BBRRERENEET NS
FREE — SR o

HFEE  RAFESHNENRIEARREE L
ARMNETERIBMERE -

ERTA
RESBETMASRAA(EXSITMERTA)
(UTERFA)  ZMBIR BEEE - YERE
TFAPHAMERERET -

HEEEER
ERBSTZEERERMNEXHE - HEARY
FEMBBRNETRAEENSE - SLEFER
ERMETERGSVBERRAREASZRETE
B c RMTSHELEERHEBNER -

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited s8R iESEM EBAR QT



KEY AUDIT MATTERS /Continued)
Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

e Provision for inventories
e Valuation of investment properties

e Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets

Key Audit Matters

Provision for inventories

Refer to Note 2.13, 4(i), 18 tfo the consolidated financial
statements

As at 31 March 2020, the Group held inventories of HK$169,508,000.
A net provision for inventories of HK$2,627,000 was charged to
the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 March
2020. As described in the accounting policy in Note 2.13 to the
consolidated financial statements, inventories are carried at the
lower of cost and net realisable value.

The Group’'s inventories are subject to changing consumer
demands and market trends, increasing the level of judgment
involved in estimating provision for inventories.

We focused on this area because of magnitude of the inventories
and judgment is required to assess the appropriate level of
provisioning for items which may be ultimately written off or
sold below cost as a result of a reduction in consumer demand
particularly in light of the current volatile retail market situation.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
We performed the following procedures to evaluate the provision
for inventories:

— Understood the Group’s inventory provisioning policy;

— Assessed the appropriateness of the Group’s inventory
provisioning policy with respect to the inventories by category
based on ageing together with the historical sales records
which reflected the expected life cycle of similar products;

— Compared the net realisable value of the inventories held
at year end, on a sample basis, to latest selling prices by
examining the sales invoices; where there are no subsequent
sales of the respective inventories after the balance sheet
date, we challenged management as to the realisable value of
the inventories, corroborating explanations with the aging and
marketability of the respective inventories as appropriate; and

— Tested the accuracy of aging profile of inventories used in the
inventory provision and recalculated the inventory provision as
at year end based on the Group's provisioning policy.

Based on the above procedures performed, we consider
management's judgment and estimates in the assessment of
provision for inventories, supported by the available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS /Continved)

Key Audit Matters /Continved)

Valuation of investment properties

Refer fo Note 2.9, 4(iii) and 14 fo the consolidated financial
statements

Management has estimated the fair value of the Group’s
investment properties to be HK$225,436,000 at 31 March
2020, with a revaluation loss for the year ended 31 March 2020
recorded in the consolidated income statement of HK$3,587,000.
Valuations by an independent external valuer were obtained in
order to support management’s estimates. The valuations are
dependent on certain key assumptions that require significant
judgment, such as adjusted unit prices.

We focused on this area due to the significant amount of
revaluation loss recorded for the year and the significant
management judgment used to evaluate the fair value of the
Group's investment properties.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
We performed the following procedures in relation to
management’s valuations of investment properties:

— Evaluated the independent external valuer's competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

—  Discussed with the valuer for the valuation methodology and
challenging the key estimates and assumptions adopted in the
valuations;

— Used our in-house valuation experts to assess the
appropriateness of the valuation methodology used by
the valuer and the reasonableness of the key assumptions
adopted for the valuations based on our knowledge of the
local property market; and

—  Checked on a sample basis the adopted market unit prices by
making reference to available comparable market data.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the methodologies
used in preparing the valuations were appropriate and the key
assumptions were supported by evidence obtained.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS /Continved)

Key Audit Matters /Continved)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

Refer to Note 4(iv), 13 and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group had HK$38,582,000 and HK$101,507,000 of property,
plant and equipment and right-of-use assets respectively as at
31 March 2020, of which approximately HK$79,750,000 was
attributable to its retail stores. The carrying amount of the retail
stores assets is written down to its recoverable amount if the
asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount.

Management regards each individual retail store as a separately
identifiable cash-generating unit and monitors their financial
performance for the existence of impairment indicators, such as
trading performance is below expectation or store is loss making.

Management carried out an impairment assessment for the retail
store assets which has an impairment indicator (referred to as
“underperforming retail stores”) and as a result an impairment
loss of HK$8,187,000 has been recognised in the consolidated
income statement for the year. The recoverable amount of the
assets of underperforming retail stores is determined by value-
in-use calculations using discounted cash flow projections based
on the financial forecasts approved by management covering the
remaining tenure of the lease.

We focused on this area because significant estimation and
judgment were involved in deciding whether a retail store has an
impairment indicator and in determining the recoverable amounts
of the relevant retail store assets.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
We performed the following procedures to evaluate management’s
assessment process for identifying underperforming retail stores:

— Enquired of management on their basis of identifying
impairment indicators;

— Challenged the judgments made in the identification of
impairment indicators; and

— Compared current year's performance of retail stores with
impairment indicators to the store prior year's performance.

We tested the impairment calculation by performing the following
procedures:

- Compared the forecasted sales performance to the approved
business plan, and compared estimated running costs to the
historical records;

— Enquired of management in relation to key assumptions
in their business plan and evaluated the key assumptions
(such as revenue growth rate and gross profit margin)
applied by comparing them to historical information and our
understanding of latest market information and conditions;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS /Continved)

Key Audit Matters /Continved)

Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment and

right-of-use assets /[Continued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter /Continued)

- Tested the discount rates with reference to our understanding
of the business including the future business plans of the
relevant retail stores and comparisons to other similar
companies; and

- Recomputed the impairment loss calculation.

Based on our work performed, we found the impairment of
retail store assets made by the management to be supported by
available evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

FRFEFERE)
MEEtER(E)
WE BERREUREHABEEZ RERFE(E)

EFNETNNEEFARETSHE)

- ZREAMBEBNTHEUBRRETIS - 8
EHERTEEHRRERE - BESTFEA
BRI BERA M BER RS &

- EFEFERESSE -

REEPFATHIE  BRMNRAEEEBRTERE
HEEMERRERRESBREXS -

Hftiig 2
EAREFAHHAMEERE - HUEEBEFR
RHFAERER  EFEEFREMBERRREMOZ
HETRE o

RMHEAUBRRNERL FRELBES R
PSR SRS B REATRNERLER o

FRRMYSRSUMBRERNET  ZHMNNEERHE
BEEMES  AUBES  TRHMEERTHEER
EUBBRRABRMESFTBRETRTBNEREE
EXRBEBRECTFFEERERBRALHER

EREMEHTHIE  IRERMADEMERR
EEAHERRL  EMFZERSHTE - EES
| BB EAHRS

EERFRERENGAMBERARENE
-5

BARESALBERBEEBSTMASEAN(EE
PR ELIDREB(R ARV RBRERHE
BEMPBENGESMBHRE  YHERRARRGRSH
BRERNERTFEHRAFRERMEANEX
HRBUR TR AR EHES -

ERUGESVBRRE  EZ8HNME S5EE
BRENRED  YEERABRTHRERSHELSER
BNER  UREAFESERSTER  BRFE
EARK BEXEEERAFLEE  HHEHEME
BEHERERE -

EREEEAEEEE BESENNBREERE -

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited s8R iESEM EBAR QT



AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’'s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS /Continued)

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Cheung Kin Bong.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 June 2020
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Consolidated Income Statement

A S>>
el
For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE2020F3A31HLEE

2020 2019
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
FIEE BT T BT T
Revenue Wz 6 880,298 959,045
Cost of sales SHER A 7 (685,266) (741,743)
Gross profit ER 195,032 217,302
Other income and gains HA A K g 6 22,559 15,961
Changes in fair value of investment properties &% N\ FEZE 14 (3,587) 8,908
Selling and distribution costs HERSHER 7 (141,633) (145,725)
Advertising and marketing expenses BERTSHERERR 7 (13,163) (23,915)
Administrative expenses THRX 7 (83,696) (83,933)
Impairment loss on property, plant and ¥ - BERREUREA
equipment and right-of-use assets REEZRERFE 13,15 (8,187) =
Impairment loss on amount due from an FEUS — BB E A RFIRZ
associate RIEEE 17 - (32,720)
Operating loss REREE (32,675) (44,122)
Interest expense on lease liabilities HESERSMX (3,379) =
Share of results of an associate P — RS D R A = =
Loss before income tax MRATSBATEE (36,054) (44,122)
Income tax credit/(expense) FresiER (FBAx) 10 4,335 (2,239)
Loss for the year KEEERE (31,719) (46,361)
(Loss)/profit attributable to: (B518) /RERBN
Owners of the Company RABEBA (29,093) (46,691)
Non-controlling interests FEEEHIERE R (2,626) 330
(31,719) (46,361)
Loss per share attributable to owners of the ~ AREEARQTEE AFES
Company for the year BREE 11
Basic =¥\ (HK2.45 centsi&{l) (HK3.94 centsil)
Diluted #E (HK2.45 centsi&fll)) (HK3.94 centsi& )

The above consolidated income statement should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

LRSS R R E—FERE -
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
FeEXEBER

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BZE2020F3A31HILFE

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T
Loss for the year rEEEER (31,719) (46,361)
Other comprehensive income/(loss): Ht2EBA (B8
/tem that may be reclassified subsequently EH T EEEmoER
fo profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations & BIMNERE HE5E (2,565) (3,971)
Item that will not be reclassified to profit or loss TEEHSHEZEm2HE
Gain on revaluation of property MEB RS 2,859 =
/tem that has been reclassified to profit or loss EEFrEZE=m2HE
Realisation of accumulated exchange differences R — BB D BB
upon liquidation of a subsidiary BERTTENE5E 92 =
Other comprehensive income/(loss) AEEFEHMEE
for the year WA (E51E) 386 (3,971)
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEELHEBRER (31,333) (50,332)
Attributable to: BB :
Owners of the Company ¥ NUNEIEZ =N (28,707) (50,662)
Non-controlling interests FEEEHIME R (2,626) 330
(31,333) (50,332)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income  LitGa2EKSRESEBHRMT—RHE -

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e UBARRE

As at 31 March 2020
72020938311

2020 2019
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
FiEE BT T BET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BMERRZE 13 38,582 77,192
Investment properties REME 14 225,436 235,580
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 101,507 -
Deposits & 21 12,354 13,729
Deferred tax assets EEREBEEE 26 174 86
Total non-current assets FRBEERE 378,053 326,587
Current assets REEE
Inventories =FE 18 169,508 198,549
Contract assets BREE 19 2,035 7,485
Trade receivables g 5 ERERE 20 43,675 51,713
Amount due from an associate e — B & A R FIE 17 - =
Prepayments, deposits and BARE - ZER
other receivables Hih Y BR1E 21 32,545 50,085
Tax recoverable Gk 232 =
Cash and bank balances HERRITHER 22 197,314 198,178
Total current assets REBEEARE 445,309 506,010
Total assets EEAE 823,362 832,597
EQUITY ER
Equity attributable to owners of the AARBEE AEERER
Company
Share capital &N 27 118,532 118,532
Reserves s 28 488,541 521,891
607,073 640,423
Non-controlling interests e B RS 1,458 1,735
Total equity SRR 608,531 642,158

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)

GEPBRRE (&)

As at 31 March 2020
72020F3H31H

2020 2019

Note HK$'000 HK$'000

FiEE BT T BET T
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Accrued liabilities EstEaE 25 5,778 5,727
Lease liabilities HEEE 15 34,191 =
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIEEE 26 27,413 29,258
Total non-current liabilities ERBEELE 67,382 34,985
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and bills payables EZRNRERERE 24 44,511 82,291
Contract liabilities EHEE 23 11,972 15,174
Accrued liabilities and other payables FEErREREMEMERE 25 40,040 48,203
Lease liabilities HEas 15 43,329 -
Tax payable FESHiE 7,597 9,786
Total current liabilities REEEERE 147,449 155,454
Total liabilities E BB 214,831 190,439
Total equity and liabilities ERkBERAR 823,362 832,597
Net current assets REBEESLE 297,860 350,556
Total assets less current liabilities EERAERRBEE 675,913 677,143

The financial statements on pages 83 to 162 were approved by
the Board of Directors on 24 June 2020 and were signed on its

behalf.

Sun Tai Lun Dennis
Chairman

B

£

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

FIEMNESIEZ 162 BN EIRK S M2020F6 A
ARESESEHE  UBRERTIESARERSE

%o

Sun Tao Hung Stanley
Deputy Chairman and CEO

EIZERITHARE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

= HE =% 424
GEEREHR
For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE2020F3A31HLEE

Attributable to owners of the Company

LG LN
Share Capital Exchange Asset Non-
Share premium  redemption  fluctuation  revaluation  Retained controlling Total
capital account’ reserve’ reserve’ reserve’  earnings' Total interests equity

FERHM
Bx ROEER AFEDER ENRDEE HEBMRE RERA 48 Bt RR4E
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
BT ERTn BYTR ERTn BETh ARTR BRTn ARTn BdTR

Balance at 31 March 2018 R2018F3831 B &R 118,532 490,378 1,619 5,092 25,387 50,077 691,085 1468 692,553
Loss for the year rEEEE - - - - - (46,691) (46,691) 330 (46,361)
Other comprehensive loss: RAt2EEE:

Exchange differences on translation of BERNEEERZE - - = (3971) = - B9 -3
foreign operations

Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2E(BR)/ WAEE - = = (3.971) - (46,691) (50,662) 30 (50332)

Total transactions with ownersof the ~ EAATEEAETHRS
Company, recognised directly in equity: ~ #5 + ERHERED
Dividends RE = = = = = = = (63) 63)

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be it aEREEBIREEBHKT—RHE -
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
RARBREDR (M)

For the year ended 31 March 2020

BZE2020F3A31HLFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RAAREARE
Retained
Share Capital Exchange Asset  eamings/ Non-
Share  premium  redemption  fluctuation  revaluation  (accumulated controlling
apital  account! reserve! reserve! reserve’ [osses)! Total interests  Total equity
REEF/ FiRH
BA ROGER ErEEGE ENZDGR EEEGGR (EHEE) az BE  EEER
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000
BETn  BETn  BMTn BT BT BETh BETn BT BB
Balance at 31 March 2019, as previously presented 20198331 A% »
AR 118532 490378 1,619 112 25,387 338 640423 1,735 642,158
Change in accounting policies (Note 2.2) SRR - = = = = (4643) (4643 (E1) )
Restated balance as at 1 April 2019 R019E4F 1 RER(BET) 118,532 490,378 1,619 112 25,387 (1257) 635780 1,704 637,484
Loss for the year REEER - - - - - (909)  (909) (26206 (31719
Other comprehensive (loss)/income: Hfb2E(EE)/BA
Exchange differences on translation of foreign ~~ BERHEHERER = = = (2,565) s - (2569) - (259)
operations
(Gain on revaluation of property VIEE - - - - 2,859 - - 2,859
Realisation of accumulated exchange differences ~ R—EKBAREEREE
upon liquidation of a subsidiary ZHERER - - - 92 - - 92 - 92
Total comprehensive (loss)/income 2H(BE)/WAEE = = - (2413) 2859 (20003)  (28707) (626  (31333)
Total transactions with owners of the HENAREARTHRS
Company, recognised directly in equity: BR ERNEGRD:
Establishment of a new subsidiary A -EHHEL A - - - - - - - 2,380
Balance at 31 March 2020 R020E3531 AL 118,532 490,378 1,619 (1,352) 28,246 (30,350) 607,073 1,458 608,531

' These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$488,541,000 (2019: HK$521,891,000) in the consolidated

statement of financial position.

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

T O HERBREERGESUBMRARZES

£ 1% 8 1 488,541,000 ;t(2019 & : & #&
521,891,0007T) °

MERS RS B REEEN T —FHE -

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited s8R iESEM EBAR QT



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

nVT Eﬁﬁ/ﬂbi%

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BE2020F3A31BLFE

2020 2019
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
g BET T BT T
Cash flows from operating activities REXEKRZBRERE
Loss before income tax FRETSHRLAIE B (36,054) (44,122)
Adjustments for: BT HIFRE
Interest income FE A 6 (1,922) (2,218)
Finance cost A& AR 3,379 -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #1%¥ - BERREZIFE 7 15,598 20,705
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FRREEZINE 7 55,661 -
Losses on disposals of property, plant and HENE - BRERREZ
equipment 53} 7 236 615
Provision for inventories FERE 7 2,627 880
Changes in fair value of investment properties REMELNTFEEE 14 3,587 (8,908)
Impairment loss on property, plant and M BEREZBEUARSE
equipment and right-of-use assets AEEEZRERE 8,187 -
Impairment loss on amount due from an W —REEE N RREZ
associate REEE - 32,720
Rent concessions from lessors HEABESER 6 (1,795) =
49,504 (328)
Changes in working capital HEESRE
Decrease/(increase) in inventories BEZ®D,(3Em) 26,414 (11,094)
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets BHEEZRL (18 Mm) 5,450 (7,485)
Decrease in trade receivables B ZRWIRIEZHD 7,999 1,030
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits ~ FBAFIE ~ e R HMEIK
and other receivables BRIE 2, (38 ) 16,219 (19,078)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and bills payables %%EHEEIE&EE?EZ
HA) BN (37,780) 22,158
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities .:.,.’Jﬁﬁz(ﬂd‘)/i%?ﬂﬂ (3,202) 12
(Decrease)/increase in accrued liabilities and FE#E1E&E{1@J‘EHEEIEZ
other payables W), (7,946) 14,989
Cash generated from operations REXKRAB2RE 56,658 204
Hong Kong profits tax refunded BEBFEBER 943 42
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEBFEH (407) (1,549)
Overseas taxes paid [RERRSE{S TR (232) (328)
Net cash generated from/(used in) operating HEERHE,(FTA)z
activities e FEE 56,962 (1,631)

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in LGS EESREREHEBEHHET—FHE -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
MEBRERER (£)

For the year ended 31 March 2020
BZE2020F3A31HILFE

2020 2019
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
g BET T BT T
Cash flows from investing activities RETBZRER
Interest received 2RFE 1,922 2,218
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BAYE  BERSEE 13, 35 (5,989) (14,627)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and HEYZ - F_E&?&ﬁ
equipment Fris 6 89
Decrease in non-pledged time deposits with = 2 B Elﬁﬁiﬁ 1IEHZ
original maturity of more than three months  EIEBEHEFEIRD 22 2,690 1,795
Advances to an associate o) — [ ’BTE’JETA = (3,615)
Net cash used in investing activities RETEMAZRSFE (1,371) (14,140)
Cash flows from financing activities RETBH2RERE
Interest elements of lease payments HEREZFLHD (3,379) =
Principle elements of lease payments HEREZEERD 35 (50,935) =
Dividend paid 2RE - (821)
Proceeds from capital injection from FEEEH R
non-controlling interests EAES 2,254 =
Net cash used in financing activities METBMACE ST (52,060) (821)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash RERBESEEEBERZ
equivalents #h,CRd)FE 3,531 (16,592)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year F£#BRERBESEEEE 172,562 192,075
Exchange losses on cash and cash equivalents RE&RRESZEEE 2
[E 518 (1,705) (2,921)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRABRERKREEEHEH 22 174,388 172,562

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in LG AREHREREEEWK T —RBE o

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e SRR MR

GENERAL INFORMATION

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) is a limited company incorporated in Bermuda.
The registered office of the Company is located at Victoria
Place, 5% Floor, 31 Victoria Street, Hamilton, HM 10,
Bermuda. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at 8™ Floor, Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre, 220-248
Texaco Road, Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) is
principally involved in (i) the marketing and distribution of
photographic developing, processing and printing products
and sale of photographic merchandises, skincare products,
consumer electronic products and household appliances; and (ii)
the provision of technical services for photographic developing
and processing products, imaging solution, professional audio-
visual advisory and custom design and installation services.

In the opinion of the Directors, the immediate holding
company of the Company is Searich Group Limited and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is Fine Products
Limited. Both of the holding companies are incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands.

The Company has its primary listing on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), unless otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
Compliance with HKFRSs and HKCO
The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
("HKCO") Cap. 622.

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for the
revaluation of investment properties, which are measured
at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  4r& B8R RMizE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEEHHBERMEE)
POLICIES /Continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation /Confinuved)
[(a) New sfandards, amendments fo standards and

2.1 RRBEHEE)
(a) REBBRMZ 5T RASNSETER R 52

6]

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited s8R iESEM EBAR QT

interprefation adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following new standards,
amendments to existing standards and interpretation
for the first time for their financial year beginning on
1 April 2019. Detailed impact of adoption of HKFRS
16 is disclosed in Note 2.2. The adoption of other
new and amended standards and interpretation did
not have any material impact on the current period
and any prior periods.

Annual Improvement Projects Annual Improvements
2017 2015 - 2017 Cycle

HKAS 19 (Amendments) Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or Settlement

HKAS 28 (Amendments) Long-term Interests in Associates
and Joint Ventures

HKFRS 9 (Amendments) Prepayment Features with
Negative Compensation

HKFRS 16 Leases
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

New standards and amendments fo existing
standards that have been issued but are
not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on or

after
Conceptual Framework for  Revised Conceptual 1 April 2020
Financial Reporting 2018~ Framework for
Financial Reporting
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of 1 April 2020
(Amendments) Material
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and Interest Rate 1 April 2020
HKFRS 9 (Amendments) Benchmark Reform
HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of a 1 April 2020
Business
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 April 2021

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendments)

Sale or Contribution To be determined
of Assets between
an Investor and its
Associate or Joint
Venture

The Group intends to adopt the above new
standards and amendments to existing standards
when they become effective. These standards are not
expected to have a material impact on the Group
in the current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEEBXRBMEE)
POLICIES /Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation /Continved) 21 WREE(E)

(c) Early adoption of amendments fo standard
during the year ended 31 March 2020 where
early adopftion is permitted

HKFRS 16 (Amendment), “COVID-19-Related
Rent Concessions” (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2021). The amendment
provides lessees with exemption from assessing
whether COVID-19-related rent concession is a lease
modification and requires lessees that apply the
exemption to account for COVID-19-related rent
concession as if they were not lease modifications.
In applying HKFRS 16 (Amendment) for the first
time, the Group has applied the practical expedient
and elected not to assess whether COVID-19-related
rent concession is a lease modification. All of the
COVID-19-related rent concessions amounted to
HK$1,286,000 has been recognised in profit or loss.

2.2 Changes in accounting policies

This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS
16 Leases on the Group's financial statements and
discloses the new accounting policies that have been
applied from 1 April 2019.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 retrospectively from
1 April 2019, but has not restated comparatives for the
2019 reporting period, as permitted under the specific
transitional provisions in the standard. The reclassifications
and the adjustments arising from the new leasing rules
are therefore recognised in the opening consolidated
statement of financial position on 1 April 2019.

On the adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised
lease liabilities in relation to leases which had previously
been classified as “operating leases” under the principles
of HKAS 17 Leases. These liabilities were measured at
the present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate as of 1 April 2019. The weighted average lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities
on 1 April 2019 was 4.0%.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES /Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies /Confinved)
(i) Practical expedients applied
In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group
has used the following practical expedients permitted
by the standard:

the use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics;

the accounting for operating leases with a
remaining lease term of less than 12 months as
at 1 April 2019 as short-term leases;

the exclusion of initial direct costs for the
measurement of the right-of-use asset at the
date of initial application; and

the use of hindsight in determining the lease
term where the contract contains options to
extend or terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether
a contract is, or contains a lease at the date of
initial application. Instead, for contracts entered into
before the transition date the Group relied on its
assessment made applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int
4 "Determining whether an Arrangement contains a
Lease”.

R UIERARME
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES /Continued)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies /Confinved)

(ii) Measurement of lease liabilities

TEREHBERUEAE)

22 EERHRRZEEH(F)
(i) ARARHE

(iif)

2019
HK$'000
BT T
Operating lease commitments disclosed as at M2019F 3831 HEHENRKEHE
31 March 2019 e 85,446
Discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing AR AEEXEA BEMNIEERS
rate at the date of initial application MANRITH 74,880
Add: equipment leases recognised e ERANREEE 17,584
Less: short-term leases recognised on a straight-line W UESRERIRAFAINENEE
basis as expense (1,394)
Lease liabilities recognised as at 1 April 2019 R2019F4 81 BERNBEEE 91,070
Represented by: E b
Current lease liabilities RBEEEE 47,424
Non-current lease liabilities FRBEEERE 43,646
91,070

Measurement of right-of-use assets

The associated right-of-use assets were measured
on a retrospective basis as if the new rules had
always been applied, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that
lease recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 March 2019. There were
no onerous lease contracts that would have required
an adjustment to the right-of-use assets at the date
of initial application.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group
reclassified the leasehold land under finance lease,
prepaid premium for land lease under operating
leases and reinstatement costs in “property, plant
and equipment” to “right-of-use assets” for
presentation purpose.

For types of assets recognised as right-of-use assets,
please refer to Note 15 for details.

(iii) FRAEEENE
HENERAREENBHANGTE
MMHFHBRA—SEER » WIRIEHR
20193 A31 BWERE MM R RS
BRNEEZAENE MBS ET
HEREETAZ - REXERA
B WESHEAREEETHEN
BiEREEH -

RMBEBUBREENF165R%E - K
SEM % - BERRIEIFNRE
HEBETHEELH - KEHERT
NI EENRNREREERAE
MoBREREEE] MEZFIE

E’g ]
FHRRADEAREENEERE -
HEESRMEE5
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

POLICIES /Continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

2.2 Changes in accounting policies /Confinved)

(iv) Adjustments recognised on the adoption of

HKFRS 16

The change in accounting policy mainly affected
the following items in the consolidated statement
of financial position on 1 April 2019. Line items
that were not affected by the changes have not
been included. As a result, the subtotals and totals
disclosed cannot be recalculated from the numbers

provided.

R UIERARME

2 FEETERBE#E)

2.2 S BRZEE(E)

(iv) RMERMBREENE 1RERZ
HE
B RRZEEXEZEN201954
B1AMGREHBMRREZPHUTE
B - AZEEHFELNBHREE TERE
A - Bt FriBEMN DT REAT
BEFVIBEZEHTE -

Recognition
Reclassifica- of leases
31 March tion under under 1 April 2019

2019 HKFRS 16  HKFRS 16  (Restated)
REFE  REFE
BEgHE MBS 2019%F

2019 #HIFE16%% %A 1658 4818
3831H Edeibag] RIEE (ZEH)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T BT T BT T

Consolidated statement of #RE BT K (FHiE)

financial position (extract)

Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment #1% - BE K25 77,192 (29,232) = 47,960
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE - 29,232 88,350 117,582
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and FEARIE - BEREM

other receivables FEURBRTE 50,085 - (2,239) 47,846
Total assets BEHAKE 832,597 - 86,111 918,708
Current liabilities REBEE
Accrued liabilities and other — FEEHA &R H b

payables BRIE 48,203 - (300) 47,903
Lease liabilities HEaE - = 47,424 47,424
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEARE = = 43,646 43,646
Deferred tax liabilities FEHEAE 29,258 = 15 29,273
Total liabilities aE8E 190,439 - 90,785 281,224
Net assets EEFE 642,158 - (4,674) 637,484
Retained earnings/ REBEF(R5EE)

(accumulated losses) 3,386 - (4,643) (1,257)
Non-controlling interests SRR 1,735 - (31) 1,704
Total equity A 642,158 - (4,674) 637,484

(v) Lessor accounting

The Group did not need to make any adjustments
to the accounting for assets held as lessor under
operating leases as a result of the adoption of HKFRS

16.

(v) HEASHEE
MRS B BREERE 165
AEEZARCERERFENEAA
EENSHEEFELEMRE
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES /Continued)
2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

()

(if)

(iif)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power to direct
the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group (refer
to Note 2.4).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between Group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
income statement, statement of comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of financial position respectively.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the
equity method of accounting (see (iii) below), after
initially being recognised at cost.

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee
in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in
other comprehensive income. Dividends received
or receivable from associates are recognised as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

2 FEETBREERE)

23 GERAREREEE

0]

(if)

(iii)

MELT

MEBARYAAEEHHLAREHIE
MWER(EEABLER) - EXEE
(X 2 B2 22 R B T 7RI T 4 [ SR 0 [
FEBUREROELS - YHENE
BHAGZERXBNENZERS
EI3REF - AEEEEGZER o M8
NEEENEEBREAEEZARES
BEARR - BESERLZHBELS
BEAER ©

FEBRARBEESEBSHA
IR(RMIEE2.4) »

EEARRMARES  GBRREEALD
AERZNARBRREE T UHHE -
BAERRZARBETRTEREE
HE  REREETSEHE - WEL
AZEBRCREERFELZE
LSRR EERANNEETER -

M AR EE RS T RIS R
B RRGERER - 2EHKER -
EaSHRRUBRAERTERZ
5 -

BEAT

BENRAEMAEREEHHEBEARY
BImERFESIARENENE
B BEAEEFEE20%-50%KRE
ENRE - REEQTANRERDS
BRABEABUBEETE(RTX
(iii)) ABR ©

Bagrtx
REREETE - REDBUBATRE
R HEFURBUERREIRE
BEEAERREETRIBAMENES
7 UREAM2EKRERALE
BEEAERREEHMEEKRELBN
058 - B EUEEE O R REFER
AREREERD °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES /Continued)
2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
[(Confinved)
(iii) Equity method /Confinved)

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest
in the entity, including any other unsecured long-
term receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associate are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of equity accounted investees
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments
is tested for impairment in accordance with the
policy described in Note 2.11.

(iv) Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount of the adjustment to non-controlling
interests and any consideration paid or received
is recognised in a separate reserve within equity
attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of
control or significant influence, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value
with the change in carrying amount recognised in
profit or loss. This fair value becomes the initial
carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as
specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited s8R iESEM EBAR QT
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEEBRBMEE)
POLICIES /Continued)

2.4 Business combinations 24 EBSH

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless of
whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary comprises the:

(i) fair values of the assets transferred;

(ii) liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business;

(iii) equity interests issued by the Group;

(iv) fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement; and

(v) fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the
(i) consideration transferred;

(i) amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity; and

(iii) acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity.

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than
the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the business
acquired, the difference is recognised directly in profit or
loss as a bargain purchase.

FEBERARBEHERMBEBSHA
R MAWEACWBESTAREME
E BB -BHELREENRERRE

(i) FFEREENDYE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES /Continued)

24

2.5

2.6

Business combinations /Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent
financier under comparable terms and conditions.
Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes
in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee's net
assets including goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker. The chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the Board of Directors that makes
strategic decisions.

R UIERARME

2 FEETBREERE)

24

2.5

2.6
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES /Continued)
2.7 Foreign currency translation

()

(if)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (“the functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
HKS$, which is the Company’s functional and the
Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains or losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year end exchange rates are generally
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

All foreign exchange gains or losses are presented
in the consolidated income statement on a net basis
within “administrative expenses”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined. Except for investment properties,
translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair value are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss.

2 FEETBREERE)

2.7 ShEE

0]
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES /Continued)
2.7 Foreign currency translation /Conrinved)

(iii) Group companies
The results and financial position of all of the
Group's entities (none of which has the currency of
a hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

(b) income and expenses for each income statement
and statement of comprehensive income are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

(iv) Disposal of foreign operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group's entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control
over a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation,
a disposal involving loss of joint control over a joint
venture that includes a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of significant influence over
an associate that includes a foreign operation), all of
the currency translation differences accumulated in
equity in respect of that operation attributable to the
owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or
loss.

2.8 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
loss. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to the consolidated income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES /Continued)

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment /Confinved)
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost, net of their residual values, over
their estimated useful lives or, in the case of leasehold
improvements and certain leased plant and equipment,
the shorter lease term as follows:

Buildings 5%

Furniture, fixtures and leasehold 20% to 33 1/3% or

improvements over the remaining
lease term, whichever
is shorter
Machinery and equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and the
depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised
within “selling and distribution costs” and “administrative
expenses” in the consolidated income statement.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation
of buildings are credited to other comprehensive income.
Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset
are charged against other comprehensive income; all
other decreases are expensed in the consolidated income
statement.

Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, are held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and that are not
occupied by the Group. Investment property is initially
measured at cost, including related transaction costs
and where applicable borrowing costs. After initial
recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined at
each reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is
based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of
the specific asset. If the information is not available, the
Group uses alternative valuation methods such as recent
prices on less active markets or discounted cash flow
projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in the
consolidated income statement within “changes in fair
value of investment properties”.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES /Continued)
2.9 Investment properties /Confinved)

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the consolidated
income statement in the year of the retirement or
disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-
occupied properties, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of
change in use. If a property occupied by the Group as
an owner-occupied property becomes an investment
property, the Group accounts for such property in
accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment” up to the date of change in use, and
any difference at that date between the carrying amount
and the fair value of the property is accounted for as a
revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under
“Property, plant and equipment” (Note 2.8).

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’'s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
the end of each reporting period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES /Continued)
2.11 Investments and other financial assets

()

(if)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

e those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss); and

e those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition
to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at fair value through profit or
loss are expensed in profit or loss.

2 FEETBREERE)

21NMEBERAEMEE

(i) o8
AEERUTHEERNHESRMERE
BT
o HBUAFEEE(AHS

SFAEMEEKBARER)H
MEE R
o LB AGTENSREE -

ZOEIARIREESRHMEENEBER
ARREREV ST ©

B
o

HRUAFEFENSHEE  HREN
BIEFFABSEREMEEBA - HRIEX
SUNESRTARE  HRENBRNG
ERNFARAEBENRBERRFREFEL
THHEREMSEEES QA FER
ERHEHTARMBEERRA -

FEBEAEEEEZSEENEBER
BRESBRLEHN O BEBRE -

(i) FERRERHTER
ERMEEZ-REEAEXSZABEI -
REAEAEEAREEZEREL
B - EURMEMEERTRENER
EERIER  BAEECERES
BHEANDEBREHE - S
HEREHEE -

(iii) ¥E®
RUOLSERE  AEERESHEEZ
AFEM(EEIEZRAFEFABR
RERMEE ) EERERESREEW
B2RXBZRAE - BAFETA
BRENEREENRZRANBREX
g o

Annual Report 2019/20 FEHEEWRE

105



106

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES /Continued)
2.11 Investments and other financial assets /Continved)
(iii) Measurement /Confinved)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly
in profit or loss and presented in other income and
gains. Impairment losses are presented as separate
line item in the consolidated income statement.

Equity insfruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to profit
or loss following the derecognition of the investment.
Dividends from such investments continue to be
recognised in profit or loss as other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised as other
gains, net in the consolidated income statement
as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
are not reported separately from other changes in
fair value.

(iv) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk. Impairment
losses are presented in the consolidated income
statement. For trade receivables and contract assets,
the Group applies the simplified approach permitted
by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses
to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables. For the other financial assets, expected
credit losses are assessed according to change in
credit quality since initial recognition.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEEBRBMEE)
POLICIES /Continued)

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments 21268 E&MT R

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position
where the Company has a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously. The legally enforceable
right must not be contingent on future events and must
be enforceable in the normal course of business and in
the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs are assigned to individual items of
inventory on the basis of weighted average costs. Costs
of purchased inventory are determined after deducting
rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated
costs necessary to make the sale.

2.14Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
See Note 20 for further information about the Group’s
accounting for trade receivables and Note 3.1 for a
description of the Group’s impairment policies.

2.15Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with banks
and other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

ERNEEAEHECEANENEERS
EANMAESRFREEAERRRERE
ERA EEF CAREEREERESE
MERBFERPBRRERZR - EZER
%J*E%U?:xﬁkﬂ%%ﬁ:i’]?ﬁ CAIE—REE
BEPARARDARZHEN - ENE
BEMWENIER T RHT -

213%F8

FEURAEASRFEMNE R 2REE
AR o AT R MEFIRAEESEE
FEMEBIER - BATENRATI RN
ERRITMEEE - ISR FEARAE
EHBRANMG EERMAFTTRAER
AR HERFIETTRATE -

2,148 HEKRER

BZRURESAEERBREPHERR
IR AR 7S T RE W P SRR o fid FE A

—FH AR E E 5 FE KRR H A
WERR (R BB RER - BAEXBES
KREBHN) AEBEARDEE - &
Bl H2SRFERBDEE

B 5 EWERIE AL R BERFWEHNBRER
BLEER  RIEZLAFERIKEES
EXRERD - AEEFEE S EWRERIE
EEWHANESRE  FILRERAS
BAREIZBERAETTE - BELE
EESRURENE-SER - F2HMN
20 FEAEEBERENESR - F2
MEE3.1 e

215 R RACFERE

BRRGERESREREIME  RERR
SEEBEAEFAERSE  RITFHEN
RUBERIRACNEEREMEETRE
BEE2BRAKREMERSREMTIRE (R
EHRTBEE=M@A) -

2.16B&F

EBERW D ERER o

Annual Report 2019/20 FEHEEWRE

107



108

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES /Continued)
2.17 Trade, bills and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. The amounts are unsecured. Trade,
bills and other payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within twelve months after the
reporting period. They are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(ii) Deferred income tax
Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is not accounted for if
it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is
realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The deferred tax liability in relation to investment
property that is measured at fair value is determined
assuming the property will be recovered entirely
through sale.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEEBRBMEE)
POLICIES /Continued)
2.18 Current and deferred income tax /Confinved)
(ii) Deferred income tax /Confinved)

2.18EPHAREERR SR (4F)
(i) BEEFRFR(E)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available
to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised
for temporary differences between the carrying
amount and tax bases of investments in foreign
operations where the company is able to control the
timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred
tax balances relate to the same taxation authority.
Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where
the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and
intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

2.19 Employee benefits
(i) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave that
are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect
of employees’ services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the amounts expected to
be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities
are presented as current employee benefit obligations
in the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES /Continued)
2.19 Employee benefits /[Continved)

(if)

(iif)

Other long-term employee benefit obligations
The liabilities for long service leave and annual leave
that are not expected to be settled wholly within
12 months after the end of the period in which
the employees render the related service. These
obligations are therefore measured as the present
value of expected future payments to be made in
respect of services provided by employees up to
the end of the reporting period using the projected
unit credit method. Consideration is given to
expected future wage and salary levels, experience of
employee departures and periods of service. Expected
future payments are discounted using market
yields at the end of the reporting period of high-
quality corporate bonds with terms and currencies
that match, as closely as possible, the estimated
future cash outflows. Remeasurements as a result
of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in profit or loss.

The obligations are presented as current liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position
if the entity does not have an unconditional right
to defer settlement for at least twelve months after
the reporting period, regardless of when the actual
settlement is expected to occur.

Post-employment obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and a defined contribution occupational
retirement scheme (the “ORSO scheme”) under the
Occupational Retirement Schemes Ordinance, for all
of its employees. Contributions are made based on
a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the consolidated income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the schemes. The assets of both schemes
are held separately from those of the Group in
independently administered funds. The Group's
employer contributions to both schemes vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the
schemes, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions to the ORSO scheme, which are
refunded to the Group when the employee leaves
employment prior to the contributions vesting fully,
in accordance with the rules of the ORSO scheme.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 ZESHHEHMEE)
POLICIES /Continued)
2.20 Provisions 2.20i% 0%

Provisions for legal claims are recognised when: the
Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as
a result of past events; it is probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation; and
the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are
not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the
present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.21 Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured; when it is probable
that future economic benefits will flow to the entity;
and when specific criteria have been met for each of the
Group’s activities, as described below.

(i) Sales of goods
The Group engages in the wholesales and retail of
photographic developing, processing and printing
products, photographic merchandises, consumer
electronic products and household appliances and
online sales of skincare products. These products are
sold on their own in separately identified contracts
with customers.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES /Continued)
2.21 Revenue recognition /Continued)

()

(if)

(iif)

Sales of goods /Conftinued)

The Group’s contracts with customers for the sale
of products generally include one performance
obligation. Revenue from the sale of products is
recognised at the point in time when control of the
asset is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the products. As receivable is recognised
when the goods are delivered as this is the point in
time that the consideration is unconditional because
only the passage of time is required before the
payment is due.

Sales of goods - customer loyalty programmes
The Group operates loyalty points programmes,
which allow customers to accumulate points when
they purchase products. The points can be redeemed
for free products, subject to a minimum number of
points obtained. A contract liability for the award
points is recognised at the time of sale. Other
income is recognised when the points are redeemed
or expired.

Rendering of services - provision of technical
services for photographic developing and
processing products and imaging solution
Revenue from the provision of the above services is
recognised over time when the services have been
rendered.

(iv) Rendering of services - provision of professional

(v)

audio-visual advisory and custom design and
installation services

The Group provides installation services. These
services are sold in bundle together with the sale of
audio visual equipment to customers. The installation
services can be obtained from other providers and do
not significantly customise or modify the products.
The revenue from the sales of audio visual equipment
is recognised at a point in time upon delivery of
the product, and revenue from installation service is
recognised over time when the services have been
rendered.

Financing component

The Group does not expect to have any contracts
where the period between the transfer of the
promised goods or services to the customer and
payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a
consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the
transaction prices for the time value of money.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEEBRBMEE)
POLICIES /Continued)

2.22 Earnings per share 2228BBEF

(i) Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing
the profit attributable to owners of the company,
excluding any costs of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in ordinary shares issued
during the year and excluding treasury shares.

(ii) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in
the determination of basic earnings per share to take
into account: the after income tax effect of interest
and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential ordinary shares, and the weighted average
number of additional ordinary shares that would
have been outstanding assuming the conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

2.23 Leases (as lessee)

As explained in Note 2.2 above, the Group has changed
its accounting policy for leases where the Group is the
lessee. The new policy is described below and the impact
of the change in Note 2.2.

Until 31 March 2019, leases in which a significant
portion of the risks and rewards of ownership were not
transferred to the Group as lessee were classified as
operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) were
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

From 1 April 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use
asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which
the leased asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES /Continued)
2.23Leases (as lessee) /Confinved)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at
the commencement date;

e amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

e where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received;

e uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by
the Group, which does not have recent third party
financing; and

e makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in
variable lease payments based on an index or rate, which
are not included in the lease liability until they take
effect. When adjustments to lease payments based on an
index or rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed
and adjusted against the right-of-use asset.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEEBRBMEE)
POLICIES /Continued)

2.23Leases (as lessee) /Continued) 223K (EHEHEAN)(E)

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;
e any lease payments made at or before the

commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

e any initial direct costs; and
e restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of properties
and all leases of low-value assets are recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-
term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less.

The Group applies the practical expedient from assessing
whether a rent concession related to Coronavirus Disease
2019 (“COVID-19") is a lease modification. The Group
recognised the rent concessions related to COVID-19
amounted to approximately HK$1,286,000 in profit or
loss.

2.24Leases (as lessor)

Lease income from operating leases where the Group
is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term (Note 14). Initial direct costs
incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised
as expense over the lease term on the same basis as
lease income. The respective leased assets are included
in the consolidated statement of financial position based
on their nature. The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as
a result of adopting the new leasing standard.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES /Continued)

2.25Dividend distribution
Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer
at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of
the reporting period but not distributed at the end of the
reporting period.

2.26 Interest income
Interest income is presented as finance income where
it is earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset.

2.27 Contract assets and contract liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the
Group obtains right to receive consideration from the
customer and assumes performance obligations to provide
services to the customer. The combination of those rights
and performance obligations give rise to a net asset or a
net liability depending on the relationship between the
remaining rights and the performance obligations. The
contract is an asset and recognised as contract assets if
the measure of the remaining rights exceeds the measure
of the remaining performance obligations. Conversely, the
contract is a liability and recognised as contract liabilities
if the measure of the remaining performance obligations
exceeds the measure of the remaining rights.

Contract assets are assessed for impairment under the
same approach adopted for impairment assessment of
financial assets carried at amortised cost.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors
The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are foreign exchange risk, cash flow interest
rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

TEREHBERUEAE)

225 KR AR
BRRAPHRFEERZACERERKS
HEREHRDIKNEERETRE(E
EERERTBHERBBERE) WA
fEHEE -

226 FIBMA
MEWAERBBRAZR - HRBAARR
TEEENMBEZEREE - FIEK
ABBERFNEZEANESREERDAMBE

g

"o

227 8MREREWAR

HEFFIEGHNE  AEEAEARTFK
HAE - WAEREFPREMARBHNENE
- ZERARBHNEINEEELEE
FESEEFH  BHURRRSRENREY
BEENER - RSB 2RBRIER
BHEENTE  BENA-REELRE
RARENEE - Rz MRBEHEMEN
SFERBRBENNGTE  HENA -’
BEIRABENEE -

BREENRET RS ERRBHER AT
RN EBEERRET LSRR -

3 MEREER

3.1 MBERER
FEEERIAFEH 2T EZABAER
Bk - RERFZRAR - EERBRRRD
ELRK - EZTERNREREEGER
B2 BER - BRI e

China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited s8R iESEM EBAR QT



3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT /Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors /Confinved)
(i) Market risk

(a)

e)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk
with respect to Renminbi (“RMB”). The Group
manages its foreign exchange risk by performing
regular review and monitoring its foreign
exchange exposure.

At 31 March 2020, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 1% (2019: 1%) against RMB
with all other variables held constant, loss for
the year would have been HK$155,000 lower/
higher (2019: HK$308,000 lower/higher), mainly
as a result of foreign exchange gains/losses on
translation of RMB-denominated cash and bank
balances deposited with the banks in Hong
Kong.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
other currencies are less sensitive to movement
in exchange rates as the amounts are not
significant to the Group.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rates relates primarily to
the interest income received on the Group's
bank balances. The Group’s interest-generating
assets are mainly denominated in HK$, RMB
and United States dollars. The Group manages
its interest rate risk by regularly monitoring the
macro economic factors that may impact on the
interest rates.

If the interest rates have been 0.5% (20109:
0.5%) higher/lower while all other variables
are held constant, the loss for the year would
decrease/increase (2019: decrease/increase)
and total equity would increase/decrease by
HK$0.5 million (2019: HK$0.5 million) due to an
increase/decrease in interest income.

3 MEBRARERE)
3.1 HBRBRERE)

() THiBES
(a) EFREE

AEBAHEBRARBTAR
BOHNEZER AEEEEE
PR REREERRBROE
BHERRME o

20205638318 » fiBEREA
RUEEF{E1% (2019%F :
1%) > MEMAEEHEFTT
% AIFEFERRD EnE
#£155,000 7T (20194 : HL/
#4038 # 308,000 T) » TEMH
RABEREBRITUARE
BrReRIBTEREEERK
&=/ R -

HREMERFENEREER
SEHAEEMEHMTREE @ &
FRTHYERZHNHRBEE
BE -

(b) BEFFERS

REBFFEY TSR REFHE
B = ZEE AR SR B R 1T 45 BR AT URER
ZRBWABR - REBZFE
ELEEETELUBRE ARBR
EEHE - AEBMETHMERT
RHANREZECRBRBRE
MERHNZREE -

M FFERS, T E0.5% (2019
F:05% MAABHMATZEE
EETE > KEEFBRERD
BAN(20194 WD, /i) R AE
TEABZEAS I AN, R A 8 %5500,000
7t(2019% : #%500,0007T) » It
TSERFIB U AL, R FTER ©

Annual Report 2019/20 FEHEEWRE

117



118

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  4r& B8R RMizE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT /Conftinved)

3.1 Financial risk factors /Confinved)
(ii) Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy
that all customers who wish to trade on credit
terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an
ongoing basis. Details of the Group’s credit policy
are set out in Note 20 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets,
which mainly comprise cash and cash equivalents,
bank deposits, amount due from an associate,
deposits, and other receivables, arises from default of
the counterparties, with a maximum exposure equal
to the carrying amounts of these instruments.

[(a) Risk management

The Group limits its exposure to credit risk by
placing deposits with financial institution that
meet the established credit rating of AA. Given
these high credit ratings, management does
not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its

obligations.

The credit risk on cash at bank deposited in
Hong Kong is monitored closely by management
of the Group who will assess the reputation,
the risk of recoverability and the financial
information, if any, of the counter parties before
placing of deposits. Since the Group trades only
with recognised and creditworthy third parties,

there is no requirement for collateral.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT /Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors /Confinved)
(ii) Credit risk /Confinved)
(b) Impairment of financial assefs

The Group has four types of financial assets that
are subject to the expected credit loss model:

e  Trade receivables;
e (Contract assets;

e Deposits and other receivables (excluding
prepayments); and

e Amount due from an associate.

While cash and cash equivalents are also subject
to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9, the
identified impairment loss was immaterial.

Trade receivables and confract assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for
all trade receivables and contract assets.

To measure the expected credit losses,
trade receivables and contract assets have
been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The
contract assets relate to unbilled revenue and
have substantially the same risk characteristics
as the trade receivables for the same types of
contracts. The Group has therefore concluded
that the expected loss rates for trade receivables
are a reasonable approximation of the loss rates
for the contract assets.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a provision matrix.
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R UIERARME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT /Conftinved)

3.1 Financial risk factors /Confinved)
(ii) Credit risk /Confinved)

(b) Impairment of financial assefs (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assels
[(Conftinved)

The Directors of the Company are of the opinion
that no provision for impairment is necessary in
respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over these balances.

Trade receivables and contract assets are written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Indicators that there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery include, amongst others,
the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment
plan with the Group.

Impairment losses on trade receivables and
contract assets are presented as net impairment
losses within operating profit. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against the same line item.

Other financial assets at amortised cost
and amount que from an associate

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of asset and whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting
period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the
reporting date with the risk of default as at the
date of initial recognition.

The credit quality of deposits and other
receivables excluding prepayment and amount
due from an associate have been assessed
with reference to historical information about
the counterparties default rates and financial
position of the counterparties.
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT /Continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors /Confinved)

(ii) Credit risk /Confinved)

(b) Impairment of financial assefs (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost
and amount due from an associate

[(Conftinved)

The Directors of the Company are of opinion
that the credit risk of the amount due from
an associate had become high. Provision for
impairment of HK$32,720,000 was recognised
during the year ended 31 March 2019. The
provision balance remained the same as at 31
March 2020. See Note 17 for further information
about the expected credit loss provision.

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
certain deposits and other receivables. These
financial assets are considered to be low credit
risk primarily because historically they had no
history of default and the debtors had a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow
obligations in the near term. No impairment
losses were provided for the years ended 31

March 2020 and 2019.
(i) Liquidity risk

The Group consistently maintains a prudent financing
policy and strives to ensure that it maintains
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity

requirements.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the end of the year, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:
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Lease liabilities HEaE - 45843 22,724 12,852 81,419
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3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT /Continved)
3.2 Capital Management

3.3

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in
order to support its business and maximise shareholders’
value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new
shares. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended
31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019.

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio,
which is current assets divided by current liabilities. The
Group’s policy is to keep the current ratio above 100%.
Current assets include inventories, contract assets, trade
receivables, prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
tax recoverable and cash and bank balances. Current
liabilities include trade and bills payables, contract
liabilities, accrued liabilities and other payables, lease
liabilities and tax payable.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial
statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

()

(if)

(iii)

Provision for inventories

The Group assesses periodically if the inventories have
been suffered from any impairment. The Group carries
out an inventory review at the end of the reporting
period and makes allowance for obsolete and slow
moving items. The management estimates the net
realisable value for the inventories primarily on the
estimated future selling price and market conditions.
Where the estimates of the net realisable value are less
than expected, a material allowance may arise.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

In determining the useful lives of items of property,
plant and equipment, the Group has to consider various
factors, such as technical or commercial obsolescence
arising from changes or improvements in production, or
from a change in the market demand for the product
or service output of the asset, expected usage of the
asset, expected physical wear and tear, the care and
maintenance of the asset, and legal or similar limits on
the use of the asset. The estimation of the useful life of
the asset is based on the experience of the Group with
similar assets that are used in a similar way. Additional
depreciation or amortisation is made if the estimated
useful lives of property, plant and equipment are different
from previous estimation. Useful lives are reviewed at
each reporting period based on changes in circumstances.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

The Group assesses the fair value of its investment
properties based on valuations determined by
independent professional qualified valuers. The fair value
of the Group's investment properties as at 31 March
2019 were determined based on the income capitalisation
method. The Directors of the Company considered that
the change in valuation technique with respect to those
properties as at 31 March 2020 is appropriate as the
valuation technique used in the current year is based
on market price of similar properties and locations, and
shall equally reflect the property values as compared to
the income capitalisation method used in the prior year
which was based on passing rents and yields. In relying
on the valuation reports of the independent professional
valuer, the management has exercised its judgment and is
satisfied that the method of valuation is reflective of the
market conditions prevailing at the end of each reporting
period. Any changes in the market conditions will affect
the fair value of the investment properties of the Group.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS /Continued)
(iv) Impairment of non-financial assets

(v)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of
each reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists
when the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher
of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs to sell is based
on available data from binding sales transactions in an
arm’s length transaction of similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the
asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose
a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present
value of those cash flows.

Impairment of financial assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgment in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the loss allowance calculation,
based on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the
end of each reporting period.

R UIERARME

4 BEXEMEERIIERE)

(iv) FemEERNE

v)

FEBRSBREBRTEAEFEREE
BEEMHENR - EAUKETREE
AMATRER - FERUFEHEEES
HE BEEIRSELBEUNREE
BRETHEEHE(NEERREELE
W AFEREERAREEREERE
MRSE)ESHERNE QA TVERHEE
BANGFEDEREATEEEARNIRD
HWEEEEHERXZNWEE - RTBED
BERHEEENEERA - SHEERER
B EEBAGTEERREEEEMN
BEARRERE H WEASENBERE
AEZERERENRE -

R ERE
EREENBRBFENEEYNARMNE
HBERNRR - ARERBBEES -
BA TSR AR & 3R & B R A9 AT %
fhat - EFEHEBRREETEBRBEN
) A BRI E o
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGMENTS /Continued)

(vi) Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses and deductible temporary differences arising from
impairment on inventories and depreciation of property,
plant and equipment to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
losses and deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Significant management judgment is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. Further details are contained in Note 26 to the
consolidated financial statements.

5 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and has
four reportable operating segments as follows:

(i) the merchandise segment engages in the marketing
and distribution of photographic developing, processing
and printing products and the sale of photographic
merchandises, skincare products, consumer electronic
products and household appliances;

(i) the service segment engages in the provision of technical
services for photographic developing and processing
products, imaging solution, professional audio-visual
advisory and custom design and installation services;

(iii) the investment segment comprises the Group’s businesses
in investment properties and other investment businesses;
and

(iv) the corporate and others segment comprises the Group’s
corporate income and expense items.

The chief operating decision-maker of the Group has been
identified as the Board of Directors. The Directors monitors
the results of its operating segments separately for the
purpose of making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated
based on reportable segment profit/(loss), which is a measure
of adjusted profit/(loss) before income tax. The adjusted profit/
(loss) before tax is measured consistently with the Group’s
profit/(loss) before income tax except that interest income,
finance cost and share of results of an associate are excluded
from such measurement.

4

5

EXEHEER I (F)

(vi) BERERE
EEHEEENREFSHERDE B
ERBEREMEEL 2 FERDARES
ERTNBE T EEMER  B58
AL R B T R S B R T4
PUBMEETTHA o TEEARE
R FERBLRE > ALES R Rk PR A
GRBHBER  RECTTRIZEE
BEEES AL EAKE o —bRE
BAGE MBRENE26

EESwNEH
RERENME - ARECRERRRBE D
EBEMN  MET2HNVELIENT ¢

() EmHEESERBEERKHES  HD
RENRIER  URHEEREER - EHE
Mmoo HBETERRIAER

(il BRBEDB|UBREHERE RPN ERKM AR
B EBBRAETR  EEZTEMETH
RET R RZERRT

(i) REDEBEAEBREVENEBRA
IREET . R

(ivy ©EREMSE  BFEAEENLERX
HE o

AEEZIEREARERESS -EFBY
ERSEBRIBANER  MEFEERERDE
RERBFEHRE - 2EXRBRIRBET2HD
BRI, (B8 (B 2EHERMEBRA
R, (B8))TE o ERBRBARB, (&
1B) DEAEERASHATRE, (BB B/
8 HEABEFEXTEERERA - BERE
R FEfE — B N B A o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  4r& B8R RMizE

5 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION /Continued) 5 RESEEHEE)
Segment assets exclude deferred tax assets, tax recoverable, PHEEETERELEHEEE - AJREIBIE -
cash and bank balances and other unallocated corporate REeRBITEBRRAMRIBREEEE » RE
assets as these assets are managed on a group basis. RAREEENREREREEEE -
Segment liabilities exclude tax payable, deferred tax liabilities PEABETEEEMSE EEHREEERE
and other unallocated corporate liabilities as these liabilities ASBREEEE  RRAZZEENEER
are managed on a group basis. HEEEEEE o
Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted at cost plus a DBz HEREEZRAEMLEL0.00%ZE
mark-up of approximately 0.00% to 41.97% (2019: 6.72% to 41.97% (20195 : 6.72% %£23.55% ) 2 M iNE
23.55%). FTE o
(a) Operating segments (a) BERE
Merchandise Senice Investment Corporate and Others Eiminations Consolidated
EnBE i R LERAH i 8
200 2019 2020 2019 2000 2019 2020 219 2020 2019 200 2019
HKP'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HK$'000
BT BTr BETn EETn BETn BBTr BT BT BETn MBTn BT M
Segment revenue: AEbE:
Sales to extemnal customers NREFHE
- Ata point n time - ZEREY man o %6 - UB A% - = - = - - TS0 8B
- Over time - ERELE - - 1678 1355% - - - - - - 1679 13559
Interseqment sles AERZHE 6747 0668 4319 34 - - - - (66128 (33909 - =
Other income and gains AitMARbE a9 81 6539 S A AR T 13 35 (00 () 0 Ne 1378
Changes in far value of RENENTELE
investment properties - - - - (3% 89 - - - - (3% 8%
Total b 831309 8350% 169,446 166,010 3600 21,505 123 35 (107,130) (41,230 897348 981,6%
Seqment (os)proit A8(5R)/H% (5350 (547 (M31) (7 238 (933)  (10251) (11419 - o) )
Interest income FELIN 192 28
Finance cost BERA (3379) =
Loss before income tax ReEHHEE (36,054 (@4120)
Income tax creditfexpense) fiERiEs/ (B2 435 (239
Loss for the year KEEFR (31,719 (46361)
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5 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION /Continvea) 5 BESWAHGE)

(a) Operating segments /Continved) (o) BESME(E
Merchandise Service Investment Corporate and Others Consolidated
EmifE LS R& bERAL G

00 2019 2020 2019 2002019 2020 019 200 2019
HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000
BRTn RETn ERTn BRI BETn RRTn ERTn BRTn BT BT

Assets and liabilities EERER

Seqment assets HEEE 50651 299463 88822 5395 27,040 28005 50129 52880 625642 634333
Unallocated assets RIBEE 197,720 198,264
Total assets EEAR 823362 832,597
Segment lizblities AEEE 107004 121591 59219 14260 10453 10454 3075 5010 179821 151315
Unallocated liabiltes EEL 3B010 39,124
Total iabiltes B4R 14831 190439
Other segment information; EhAREN

Depreciation of property, plant and % BRREEAE(NE)

equipment (Note 7) 4618 6441 9,083 10,284 - - 18 3980 15598 20,705
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 7). EFREEZTE (i) 28,8 - 26919 = - = - - 55661 =
Capital expenditure’ (Note 13) BRE(H33) 2490 11400 3135 5383 - - 854 % 6419 1773
Changes in far value of investment properties  REHEAFERE (1)

(Note 14) - - - - 3581 (8908 - - 3581 (8908
Provision for inventories (Note 7) FERR(MED) 260 80 - - - - - Y7/ A |
Impairment loss on property, plant and 0% BERRBIREREEE,

equipment and right-of-use assets HEER 6,005 Bl - - - - - 818 -
Impairment loss on amount due from Eh-BRENARE B ERR

an associate - - - - - 370 - - - 370
7 Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant g ERAMATEERBEYE  BMERRKE

and equipment.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  4r& B8R RMizE

5 OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION /Continvea)

5 EESEAHE)

(b) Geographical information (b) HEZEH

An analysis of the Group's revenue by location in which RXSEHEA T2 AEBREDN

the transaction took place is as follows: mT
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Revenue from external customers REMPREF ZWE

Hong Kong BB 880,272 958,997
People’s Republic of China (“PRC") REARLFE(HE]D 26 48
880,298 959,045

An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets (other than
deferred income tax assets and deposits) by location of
assets is as follows:

BREEMEME D 2 ANKEIFRBEE CRLEMEH
BEERBEBRIMNDHTAOT

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T

Non-current assets ERBEE
Hong Kong B 245,833 183,340
PRC R 119,692 129,432
365,525 312,772

(c) Information about a major customer
Revenue of approximately HK$41,491,000 (2019:
HK$55,837,000) was derived from sales by the
merchandise segment to a single customer.

(c) FR—BREREFRZRH
KRR HBMEA1,491,0007T(20194F : &
#55,837,000) NEMBEDBHET
E-RFMEEZHER -
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents (i) the
net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for returns
and trade discounts; and (ii) income from the rendering of
technical services for photographic developing and processing
products, imaging solution, professional audio-visual advisory
and custom design and installation services.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

Kz « Rt ARG
WETREAEE &R  HOHEER 2B
SFRECHBRRERTN  R()RERESY
HENEMBITRE - HBMATR - BT
BRTR  REARZERBZWA -

Wi - B ARBSEZ2MWT ¢

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Revenue Wz
Sale of goods EmHE 721,770 796,276
Income from the rendering of services RAARE 2 WA 158,528 162,769
880,298 959,045
Other income and gains = PN E:
Interest income on bank deposits RITFRZFIEUWA 1,922 2,218
Gross rental income from investment REYERSRALE
properties (Note 14(a)) (FFEE14(a)) 7,335 7,192
Marketing subsidy TG ERBED 8,113 1,682
Rental income from equipment HARBEURA 1,050 915
Rent concessions from lessors HHEAESER 1,795 -
Interest income from an associate RE—EEEQRHFEWA - 1,283
Others Hth 2,344 2,671
22,559 15,961
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  4r& B8R RMizE

EXPENSES BY NATURE 7 BEESEAX
2020 2019
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
FizE BET T BT T
Cost of inventories sold SHETFEHAA 598,515 656,588
Cost of services provided R AR A A 40,733 46,922
Auditor’s remuneration B2
Audit services BT 1,200 1,500
Non-audit services IEEZ RIS 672 662
Depreciation of property, plant and ME  BERREZITE
equipment 13 15,598 20,705
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEZNE 15 55,661 -
Advertising and marketing expenses BERTSBHERERY 12,198 22,277
Minimum lease payments under RELEHER L RIET
operating leases on land and buildings SN HREEERE - 58,771
Short-term lease payments HHEEIR 752 -
Variable lease payments EIE-2Eh-CNE=N 4,686 =
Losses on disposals of property, HEWE  BERSRE
plant and equipment ZEE 236 615
Provision for inventories FERHE 2,627 880
Legal and professional fee EEREEEA 2,254 2,056
Employee benefit expense EERBARX 8 121,059 114,925
Foreign exchange differences, net EHERE  F8 2,700 4,148
Others Hith 64,867 65,267
Total cost of sales, selling and distribution $HE&ERAN - SHER D HE
costs, advertising and marketing A BEERmiEEER
expenses and administrative expenses IRITBRALZER 923,758 995,316
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

8 RERBRFAX(BREEMS)

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Wages and salaries IERES 115,867 107,398
Pension costs — defined contribution plans BARERA - REM-FREE 5,192 7,527
121,059 114,925

Note:

No forfeited contributions are available to reduce the contribution
payable by the Group in future years.

The Group has sponsored various defined contribution plans for its
employees in the PRC. These plans are organised by the relevant
municipal and provincial governments based on certain percentage of
the relevant employees’ monthly salaries. The municipal and provincial
governments undertake to assume the retirement benefit obligations
payable to all existing and future retired employees under these
plans and the Group has no further constructive obligation for post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions made.

The Group has also sponsored a defined contribution scheme which
is managed by an approved trustee registered under Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF Ordinance”) for its
employees in Hong Kong. Both the Group and its employees in Hong
Kong are required to contribute a maximum of 5% (2019: 5%) of
each individual’s relevant income or a limited amount as prescribed by
the MPF Ordinance. The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group and independently administered.

FieE
WEE G UWER T AENRNAEBERRREEETH

B o

FEEERETHRESSERSEARTHUSE - ZE
SRR ATRAERE - REBEESARAZE
TEDEFHER - TRRERBUTRERBEL
BRAERARRRBRMESRERABRNEE © BR
EHERI  AEERRRRNEEE - PHRES
fE °

AEBETAEREBNESRLAEHAE - 56
sHEIRR BRI DB S B (TRE SR )&
MZEZSTIAEE - ARERATBESIIARR
BEROIFE BIRESHBRARS5% (20195 :
5% )R ERESFEHMEARN - FFENEERAEENE
EOREE UWBVER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  4r& B8R RMizE

9 FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
The five highest paid employees during the year included
three (2019: three) Directors, details of whose remuneration
are set out in Note 34. Details of the remuneration of the
remaining two (2019: two) non-Directors, highest paid
employee for the year were as follows:

9 SHUREHHMAL

FERSNURSHMES®IEIM(20194 : 347)
R HFEMFABEEAXME34EE - FR
Hepou (20195  2f) K EEREESFHMES
ZEHBEFEWT ¢

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Salaries and allowances e M2, 2,402 2,564
Pension costs — defined contribution plans BIRERA - REMRETE 36 36
2,438 2,600

The non-Directors, highest paid employee’s remuneration fell
within the following band:

HeWAETIEHEZESRESHFHES
bl N

Number of employees

BEAH

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BET T

HK$1 to HK$1,000,000 B T ZE78%1,000,0007T 1 =
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 781,000,001 TE B

2,000,0007C 1 2

2 2

10 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE
For the year ended 31 March 2020, Hong Kong profits tax
has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on
the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong.

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2,000,000 of profits of qualifying corporation will be
taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2,000,000 will be
taxed at 16.5%. For the year ended 31 March 2020, one (2019:
one) subsidiary of the Group is entitled to this tax benefit. The
profits of other Group entities incorporated in Hong Kong not
qualifying for the two-tiered profit tax regime are continued
to be taxed at the flat rate of 16.5%.

10 FifBIR(ER) X
BZE2020F3A31BLLFE - BEANEHRE
EEBREZ G ERBAE - BHZE16.5%
(20194 : 16.5%)FHREME -

REFNESHMAT  GERLARIABEE
7 # 2,000,000 T £ 8.25% 2 Bt R B 4 B
1B MBI B % 2,000,000 U £ 2 B
R165% ZHEHMMBIE - BLE20205F3 A
B1TRELEFEE . A&EEE—E(2019F : —
EMBARATEZESEEREER - REB
FMRIMAFEANERMAFER 2 H
tEEANERAZERI165% 28 —Fx
FTE o
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10 INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE /Continued) 10 FiR(ESR) FX (&)

Taxation on profits assessable for the year in the PRC has AEEFEBERBABNRBERAEELE X
been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in the location in B2BRBITRHETE o

which the Group operates.

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Current tax — Hong Kong EHRE-BE
Charge for the year FREHE 432 403
Over provision in prior years (Note) EF 2B (M) (3,839) (408)
Current tax — PRC EHBIE — P E
Charge for the year FREHE 770 861
(2,637) 856
Deferred tax (Note 26) IEER 18 (FI3E26) (1,698) 1,383
Income tax (credit)/expense SR (&) Bx (4,335) 2,239
Note: Bt &E -
For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group reversed the tax BZE2020F3831HLEEE » FEERAEFFELER
provision in relation to the other income arising from waiver of W EL A FE A BRI 40781 3,484,000 T FTE £ 2 H b ik
other payables of approximately HK$3,484,000 made in prior years. ABERIERE EEBECENTHASREBEER
Management have thoroughly revisited the situations and concluded WRARBEENEERRAL EEHEMEHRE
that there are grounds for the reversal as the tax authority did not # o WEERFELRE - Bt ERFREBFREHR
lodge any enquiry letter within the period of the statutory time B -
framework. As a result, a reversal of income tax provision was made
during the year.
The tax on the Group's loss before income tax differs from BRI B R ATS AT &5 18 2 B 18 B % A hn#g
the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted FHBRERBERANGEERERMEE ZEWB
average tax rate applicable to losses of the consolidated B2 EZFMT ¢

entities as follows:

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Loss before income tax MRETSHATE R (36,054) (44,122)
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to BEHERERNEER

profits in respective countries/regions BB ETE 2 HE (6,271) (6,968)

Over provision in prior years AFzBRERE (3,839) (408)

Income not subject to tax GBI (1,063) (2,432)

Expenses not deductible for tax purpose FEHBIE 3,841 6,778

Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was REFELERBEREZ

recognised HIEEE 3,720 5,287

Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses KB RER 2 BIBEE (723) (18)

Tax (credit)/expense BIE(K®) BX (4,335) 2,239
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  4r& B8R RMizE

11 LOSS PER SHARE 11 H{EREBIR
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on: BREAEBERENATERE
2020 2019
Loss attributable to owners of the RNTEE AELEE
Company (HK$'000) (BT T) (29,093) (46,691)
Weighted average number of ERTEBRZ
ordinary shares in issue InFET 5 1,185,318,349 1,185,318,349
Basic loss per share (HK cents) FREREE (B (2.45) (3.94)
No adjustment has been made to the basic loss per share HAREBRNEE2020FE K 201938310 1E
amounts presented for the years ended 31 March 2020 and FEVEDRTBEHEZER IR Z
2019 in respect of a dilution as the Group had no potentially EEERERERSEELRAE o
dilutive ordinary shares in issue during those years.
12 DIVIDENDS 12 BER
The Board of Directors does not recommend the payment of EEE RSB 202083831 HIEEEIR
any dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil). AR E (20194 : &) o
13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13 ¥  -BERBE
Furniture,
fixtures and
leasehold ~ Machinery and
Buildings  improvements equipment  Motor vehicles Total
& RER
BF HEWERE BERRE AE Eor )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETR BETT BETT BETT

At 1 April 2019 R2019F481A

Cost B 88,213 103,499 58,733 6,663 257,108
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ~ Z3HTERBE (47,706) (83,597) (44,102) (4,511) (179,916)
Net book amount IREFE 40,507 19,902 14,631 2,152 77,192
Year ended 31 March 2020 BZE202053A831HLEE

Opening net book amount at 201983R31AZ54)

31 March 2019, as previously presented — BREF{E » MEFIFIR 40,507 19,902 14,631 2,152 77,192
Changes in accounting policies (Note 2.2) &3t B 228 (H52.2) (27,746) (1,486) - = (29,232)
Opening net book amount at 2019%4R 1R 254

1 April 2019, as restated REFE  £25) 12,761 18,416 14,631 2,152 47,960
Additions 21 - 6,479 - - 6,479
Disposals HE - (242) = - (242)
Gain on revaluation (Note i) E1flE (HE) 565 - - - 565
Transfer to investment properties (Note i) B ZREME (iE) (1,365) = - - (1,365)
Transfer from investment properties (Note if) % &2 &9 (i) 2,522 - - - 2,522
Depreciation charge (Note 7) BB (M) (1,719) (11,504) (1,689) (686) (15,598)
Impairment AE - (1,158) (25) - (1,183)
Exchange realignment ERRE (556) - - - (556)
Closing net book amount EXRREFE 12,208 11,991 12,917 1,466 38,582
At 31 March 2020 R2020%3A31H
Cost A 29,182 94,327 57,226 6,030 186,765
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ~ Z3HTERBE (16,974) (82,336) (44,309) (4,564) (148,183)
Net book amount IR FE 12,208 11,991 12,917 1,466 38,582
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT /Continuved))

13 %% - BER&M(E)

Furniture,
fixtures and

leasehold  Machinery and
Buildings  improvements equipment  Motor vehicles Total
i RER
BT HEVEEE  BBRRE "E et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BRI BETT BETT BETT
At 1 April 2018 R201854A1A
Cost B 89,469 98,972 65,719 6,545 260,705
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ~ 23HTERHE (43,989) (81,135) (48,238) (5,631) (178,993)
Net book amount REFE 45,480 17,837 17,481 914 81,712
Year ended 31 March 2019 BZE2019F3A310LEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 45,480 17,837 17,481 914 81,712
Additions 0 - 15,623 380 1,729 17,732
Disposals HE - (73) (631) - (704)
Depreciation charge (Note 7) ERX (M&7) (4.218) (13,485) 2,511) (491) (20,705)
Exchange realignment EHAZ (755) - (88) - (843)
Closing net book amount FERREFE 40,507 19,902 14,631 2,152 77,192
At 31 March 2019 R2019%3A31A
Cost B 88,213 103,499 58,733 6,663 257,108
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ~ Z3HTERBIE (47,706) (83,597) (44,102) (4,511) (179,916)
Net book amount REEE 40,507 19,902 14,631 2,152 77,192

Depreciation expense of HK$2,240,000 (2019: HK$2,788,000)
has been charged in “cost of sales”, HK$7,733,000 (2019:
HK$9,683,000) has been charged in “selling and distribution
costs”, and HK$5,625,000 (2019: HK$8,234,000) has been
charged in “administrative expenses”.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had property, plant and
equipment of HK$12,087,000 and right-of-use assets of
HK$67,663,000 that were subject to impairment tests in the
event that trading performance is below expectation or store
is loss making. The Group considered each individual retail
store as a separately identifiable cash-generating unit (“CGU")
and performed impairment assessments on each of the CGU
with impairment indicators by considering the recoverable
amount of such assets at retail store level.

The carrying amount of the retail store assets is written down
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount. The estimates
of the recoverable amounts were based on value-in-use
calculations using discounted cash flow projections based on
the financial forecasts approved by management covering the
remaining tenure of the lease, with major assumptions such
as percentage change in gross profit margin and percentage
change in running cost. As a result, an impairment loss of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets of
HK$1,183,000 and HK$7,004,000 (2019: Nil) respectively
were recognised in the consolidated income statement.

7 B B X B M5 2,240,000 TT(2019 4F © B #&
2,788,0007t) ~ #8%57,733,0007t (20194 : &
#9,683,0007T ) K j8#5,625,0007T (20194 :
7B#£8,234,0007) E A RIR HERA |~ [$HE
RAHEER IRMTEEX IR -

M2020F3 8318 AEBEEVE  BE
REREBY12,087,000 T AR FAREE B
67,663,000 tE R 5 RI|EATEH R EHELE
BEEAETREIR - AEERZENZE
EHABUUEANRSELEN(REELS
f1]) WEBEENREEEHEE2EREE
WIkESE  HHEBREFRENTRESEE
BAETRERE -

WEEEHEENREAEARAEGHTRES
B AZEENEEEMRZETRESEE -
AWESEZGENRBEEEEMEZ RS
THEWGTKER  RARRRSRETEAMR
FTENFEAEEMSE  WHREERE WO
ENEEIHBEREERLFEILESD -
bt - 2 BIEBHE1,183,0007T K 3845 7,004,000
7T(2019% : B)NWY¥E - REREREUARER
REEZREBECNGEEWRERPER -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT /Continved)
Note:

14

()

(i)

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group changed the
use for an office unit occupied by the Group to earn rentals.
As a result, the relevant property and the right-of-use asset of
the office unit carried at fair value amounted HK$1,365,000
and HK$5,435,000 respectively were reclassified as investment
property at the date of transfer (Note 14).

At the date of transfer, the difference between the carrying
value amount of and fair value of property and right-of-use
assets for the year ended 31 March 2020 were HK$565,000
and HK$2,294,000 (Note 15) respectively. Such valuation gains
have been recognised in the asset revaluation reserve in the
consolidated statement of change in equity.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group changed the
use for an office unit from earning rentals to being occupied
by the Group. As a result, the relevant investment properties of
the office unit carried at fair value were reclassified as property
and the right-of-use asset at the date of transfer amounted to
HK$2,522,000 and HK$10,306,000 respectively (Note 14).

R UIERARME

13 %  -BWEREME)
FieE

(i)

(i)

BZE2020F3A31BLLFE » RE@GAEEFT
HRABRAENNAZRERARIES - Bt
RAFEARNZABVNERYER FRE
BEREBEEAENIEARENE  HeEp
Bl 578 %51,365,00070 & B #E 5,435,000 7T (i 5E
14) °

REBER » BE2020F3831BLFEMER
ERAREENRAEEAFTEZBNEEIBR
7B #565,0007T R B #2,294,000 7T (&£ 15) °
ZEMERSERGEESEDRINEESM
HENER o

BZE2020F3A31BLFE » REBAGHAEN
WARKRRBESERAAAEEMEA - B
It BAFEARNZHAENWIEREREYE
REBREAEHNIEAVEREHAREE  He
S Bl BB 2,522,0007T & 8% 10,306,000 7T
(BHEE14) °

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14 BEME
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At fair value BRATESE
Opening balances FR#EER 235,580 227,235
Transfer from property, plant and equipment EBRRIRAFEARN
at fair value (Note 13(i)) M - BERRK
(HEEE13()) 1,365 =
Transfer from right-of-use assets at fair value ERRRAFEARN
(Note 13(i) EAEEE (MEE13() 5,435 -
Transfer to property, plant and equipment EREYE  BRERRE
(Note 13(ii)) (BFEE13(i)) (2,522) -
Transfer to right-of-use assets (Note 13(ii)) EREFREEE
(BFEE13(i)) (10,306) -
Net (loss)/gain from fair value adjustment AFEFAEZ (EBE)
Wz FEE (3,587) 8,908
Exchange realignment Ak (529) (563)
Closing balance FEREER 225,436 235,580
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES /Continued)
The Group’'s investment properties are held under the
following lease terms:

14 ®_EMEE)

REBZREVERUT FHZHEHOEE -

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Medium term leases in the Hong Kong' NRAEBZHHBELNE 114,247 118,140
Medium term leases in the PRC' LR Bz BRI Pp2E 104,439 110,303
Long term leases in the PRC’ R E Z REIEQYE 6,750 7,137
225,436 235,580

(@)

(b)

Medium term leases are for period ranging from 10 to 50 years
while long term leases are for period over 50 years.

1

FHEYFERNFI10EES0FE MEGENE
ERRIRBIBSOF o

Amounts recognised in profit and loss for (a) BHEMERBESERZEH
investment properties
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Gross rental income (Note 6) AW ABE(HiEE6) 7,335 7,192
Direct expenses (including repairs and HEEE 2 REMEEEZ
maintenance) arising on rental-earning BEERX (BEEBERE
investment properties ) (1,438) (1,264)
5,897 5,928

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had no unprovided
contractual obligations for future repairs and maintenance
(2019: Nil).

Fair value hierarchy

An independent valuation of the Group’s investment
properties was performed by the valuer, Chung,
Chan & Associates, to determine the fair value of the
investment properties as at 31 March 2020 and 2019.
The revaluation gains or losses are included in “changes
in fair value of investment properties” in the consolidated
income statement. The following table analyses the
investment properties carried at fair value, by valuation
method.

(b)

M2020%3831H » AEBWEEFTIE

RBEZRREBREESE(2019F ¢
) o

DFEER

{LEET & &7 (Chung, Chan & Associates)
ERAEBRENMEETELMEE » A
BEREYWEMN2020%F % 2019%F3 8 31
BNAFEE EHBETAGREREE
[REMELNFEEZE IR - TREIIIZ
HEFZEPNRATEIRZBRENE
DR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  4r& B8R RMizE

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES /Continued) 14 BEMEE)
(b) Fair value hierarchy /Continuved) (b) 2FERB®R(E
Fair value measurements using

significant unobservable inputs

FAEATTEERABTEATE

(Level 3) (Level 3)
(5834R) (5834)
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Recurring fair value measurements REENFETE
Investment properties: REWE
— Industrial building units — Hong Kong -~ ITHEBFEN-FE 114,247 118,140
— Commercial office units — PRC —HEBRAEE N - PE 111,189 117,440
225,436 235,580
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and AEENBRENREREBNSHRBER
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date EHRLIEARRAATFEERS R ZE
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the HER  « FRIGEE 1R ~ F2WRE3IR
transfer. There was no transfer between Level 1, 2 and 3 2 R o
during the year.
The following table presents the changes in investment TREHIBE2020F K% 2019F3H318 1k
properties with fair value measurements using significant FE  FHEATUTBR@GABTEAF
unobservable inputs (level 3) for the years ended 31 BE(ERNIBEYE S EF) o
March 2020 and 2019.
For the year ended 31 March 2020 B E202053A31HILFE
PRC Hong Kong Total
FE O et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BET T BET T

Opening balance FHEER 117,440 118,140 235,580
Transfer from property, plant and B HRAFEARY

equipment at fair value M BERSE - 1,365 1,365
Transfer from right-of-use assets ERRRAFEARN

at fair value EAEEE - 5,435 5,435
Transfer to property, plant and EBREYE  BMERSRE

equipment - (2,522) (2,522)
Transfer to right-of-use assets EREFERAEEE - (10,306) (10,306)
Net (loss)/gain from fair value DN ERAEZ (FR)

adjustment U 22 F 58 (5,722) 2,135 (3,587)
Exchange realignment [ W% (529) - (529)
Closing balance FREER 111,189 114,247 225,436

Total (loss)/gains for the year included F R4 (EE), G ARZES

in the consolidated income WaRRIBENMEAFEHE
statement, under “changes in fair A)
value of investment properties” (5,722) 2,135 (3,587)
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES /Continved)

(b)

(c)

Fair value hierarchy /Confinved)
For the year ended 31 March 2019

14 ®_EMEE)
(b) AFERMR(E)

BZE2019F3A31HILLEE

PRC Hong Kong Total

FE BB HBEr

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T BT T

Opening balance FH4ER 115,785 111,450 227,235

Net gain from fair value adjustment NP EFARE 2 U F4E 2,218 6,690 8,908

Exchange realignment B 5 (563) - (563)

Closing balance FAREER 117,440 118,140 235,580
Total gains for the year included in FRAWSE GTAGZERER
the consolidated income statement, [REWELIFELZE 1K)

under “changes in fair value of
investment properties” 2,218 6,690 8,908

Valuation process of the Group

The Group’s investment properties were revalued at
HK$225,436,000 (2019: HK$235,580,000) as at 31
March 2020 by Chung, Chan & Associates, independent
professionally qualified valuer who holds a recognised
relevant professional qualification and has recent
experience in the locations and segments of the
investment properties valued. Certain of the investment
properties are leased to third parties under operating
lease arrangements, further summary details of which
are included in Note 29(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group's finance department reviews the valuations
performed by the independent valuer for financial
reporting purposes. The finance department reports
directly to the chief operating decision-maker. Discussions
of valuation processes and results are held between the
chief operating decision-maker, finance department and
the independent valuer on a regular basis.

At each financial year end the finance department:

e Verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation
report;

e Assesses property valuations movements when
compared to the prior year valuation report; and

e Holds discussions with the independent valuer.

Changes in Level 3 fair values are analysed at each
reporting date between the chief operating decision-
maker, finance team and the independent valuer.

(c) =EEMEEBE

AEEBZREVERBIEEEERM
EEI#&17(Chung, Chan & Associates)
(LfEEMSEHEERTEEER I
HAGEENREDEN B NESE
FHEAR B ) R2020F 3 A3 1 HEH G E
5B 225,436,000 T(2019F : B ¥
235,580,0007T) ° & FREYEC REE
MAHZERFE=S > HBEEFBECHR
RERE BB wRMET29() ©

REEP BB BIRE B WEREB LI
BEMELNGEE  TEEAFELERE
ERE EBRLERKE - MBBREL
hEMERNTREERERER -

EAFE AR B B B K

e REBUMEREMNMEELREA
B

o Y I FEMAERSETLUELES
B R

o  HEBVAEMETIW o

FTELERRE - WBEBRRBYGEM
REBRESHHREIRDIFELZBELD
# o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  4r& B8R RMizE

14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES /Continued)

(d) Valuation techniques
Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs
Fair values of investment properties of the Group are
generally determined using the direct comparison
approach. By making reference to comparable sales
transactions as available in the relevant markets,
comparable properties in close proximity have been
analysed, and adjustments have been made to account
for the difference in factors such as locations and
property size etc.

These significant unobservable inputs include:

Fair value at

14 ®_EMEE)

(d) fEESZE

ERAEXRTHRGAENELTE

FEBRENENDFE-—REEELR
EEE  KRBEREDSNTUELRHEE
X5 DML EN T ELLBYELR
NERNERBELZAZNZRFEHBE -

REERATIUHERAEBERSE

Relationship of

31 March 2020 Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable inputs
Description (HK$'000) Technique inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
020206
3A3182 TR
AYE TABR TABR WAER
HH (B%Tr) ELE BAE BABEZEE AT EZEBF
Industrial units 114,247 Direct Adjusted HK$2,482 - HK$5,333 per  The higher the adjusted
- Hong Kong comparison market price square foot market price, the
approach higher the fair value

THEFEN-FE BEEE LREDSER

Office units - PRC 111,189 Direct comparison Adjusted market

BYARAB2 482 E
BHS 3337T

RMB9,543- RMB31,193 per

EREHSERES -
MHEES

The higher the adjusted

approach price square meter market price, the
higher the fair value
POEEN—HE EREEE CRETSER SFHRARBISBTE KRETSELUS
AR¥31,1937T NHERS
Fair value at Relationship of
31 March 2019 Valuation Unobservable Range of unobservable inputs
Description (HK$'000) Technique inputs unobservable inputs to fair value
R20196
3A3182 TR
AVE TABR TABE WAER
HH (B%Tr) ELE BAE BABEZEE AV EZER

Industrial units - Hong 118,140 Income Passing rents

Kong capitalisation
method
IXETEL-FE WABREE BREES
Yields
DEnES

Office units - PRC 117,440 Income

capitalisation

Passing rents

method
WOEBN - P [LON-¥:X (473 BRiEd
Yields
[hEnES

HK$8.6 — HK$14.8 per
month per square foot

BABFAREMS6E
BE1487T

2.70% - 3.95%

RMB21.7 - RMB82.6
per month per
square meter
BRABFARARMN TR
ZARM82.67T

1.20% - 2.91%

The higher the passing
rents, the higher the
fair value

BEHESHES -
AHEES

The higher the yield, the
lower the fair value

WEEME - APEGLE

The higher the passing
rents, the higher the
fair value

REFHLHS -
AFERS

The higher the yield, the
lower the fair value

WEERMS - AVEBE
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14 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES /Continued)
(d) Valuation techniques /Continved)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs /Continued)

The Directors of the Company considered that the change
in the valuation technique with respect to all properties in
Hong Kong and the PRC at 31 March 2020 is appropriate
as the valuation technique used in the current year is
based on market price of similar properties and locations,
and shall equally reflect the property value as compared
to the income capitalisation method used in the prior
year which was based on passing rents and yields.

14 BBMEGE)
(d) &EFSH(E)
FERAEXFTBRBAEGELFEE)

AABESRE » R2020F38318 66
FENREBRPENYMENEES L2
BAEE  WIBARAFEEMANMGER
EDERREMENTSEERNVE - I
EREXFEMANERREBEESRKEERN
WAERE—#  RMYEEE -

15 LEASES 15 #HE
This note provides information for leases where the Group is AMFREEAREBFERFKEAZEHEN
a lessee. ER o
Leasehold land Properties
held for own lease for own Equipment
use use lease Total
EREELH BAVERS REHE s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BT T BT T
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Year ended 31 March 2020 B £20206F3H31H
LEFE
Opening net book amount at 2019538312
31 March 2019, as previously FHREFEE
presented WML A SR = = = -
Changes in accounting policies i BE &
(Note 2.2) (FaE2.2) 27,746 72,986 16,850 117,582
Opening net book amount at 20194 B 1HZEH
1 April 2019, as restated IREFE @ KES 27,746 72,986 16,850 117,582
Additions o - 38,206 1,229 39,435
Gain on revaluation (Note 13(i))  E & Utz (FIzE13()) 2,294 - - 2,294
Transfer to investment properties ERBERE Y
(Note 13(i)) (FFEE13()) (5,435) - - (5,435)
Transfer from investment EBRRREYE
properties (Note 13(ii)) (BFEE13(i)) 10,306 - - 10,306
Depreciation charge (Note 7) ITER X (FIFE7) (1,526) (50,503) (3,632) (55,661)
Impairment BE - (7,004) = (7,004)
Exchange realignment [E 5 (10) = = (10)
Closing net book amount FERIREFEE 33,375 53,685 14,447 101,507
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  4r& B8R RMizE

15 LEASES /Continued) 15 & (&)
(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement (a) RFEMBRARPRIHER
of financial position
1 April
2019
2019%F
2020 481H
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BT T
Lease liabilities HEAE
Current TRE 43,329 47,424
Non-current IERED 34,191 43,646
77,520 91,070
(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income (b) RiFalkSETEINHESE
statement
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Finance costs R E R A 3,379 =
Expense relating to short-term leases (included in E24EHATH SRR X
selling and distribution costs and administrative  (;t ASSER D $EE B
expenses) RITHEX®) 752 =
Expense relating to variable lease payments not  EERF ARE S EM AL
included in lease liabilities (included in selling ENFRAERERIEE X
and distribution costs) (GIASHERDHER) 4,686
Depreciation expenses of right-of-use assets FEREEEZINERS 55,661 -

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31
March 2020 was HK$59,752,000.

(c) The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for
The Group leases various properties and equipment.
Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 2
to 7 years but may have extension options as described
below. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual
basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions.

(c)

HZE2020F3A831ALLEE HEBER
H 4% 5588559,752,0007T °

FREMBRTEL R MAAR

AEERESENERRE - ARA0E
#RETENERHE  HATRAENT
FR BOTE IR« AR BB R IS MBI
ERBEEE - a8 5ETRNERRE
o
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15 LEASES /Continued)

(d)

(e)

Variable lease payments

Some properties leases contain variable payment terms
that are linked to sales generated from a store. For
individual stores, certain lease payments are on the basis
of variable payment terms with percentages ranging from
7.5% to 9% of sales. Variable payment terms are used
for a variety of reasons, including minimising the fixed
costs base for established stores. Variable lease payments
that depend on sales are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which the condition that triggers those
payments occurs.

A 10% increase in sales across all stores in the Group
with such variable lease contracts would increase total
lease payments by approximately HK$469,000.

Extension and termination options

Extension and termination options are included in a
number of properties across the Group. These terms
are used to maximise operational flexibility in terms
of managing contracts. The majority of extension and
termination options held are exercisable only by the
Group and not by the respective lessor.

15 HE (&)

(d)

(e)

A SR T
BOMFEEQSHERELWHEHN
BRI FRARTR o ERIERAE - & TH
BN RTIRIE 2N IR AN FHEHE
H75%Z9%&HE o TR FRIERTIER
EEREMmMER  BERERECSEYE
HOEEMAER - RPHEEMENT
BARGRARBEZSEAROBTRELESR
BRERPRER -

HAEEI ARSI HESNNFEE
HHERRIEMI0% - HENRABIEK LN
#) 7B #469,0007T ©

ERIR I RiFE
AEENZEYECSERRKLEE
o WERRANEESHNELETENY
EERAL - FENKSBREH R A& L2
BERAGHARETE  MARAZEN
HAEATE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  4r& B8R RMizE

16 SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2020 are

16 ELF
M2020F 383 1B EEMBARFHENT :

as follows:
Place of incorporation/
establishment and Principal activities and
Name kind of legal entity Issued ordinary share capital Ownership interest held by place of operation
U AL
£8 AL/ HIEREEBRNE BRTEERE fFaREs IEXBRERNE
non-
controlling
the Company interests
ARH FiRbIER
Direct  Indirect
BR  EE
Callas Investments Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Property holding in Hong Kong
FEFREARLT &% BRERLT EERERIT RERUBNRER
China-Hongkong Photo Retail Limited British Virgin Islands, limited fiability company ~ Ordinary share US$1 - 100% - Investment holding in Hong Kong
HERESERRAE ABELEE  AREALR Bl e RERIZRERR
China-Hongkong Graphic Arts Hong Kong, limited liability company Ordinary share HK$10,000 - 100% - Marketing and distribution of
Products Limited printing products in Hong Kong
HEDRBIERAE &% BRERLT ZEMEE100007 RERREREHIRER
C.Y. Sun Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, limited fiability company ~ Ordinary share US$10,000 100% = - Investment holding in Hong Kong
ABELEE  AREALR LER10000ER RERIZRERR
E-Max Service Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company Ordinary share HK$10,000 - 100% - Provision of installation service for
household appliances in Hong
Kong
ERIEMRBERAR &% BRERLT LiEME%10,0007 RERRUFRERZERE
Emmy Technology Development Limited ~ Hong Kong, limited liability company Ordinary share HK$10,000 = 70% 30%  Provision of professional audio-visual
advisory and custom design and
installation services in Hong Kong
IGHAEERERAE &% BRERLT ZEME%10,0007 REBRMEXFERRRTE R
HREERH
Fotomax (F.E) Ltd. Hong Kong, limited liability company Ordinary share HK$1,000,000 - 100% - Provision of photographic developing
and processing services and retail
of photographic merchandise in
Hong Kong
REZ (B2 B%  BRERLT ZiBME%1,000,0007 REBRERERADRH R ES
e
FotoWorks (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company Ordinary share HK$6,800,000 = 65% 35%  Provision of imaging solution in
Hong Kong
B%  BRERLT EBRiE~6 800,007 REBREFERALE
Fuji Life Science Products Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Retail of skincare products in Hong
Kong
ETERRRERARA &% BRERLT EERE T REBISERERSE
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16 SUBSIDIARIES /Continvea)

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

16 MHEBAR(#E)

Principal activities and

Name kind of legal entity Issued ordinary share capital Ownership interest held by place of operation
UTALHEN
iR AL/ HISEREEERNE BRTERRA fEkRR IRRBRERY
non-
controlling
the Company interests
AR FEHER
Direct  Indirect
BR  BE
Fuji Photo Products Company Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company Ordinary share - 100% - Marketing and distribution of
HK$10,000,000 photographic developing and
processing products in Hong Kong
and Macau
ETRYRHARLT FE BREELT EBRE10,000,000% RERREMERREHR R
Ef
Great Eamings Investments Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Property holding in Hong Kong
EEREARAT & AREALT EERERIT S EER
Majestic Income Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Property holding in Hong Kong
BEERAA & AREALT BERERT S EERE
Orderly Mind Enterprises Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Property holding in Hong Kong
RELXERAT & AREALT BERERT S E e
Orient City Properties Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Property holding in Hong Kong
& AREALT EERERLT S EER
Palace Glory Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Property holding in the PRC
REERLT & AREALT EERES I MERENZEE
Pride High Company Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Property holding in the PRC
AR g AREALNT LERER iER 2
Pro Audio Development Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company Ordinary share HK$10,000 = 70% 30% Wholesales of audio and visual
products in Hong Kong
ERFERRARLA &% BRERLT EBRER 100007 RERMETEER
Sky Rich (Asia) Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Property holding in the PRC
RE(EH)ERAE &t AREALNT LERER T RABfEEERE
Sky Year Resources Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company Ordinary share HK$2 - 100% - Property holding in the PRC
REERERAT &t AREELNT LERER T RABfENEEE
Wai Ming Electrical Development Limited  Hong Kong, limited liability company Ordinary share HK$10,000 - 60% 40%  Retail and wholesales of consumer
electronic products and household
appliances in Hong Kong
EREXERARLA &% BRERLT EERER100007 RERUEHEETERRZAES
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16 SUBSIDIARIES /Continvea) 16

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

PR (&)

Principal activities and

Name kind of legal entity Issued ordinary share capital Ownership interest held by place of operation
WAL
iR AL Rt R R EERE BRTERRA fEkRR IEXBREFMY
non-
controlling
the Company interests
ARR FEHER
Direct  Indirect
EL R
YCY International Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company Ordinary share HK$10,000 - 100% - Retail and wholesales of consumer
electronic products and household
appliances in Hong Kong
ZRERERLT &% ARERLT EiEREE100007 RERIZHEETERRZAES
TERME
JBHENR (LB ERAT PRC, limited liability company Ordinary share US$150,000 - 100% - Marketing and distribution of
printing products in the PRC
tE  BRERLT ZER150000%7 MEEERIRIRER

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the Directors of the Company, principally
affect the results for the year or form a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the Directors of the
Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

In the opinion of the Directors of the Company that there is
no non-controlling interests that are material to the Group.

ERFAVIDARDESRAHUAEELFESE
BEEAREREAEEFEETRND A
REAMBLE - ARAEBRATIH A LIS
DNRAZHBEEREBRR -

AARESBRE  UEHAEEMSBERZ
FEEEHIME R o

17 AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE 17 Bl—MEEATRIE

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEET T BET T
Unlisted shares, at cost LMY - RERATE = =
Amount due from an associate FEUR — R A R SR 32,720 32,720
Less: Provision for impairment (Note (a)) W ORERE (MR a) (32,720) (32,720)

Note: B -

(a) The Directors of the Company are of the opinion that the credit
risk of the amount due from an associate is considered to be
high because the associate has been incurring losses and has
net deficit as at 31 March 2020 (31 March 2019: Same), which,
it has become uncertain that continuing financial support can
be provided by the associate’s holding company to enable the
associate to settle this balance. Provision for impairment of
HK$32,720,000 was recognised during the year ended 31 March
2019. The provision balance remained the same as at 31 March
2020.

(@) FRARNEBRH  ER—BHEATRENGE
BERBERS FEAZHE ARR2020F38
3 HEEBIBIHEFEM (2019638318 ¢
HHE)  TREZBE DTANER D AESRM
HENVBESEHE NGBS H - HE
2019F3A31ALEE EREIAFMEREEE
32,720,0007C © #EEREEN 20203 A31 B R
AR o
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17 AMOUNT DUE FROM AN ASSOCIATE /Continved) 17 Bi—MBEQTRA(E)

The amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest R — RS N RRIEAEKE - LIEIE2019638
bearing at 2% to 5% per annum on balances as at each BNBLEFESARARIR2%ES%FFIENE - BE
month-end for the year ended 31 March 2019. No interest 2020F3A31HILFE » WAREREMFAISKA o It
income is recognised for the year ended 31 March 2020. EXRGNHESEXZEFHEHENERET - -
These transactions were carried out at a rate mutually-agreed BEENRNISNT

between the parties involved in the transactions. Transactions
with an associate are as follows:

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Interest income from an associate RE—EEE AR ERA = 1,283
The carrying amount of the amount due from an associate FER—HEE AT REZRAEEEQNFE
approximates to its fair value. HBE -
There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group’s BEREAEERBEE NI Z2ESZEEZ2HA
interest in an associate. afE -
As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, details of the Group's 2020 K 20193310 - NEEN — B
interest in an associate are as follows: AT ERFEBOT
Percentage of
Place of incorporation Issued ordinary share  equity attributable Measurement
Name and operations capital to the Group Principal activities method
EERES
A% AMRIkEERE CRTEZERRAE BREA FEEH HEV:PA
kikki.K Retail (H.K.) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share 49% Retail of stationery, life-style Equity
HK$300,000 gifts and home fashion
products
&l EEREE REXE - £EFRRRRE #EH
300,0007¢ HREREE
Summarised financial information of the Group's associate is AEEHE AT 2MBEERMEENT :
as follows:
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Total assets EELER 5,709 5,572
Total liabilities aER%E 41,432 36,344
Revenue U 9,277 12,664
Loss for the year KEEEE (4,938) (6,471)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

18

19

20

INVENTORIES

The Group’s inventories principally consist of photographic
developing, processing and printing products, skincare
products, consumer electronic products and household
appliances for resale.

The cost of inventories amounted to HK$598,515,000
(2019: HK$656,588,000) and a provision for inventories of
HK$2,627,000 (2019: HK$880,000) were included in “cost of
sales”.

CONTRACT ASSETS

Contract assets are initially recognised for revenue earned
from professional audio-visual installation services as
the receipt of consideration is conditional on successful
completion of installation service. Upon completion of
installation service, the amounts recognised as contract assets
are reclassified to trade receivables.

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, the expected timing of
recovery or settlement for contract assets is within one year.

Significant changes in contract assets

Contract assets have decreased as the Group has provided
less installation services. No loss allowance for contract assets
was recognised.

R UIERARME

18

19

R
FEBZFETEAHBEECREY  HEORD
RER EEER HEESFEMERAS
=

FE KA B 598,515,000 (20194 : B
656,588,000t ) R E BB %2,627,0007T
(20194 : ##£880,0007T) JasT Al $HER A |-

anRE
ENERRENEAREERD TR Z LR
ME  BRENEEEREEXELTLRERBHA
BRER U 25 B 1T S IR TERD » ERM R RMRHKR -
BRARBNEENSHLER I BEZE SR
IRIE ©

2020 K 2019538310 - AHNEENTEL
WESEESERAE—FR °

BNREZEXRED
HRAEERUBLZERYE - HENEER
Frmd - WEHFENWEERDERER -

TRADE RECEIVABLES 20 BHEKRE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Trade receivables B S EWIRE 43,675 51,713

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are either on a
cash basis or on credit. For credit sales, the credit period is
generally 15 to 30 days, except for certain well-established
customers where the terms are extended to 120 days. Each
customer has a maximum credit limit pre-approved by senior
management. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control
department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management.

As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, balances are relating to a
large number of diversified customers.

AEBEEFIRZHBRURSHBERS R
BT o BRREEMS  FEH-—KBI152
30R - ERMARENEEFRATERE120
A -BUEFHUERSFEERSE  LHSRE
EEELHE  AEBHOBEREFRERZ
FBWERR - AREFEEEFFFIUAZERIERS
EEKE - SREEETHRREAMELR -

2020 K 201938318 » &eATEZUR
EEFEH -
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20 TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

21

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of

20 WHEWRER (&E)

BRBRZEMFE  UTANKRHERESER

the year, based on the invoice date and net of impairment, is RIERERZIRE DT
as follows:

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Up to 30 days Ri#E30H 32,468 44,323
31 to 60 days 31Z60H 7,921 4,067
61 to 90 days 61Z290H 887 713
91 to 120 days 91Z120H 1,168 487
Over 120 days 12088k 1,231 2,123
43,675 51,713

(i) Fair values of frade receivables

Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables,
their carrying amounts are considered to be the same as
their fair values and are denominated in HK$.

(ii) Impairment and risk exposure

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables and

contract assets.

Information about the impairment of trade receivables
and the Group’s exposure to credit risk can be found in

Note 3.1(ii)(b).

NON-CURRENT DEPOSITS, CURRENT PREPAYMENTS,

() BREBARERN A FE

HRRBEYREMNREE - AREER
RERRELFE - LLUBKEE -

(i) 3% B e F B

AEBEAEEBVBRELEREIRRE
WL A A 2EMEESE - BYHAE
BZRURERANEERARETED

MR RERE -

FRESRIRERERAEENEER

R BT EE3. 1(i)(b) ©

21 FRBEE - RBECARE - HERHEM

DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES BRI
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Current portion REE D
Deposits and other receivables ReREMmERIRE 25,028 41,953
Prepayments FEFIE 7,517 8,132
32,545 50,085
Non-current portion EREBD
Deposits B"E 12,354 13,729

Due to the short-term nature of the other current receivables,
their carrying amounts are considered to be the same as
their fair value. Note 3.1(ii)(b) sets out information about the
impairment of financial assets and the Group's exposure to

credit risk.

HREMREEWRERRRE - HREER
RERREDFE - WE3. 1)) EIIEEE
MEERERAEBEERBNES -
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22 CASH AND BANK BALANCES 22 ReRMITHE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Non-pledged time deposits with original REERBBE=EAZ
maturity of over three months HEIKAEEFER 22,926 25,616
Cash and cash equivalents in the HEBRERERAZESR
consolidated statement of cash flows: HeZ%EEAE
Cash and bank balances ReRIVTHER 89,702 84,210
Non-pledged time deposits with original REHBLR=@AZ
maturity of less than three months IR ERFR 84,686 88,352
174,388 172,562
197,314 198,178
At the end of the year, the cash and bank balances of the REXR REBUARBHSEZEHELIE
Group denominated in RMB amounted to HK$29,597,000 TH KB %29,597,000T(20194F © B
(2019: HK$29,888,000) which were deposited with the banks 29,888,000t ) FRHAEIIRA ZR1T - ERZ
in the PRC. The remittance of such balances out of the PRC L4 P EE HNE B S b B B A8 4 Y SNE
is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange EHSEIE o
control promulgated by the PRC government.
Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on FERBIT2RESBIERTE B ERNRRIVE
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made BAE  cREAEEHNFEEERZSY
for varying periods of between one day and over one year M EHERERH-—BE—FULEFE MU
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group, DRIRMARZERRE - VRITERTERER
and earn interest at the respective time deposit rates. The RiF AR BREENLHEZRT - AEER
bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks with no SRR SZEEAEEERNTEEE -

recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the Group’s
cash and cash equivalents approximate their fair values.
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23

24

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

23 ARl

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Receipt in advances from customers AR FRIE 11,185 14,616
Customer loyalty programmes = FEHE 787 558
11,972 15,174

Revenue recognised in relation to contract liabilities FREMARHERIKE

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period relates to carried-
forward contract liabilities.

TRIRABRENEHEEFESHEERRNE
RS -

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Revenue recognised that was included it ASH B E#EE 2 EHNEHEFR
in the contract liability balance at the e zx
beginning of the year
Receipt in advances from customers EREFRIE 14,239 14,505
Customer loyalty programmes = FEHE 135 117

All services contracts are for periods of one year or less. As
permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to
these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed (2019: Same).

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables at the
end of the year, based on the date of goods purchased and
services rendered, is as follows:

FERBENAB-—FRER - REBY
BEHEENFISEAAR - 2MEZER
BHRENNRZERLEREE(2019F ¢

HE) e
24 WHBFHERRFRE
REBEESMRESREZBAHHE  EFE

NERERRENRFR ZREDTAOT ¢

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BET T

Within 3 months 3EBURA 42,386 80,151
Over 3 months 3EB UL 2,125 2,140
44,511 82,291

The Group's trade and bills payables are non-interest-bearing
and are normally settled on 30-day terms. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s trade and bills payable approximate
to their fair values.

FEBECESRVRARREARE - BB%
AR BHRARE - AEBEZRARER
SR ZREEEQNTERS °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  4r& B8R RMizE

25 ACCRUED LIABILITIES AND OTHER PAYABLES 25 ERtREREMEMGER
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Other payables HAibE(TERIE 13,820 17,388
Dividend payable to non-controlling interests  FE{S AR B F IE45 4 1 E S - 80
Accrued expenses FEETRISX 31,998 36,462
Total Fakc] 45,818 53,930
Less: Non-current accrued liabilities W ERBESTEE 5,778 5,727
Current portion FRENER 40,040 48,203
The carrying amounts of accrued liabilities and other payables ErrAEREMEMNREZREEEDFEM
approximate to their fair values. o
26 DEFERRED TAX 26 BEREA
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities EERBEERBLERERBENITOT
is as follows:
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Deferred tax assets BELEHRIEEE 174 86
Deferred tax liabilities EEREBEE S (27.413) (29,258)
Deferred tax liabilities — net EEREEE - FH (27,239) (29,172)
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26 DEFERRED TAX (Continued)
The gross movements in deferred tax liabilities and
without taking into consideration the offsetting of b
within the same tax jurisdiction, during the year
follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

26 EIERIA(4)

assets, I EFABRFERERR B EEERBANG
alances BT FRECEHESEREENRAZI N

are as TS ¢

BERES K
Depreciation
allowance
in excess
Revaluation of related
of investment depreciation

properties expense
HBiBiaEE

TEMZZ

BEMRENE WEEHE
HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BETT

Leases Total
e iz

HK$'000 HK$'000
BETRT  BETR

At 1 April 2018 R2018F481H 26,060 2,075 - 28,135
Charged to the consolidated FARGERRRITRKR

income statement during the (FFEE10)

year (Note 10) 1,114 241 - 1,355
Exchange realignment R (232) = = (232)
At 31 March 2019, as previously ~ 2019%3H31H » 1%

presented AIFI3R 26,942 2,316 = 29,258
Changes in accounting policies Bt BR 2 &

(Note 2.2) (FtsE2.2) - - 15 15
At 1 April 2019, as restated R2019%4818 » &5 26,942 2,316 15 29,273
Credited to the consolidated FARGREWRERETA

income statement during the (MtzE10)

year (Note 10) (1,430) (165) (15) (1,610)
Exchange realignment 5 A (250) - - (250)
At 31 March 2020 #2020%3A31H 25,262 2,151 - 27,413
Deferred tax assets BERERE

Unrealised profit
from inventories

REREFEFHE

HK$'000

BET T

At 1 April 2018 20184818 (114)

Credited to the consolidated income statement FRRGEWERTA (HEE10) 28
during the year (Note 10)

At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 R2019F3831HK2019F4H18 (86)

Credited to the consolidated income statement FRARGA W RET A (EE10) (88)
during the year (Note 10)

At 31 March 2020 72020%63A31H (174)
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26 DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 26 EIEMRIA(4E)
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carrying- EEREEEDRAE 2B EBEER K
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related LETREBRRZERNABERBEN
tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable. At BRHEABR - B2020F38310 » AEEL
31 March 2020, the Group did not recognise deferred A IE B 1881 439,253,000 7T (20194
tax assets of HK$73,294,000 (2019: HK$70,147,000) in B#418,512,000 ) ERELEREEEEE
respect of tax losses amounting to HK$439,253,000 (2019: 73,294,000 (20194 : ##70,147,0007T)
HK$418,512,000) that are available for offsetting against HREAEEEESEBARRRZERTF
future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses B ARZEEFERR TN REZREINE
arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect BIREEARKENB2MBLRLE - I
of these losses and deductible temporary differences as they AREBIELRIBEE -
have arisen in subsidiaries with uncertain future operating
profit streams.
The unrecognised estimated tax losses are analysed by years REWESD N2 RER G BIESENT ¢
from expiring as follows:
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T
With no expiry date gy =t 70,454 66,929
Within 5 years AFR 2,840 3,218
73,294 70,147
Pursuant to the relevant PRC corporate income tax rules and RBEEBRPECERSHIAEEELIR  AEH
regulations, deferred tax on withholding tax is imposed on AT EMEB AT E2008% 18 1B ERINE
declared dividends in respect of profits earned by the Group’s F SRR S MTEHIRIEERIE -
PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008.
Deferred income tax liabilities of approximately HK$624,000 FA20205E3 831 B4#8%8624,0007T (20194
(2019: HK$522,000) as at 31 March 2020 have not been FBHE522 000 ) ZIEEFT SR EBENERAE
provided for in the consolidated statement of financial EETHEWEB LR 2 BiHEREL 2 E S
position in respect of temporary differences attributable to EENGEUERREANELEE  ERER
accumulated profits of the Group’s certain PRC subsidiaries AEFRHZEHEMNBEATNRERXK » B
as the Group controls the dividend policy of these PRC ZETRMEEA TSI R TE R R E
subsidiaries and it is probable that these temporary differences E1
will not be reversed in the foreseeable future.
27 SHARE CAPITAL 27 B&F
Shares B&in
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Authorised: EE
2,000,000,000 (2019: 2,000,000,000) @Az 2,000,000,0008%
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each (2019 : 2,000,000,000/% )
BREESBE 1A 200,000 200,000
Number of Share
ordinary share of capital
HK$0.10 each HK$'000
BREEEE 1A BR A
ERRHE BT T
Issued and fully paid ERITRAZ
At 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2020 M2019%F3831HK&2020%3H31H 1,185,318,349 118,532
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28 RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior year are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 87 and
88 of the consolidated financial statements.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

29

(@)

(b)

As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (Note
14) under operating lease arrangements, with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to 10 years (2019:
1 to 3 years). The terms of the leases generally also
require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide
for periodic rent adjustments according to the prevailing
market conditions.

At 31 March 2020, the Group had total future minimum
lease receivables under non-cancellable operating leases
with its tenants falling due as follows:

28 fiEf
FEBERBURERAERBEFE2EE -
BRGE B RRESTRISEZREREEE
3

29 EEHRRH

(@)

ESHBA
AEERBELSHERHERARENE
(MizE14) - KEBITEEHBI1Z105F
Z(2019%F 1 123%F) - HERRT KA
EHRFAXNERRERBEERTRE
HREES -

2020638310 » ANEEREBRFT L
2 7 T $R0 S A v AR 4 T ) A SR AR U ER 2 B
RESABEIHBERNOT ¢

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BETFT
Within one year 1R 7,559 5,723
In the second to fifth year, inclusive 2ESF (BIEEEME) 5,809 3,057
Over fifth year SELLE 4,527 =
17,895 8,780

As lessee (b) E&HEIEAA

From 1 April 2019, the Group has recognised right-of-
use assets for its operating leases, except for short-term
leases and low-value leases, see Note 2.2 and Note 15 for
further information. The Group’s future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases are as
follows:

B2019F 48108 » AEBOHRELE
HERIERAREE  HEHRHEREE
BREER)  BEE—SER > FSHKM
2. 2R MIEE15 o REBE T A 2K
EHEMBERARIFZHEHSEEN
T

2020 2019

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT

Within one year 1R - 49,831
In the second to fifth years, inclusive 2ESFE (BIEEEME) - 35,615
- 85,446
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30 CAPITAL COMMITMENT
Capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the year but
not yet incurred is as follows:

30

W&k
FREHENEHREENERBZMOT :

2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Property, plant and equipment "E - BMERRE 2,654 546
31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 31 AEALES
Other than those disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated MRRGREMBRREMBOAEEEN TR
financial statements, the Group has the following significant AEBRAEECEZRXEBBREPETTTH
related party transactions carried out in the normal course of BEREEALRS °
the Group’s business during the year.
The Group’s key management personnel are the Directors of TEBZETEEBAERRATESE - EEH
the Company. Further details of Directors’ remuneration are S E—SHBRNGRE M ERRMEE3S -
included in Note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.
32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 32 LIERIBIsZE&MTI A
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial BESHTARFERZEREAENT @
instruments as at the end of the year are as follows:
Financial assets at amortised cost DEEBFEARZEMEE
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Trade receivables g 5 EINERE 43,675 51,713
Deposits and other receivables RE& R HthEERE
(excluding prepayments) (FESFRIEBR D) 37,382 55,682
Cash and bank balances HeRBITHEER 197,314 198,178
278,371 305,573
Financial liabilities at amortised cost DEBEFARZEMAR
2020 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Trade and bills payables BEZREMNREBERERE 44,511 82,291
Accrued liabilities and other payables EstAEREMEMIRE
(excluding non-financial liabilities) (EEmEERIM) 25,328 34,222
Lease liabilities HEas 77,520 =
147,359 116,513
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33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

33 FLRFZHMBRARREMEE

2020 2019
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE BT T BEET T
ASSETS EE
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RITBARIRE 596,606 601,461
Current assets REEE
Prepayments and other receivables FE B R H AL pE N BRIE 259 259
Cash and cash equivalents HERBEEEIER 700 567
Total current assets mBEERLE 959 826
Total assets EEBE 597,565 602,287
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners AARBEE ANEGER
of the Company
Share capital BRAR 118,532 118,532
Reserves ] (a) 478,551 481,524
Total equity AR 597,083 600,056
LIABILITIES aE
Current liabilities REBEE
Accrued liabilities and other payables Esta s R EMEMIRE 482 2,231
Total liabilities BEEE 482 2,231
Total equity and liabilities EnkBEAE 597,565 602,287

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 24 June 2020 and was

signed on its behalf.

Sun Tai Lun Dennis
Chairman

BRKRfE

EE

AATZ PR REAR2020F6 A24BES
EEEE  URERTIESARESE -

Sun Tao Hung Stanley
Deputy Chairman and CEO
LN

EHIEERITEAE

Annual Report 2019/20 FEXERE

157



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements  4r& B8R RMizE

33 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 33 FATZHMBHRAER RS (&)
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued)

Note (a): Movement of reserves of the Company FizE(a) - RABZfHERE
Share Capital
premium  redemption  Contributed ~ Accumulated
account reserve surplus losses Total
RAGEE EABERE BEHRY B4y | ECk]

HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
BETR  BRTR  BMTR BT TR

At 1 April 2018 R2018%481A 490,378 1,619 130 (7,886) 484,241
Loss and total comprehensive loss FEFERZEFELR

for the year - - - (2,717) (2,717)
At 31 March 2019 and 1 April 2019 R2019F3A31AK%201954 518 490,378 1,619 130 (10,603) 481,524
Loss and total comprehensive loss FEFERZAFELE

for the year - - - (2,973) (2,973)
At 31 March 2020 12020%3A318 490,378 1,619 130 (13,576) 478,551
The Company's contributed surplus represents the excess ARABHBHRBAWERBERRRD 2
of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired AFEBERARRMIEEEMEBITZR
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued HZEEZBD - RIEEFZE1981FATE
in exchange therefor. Under the Companies Act 1981 of (#&185])  —BARATRETHERTBEH
Bermuda (as amended), a company may make distributions BRAHERRELDIK

to its members out of the contributed surplus in certain

circumstances.
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34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.

34 EXFIRER(FHE(QFGH)HEI8IEF
(6228 (AR (HBEEFR2EH)N
Bl) (622GE ) RER LHHRAREZ K

622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION =)
ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (0) E=E&
The remuneration of each Director is set out below: BZESHESHIINT :
For the year ended 31 March 2020: BIE2020F3A31ALEFE :
Employer’s
contribution
toa Estimated
retirement  money value
Discretionary benefit of other
Name of Directors Fees Salary bonus scheme benefits Total
EEZEK  HttRzme
EEpE e e BERAL BAAMR RHEBER 1
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T BETT BET T BT BETr
(Note (i) (Note (ii) (Note (ii) (Note (ii))
(MIEEC))  (RFEECD) (B Cii)) (BRFEE (i)
Sun Tai Lun Dennis BAf 150 1,180 - 18 - 1,348
Sun Tao Hung Stanley %8sl 110 1,888 410 18 - 2,426
Sun Tao Hsi Ryan (Note (iv))  FRiEER (Fif&E(iv) 110 944 - 18 - 1,072
Chan Wai Kwan Rita (Note (v)) BREZE (FffzE(v)) 110 1,180 - 18 - 1,308
Au Man Chung Malcolm B3ZA (FitzE (vi)
(Note (vi) 83 - - - - 83
Li Ka Fai David EZRE 280 = = - - 280
Liu Hui Allan g 140 - - - - 140
Wong Chi Yun Allan FFMR 245 - - - - 245
Fung Yue Chun Stephen BiE 140 - - - - 140
Total Fekc| 1,368 5,192 410 72 - 7,042
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34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 34 EFFZREDR(FEB(LTFIEH)E383ME

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF THE (5B622E) (2F(HBEEFRRH)M
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP. By (B622GE )R EFE EHRAUME 2 #
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION =)

ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) E=F#&E)
For the year ended 31 March 2019: BE2019F3A31HLEFE !
Employer’s
contribution
toa Estimated
retirement  money value
Discretionary benefit of other
Name of Directors Fees Salary bonus scheme benefits Total
EEZEK  HttRzme
EEpHE e e BERAL BAAMR RHEBER B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BETT BB BETT BETT BETT
(Note (i) (Note (ii) (Note (ii) (Note (ii)

(BE@)  (BEECD) (ByaE (i) (F&E (i)

Sun Tai Lun Dennis BAfR 150 1,200 40 18 - 1,408
Sun Tao Hung Stanley 3=EIN 110 1,865 651 18 - 2,644
Ng Yuk Wah Eileen (Note (iii)) & EZ (Ffz£(iii) 110 1,200 40 18 = 1,368
Sun Tao Hsi Ryan (Note (iv))  FRIEER (FEE(iv) 110 720 24 17 - 871
Au Man Chung Malcolm B3R (B EE (vi))

(Note (vi)) 220 - = = = 220
Li Ka Fai David EZRE 280 - - - _ 280
Liu Hui Allan ) 140 _ _ _ _ 140
Wong Chi Yun Allan Z2FM 220 _ _ _ _ 220
Fung Yue Chun Stephen BiE 140 = - - - 140
Total Pk 1,480 4,985 755 71 = 7,291
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34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF THE
HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION
ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION (CAP.
622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (Continued)

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Note:

(i)  Emoluments paid to or receivable by these Directors in
respect of their services as Directors to the Group.

(i)  Emoluments paid to or receivable by these Directors in
respect of their management services to the Group.

(iii) Resigned on 31 March 2019.
(iv) Appointed on 1 April 2018.
(v) Appointed on 1 April 2019.
(vi) Resigned on 16 August 2019.

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

None of the Directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits or termination benefits during the
year (2019: Nil).

Consideration provided to or receivable by third
parties for making available Directors’ services
During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group did
not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available Directors’ services (2019: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of Directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
Directors

As at 31 March 2020, there are no loans, quasi-loans
and other dealing arrangements in favour of Directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and controlled entities
with such Directors (2019: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a Director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year (2019: Nil).

34 EXFIRER(FHE(QFGH)HEI8IEF
(F622F) (AF(HBEEFRBVHIR
Bl) (622GE ) RER LHHRAREZ K
=)

(o) EEE&(E)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

BIEE

() EERHEELAEEEZ2RECEXN
HEW 2B E -

iy EFREDBAEEEHEERBECEN
HEWZBE -

(i) H2019%F 3831 BBHE ©
(iv) H2018F481HEZEE -
(v) R2019F45 1 HEEFE -
(vi) H2019%F 8B 16 HBHE °
EFERHEFIRRILERRET

FRBEESC WSS W EERARIE
ML ILEAER (20195 © ) o

RREEFERBAE=HRENBEEEK
B E

B E2020F3A31HILLEE - REEH
EFRAEEEREREMNE=FAFRE
(2019% : &) °

FRLEE HEIRZIEREMEEES
ERANER EHRREMIZHEH

2020383180 © MEUES - EZ
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REAMZZZHE(20194 : £&) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

35 CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(@)

(b)

Significant non-cash transaction

R UIERARME

During the year ended 31 March 2020, certain capital
injection made by a non-controlling shareholder was
conducted through a transfer of furniture and fixture of

35 BenEAH

(a) EXERERS
B ZE2020F3831HILEE » FEZFIMR
REBZRMREEER B 126,000T/E
ETEE -

HK$126,000.
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (b) MEFEFHEENABHIE
activities
Lease liabilities
HEE8E
HK$'000
BET T
At 31 March 2019, as previously presented 72019%F3A318 » WEFIFIR =
Changes in accounting policies (Note 2.2) S BR 2 28 (MiFE2.2) 91,070
At 1 April 2019, as restated M2019F4818 - &£F5| 91,070
Cashflows RERE (50,935)
Addition 0 39,180
Rent concession from lessors HEAESER (1,795)
At 31 March 2020 20203831 H 77,520

Dividend payable

EARE
HK$'000
BET T
At 1 April 2018 7201854A81H 821
Cashflows BERE (821)

At 31 March 2019

72019 3H31H -

36 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Following the outbreak of the COVID-19 in early 2020, a
series of precautionary and control measures have been
and continued to be adopted by the Group. Subsequent
to 31 March 2020 and up to the date of this report, the
Group's sales have gradually recovered as the situation of the
outbreak of COVID-19 improves in Hong Kong. The Group
has been actively adopting cost control measures including
re-prioritising work plans to improve liquidity position,
closely monitoring the market situation and timely adjusting
the business strategies in view of the development of the
COVID-19.

36 BEMHEER

BEE COVID-19/A2020F M8 % » AEED K
I A5 4 B ERER — R D FERA R EHIHE#E - B2020
FIAMBREZARELY  AEBMNHEE
HOKBECOVID-19EEBERNERKEM
BEME o AEB - BEBRBEIKARETE
e BIEEHEE TEENELAFURS
RBESMRR BYERWHEER - XEE
COVID-19M B[R - ERFFARE LR o
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Details of Investment Properties

REVZEFHE
As at 31 March 2020
72020F3H31H

Location Category of lease Existing use
& HA®ER BERAR
Unit D on the 1st Floor and B Medium term leasehold Warehouse
Car Park Space Nos. 16 B HEL =4}
and 17 on the Ground Floor ALH

and Car Park Space No. 10 HEEE215%

on the Lower Ground Floor REIERE

Eldex Industrial Building T EEMI16K 175 R

21 Ma Tau Wai Road TR FEL 1057

Hunghom

Kowloon

Hong Kong

8th Level, Donghai Commercial Centre REARKENE Medium term leasehold Commercial
588 Yan An East Road b RS [EES
Huang Pu District BEHE

Shanghai 22 % 58855

People’s Republic of China RBBEEDL8E

Units 2305 and 2307 BE Medium term leasehold Commercial
on 23rd Floor, Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre %ﬁ?i HHEIAY

Nos. 220-248 Texaco Road B H1E220-2485

New Territories ST E 002308

Hong Kong 2305k 2307Z

Unit No. 6 on 6th Floor together with %1% Medium term leasehold Commercial
Vehicle Parking Spaces Nos. 37, 51 and 60 HHEN S
on Ground Floor, Block C n)‘f'ﬁLhﬁ

Ko Fai Industrial Building BEIEAEMEER

No. 7 Ko Fai Road CHEESh T B8R /20 SR 837

Kowloon 516035

Hong Kong

Units 2509, 2511-16 ;E‘/% Medium term leasehold Commercial
on 25th Floor %ﬁ HERTE A [EES
Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre iELZZO 248%

Nos. 220-248 Texaco Road EITEFN258

New Territories 2509&251 1-16E

Hong Kong

Vehicle Parking Space E Medium term leasehold Commercial
No. 72 on 1st Floor 3 FHIEL e
Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre ?riEZE 220-248%;

Nos. 220-248 Texaco Road EETED LI BERERRE

New Territories 72%;

Hong Kong

Whole of 27th Level and HEARLA Medium term leasehold Commercial
Car Parking Space Nos. 37, 38 and 39 ERAE TR E S
Guang Fa Bank Building BM

No. 83 Lower Long Lin Road RILE

Dongshan District EMT 835

Guangzhou BZemAE

Guangdong Province 272 REFE3T7 -

People’s Republic of China 381395

Units 1401-1408 on 14th Level hEARLNE Medium term leasehold Commercial
Jin Cheng Zhong Xin R RHEIEA %
4th District, Fang Qun Garden FEE

Fang Zhuang District %ﬁ'ﬁﬁ@

Beijing EH PO

People’s Republic of China 14821401-1408F

Unit No. 4 on Levels 17/18 together with EF%AE?UFH Long term Ieasehold Commercial
Car Parking Space No. 10 on 1/F HHEY [HES
Golden Bridge Mansion 55

2077 Yan An Road West QQE%ZOW%

Changning District EBEAE

Shanghai 17/18@42&

People’s Republic of China EEEN105%

Unit C-13, C-14, C-15 HEARENE Long term leasehold Commercial
An’Xin Building sEE REHEA ES
Heping Main Road ={nli)

(Yanjiang 4th Road), Haikou FE KRB (B T4E)

Hainan Province ZIERE

People’s Republic of China C-13+C-14 ~ C-15%
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Corporate Information
AEER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Sun Tai Lun Dennis (Chairman)

Sun Tao Hung Stanley (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Sun Tao Hsi Ryan
Chan Wai Kwan Rita (appointed on 1 April 2019)

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
Fung Yue Chun Stephen

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Au Man Chung Malcolm (resigned on 16 August 2019)
Li Ka Fai David

Liu Hui Allan

Wong Chi Yun Allan

COMPANY SECRETARY
Chan Wai Kwan Rita

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
MUFG Bank, Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

AUDITOR
PricewaterhouseCoopers

REGISTERED OFFICE
Victoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM10
Bermuda

PRINCIPAL OFFICE IN HONG KONG
8th Floor Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre
220-248 Texaco Road

Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong

Exw

HITEER

BKRME(EEF)

BRIESL (B EERITHRARE)
RERR

BREE (R20195F4 A1 BEEE)

ERITES
BE
WIAERITEE
B A (R2019F8 A 16 HBHE)
TRE
2
sV

FERT
FERIT(EB)ERATE
B TRIERIT (M) AR AT
B =FUFIRTT

BB LDSELRITERLA

B BET
BERMKESHERH

EMRER

Victoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM10
Bermuda

FERIENEE
EBEE

B+ HIE220-248%
EEIZP(8IE
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China-Hongkong Photo Products Holdings Limited
REREZMRERRAE
8th Floor, Tsuen Wan Industrial Centre, 220-248 Texaco Road,
Tsuen Wan, Hong Kong
FRTEBELTHIE220- 248 T E T E 08k
Fax f8HK: (852) 2409 0294
Email EEB: enquiry@chinahkphoto.com.hk
website #i4: www.chinahkphoto.com.hk



www.chinahkphoto.com.hk
B )

CHINA-HONGHONG PHOTO PRODUCTS HOLDINGS LIMITED
PEREBIMNEERER QT
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

(RBEREIMRL2BRITF)
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